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Blanca S. Bayo, Director 
Records and Reporting 
Florida Public Service Commission 
4075 Esplanade Way, Room 110 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

September 29,2000 

Steel Hector & Davis LLP 

215 South Monroe, Suite 601 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301-1804 
850.222.2300 
850.222.8410 Fax 
www.steelhector.com 
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Re: Application of Florida Power & Light Company For Authority 
To Issue And Sell Securities During the Calendar Year 2001 
Pursuant To Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, And Chapter 25-8, 
Florida Administrative Code 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

Enclosed for filing on behalf of Florida Power & Light Company are the original and five 
(5) copies of the Application of Florida Power & Light Company For Authority to Issue and Sell 
Securities. A separate copy of the filing has been sent to the Office of Public Counsel. 

Also enclosed to assist in processing this Application are five (5) copies of a proposedNotice 
for the Florida Administrative Weekly. The date for final Commission action has been left blank 
in the proposed Notice; it is the hope of Florida Power & Light Company that the Application can 
be addressed at the November 7,2000 Agenda Conference. 

If you or your Staff have any questions regarding this filing, please contact me. 

Very truly yours, 

Charles A. Gugon 
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cc: Jack Shreve, Esq. 2: 8 FLED __-- &--- 
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Proposed Notice For The 
Florida Administrative Weekly 

The Florida Public Service Commission will consider and take fin; ~ Agency action at its regularly 
scheduled Agenda Conference on November -, 2000, in Docket No. -EI, the Application 
of Florida Power & Light Company For Authority To Issue And Sell Securities Pursuant to Section 
366.04, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative Code. 
DATE AND TIME: November -, 2000. The Agenda Conference begins at 9:30a.m., although the 
time at which this item will be considered cannot be determined at this time. 
PLACE: Commission Hearing Room 148, Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, 
Tallahassee, Florida. 
PURPOSE: To take final agency action in Docket No. -EI. Any person requiring some 
accommodation at this hearing of a physical impairment should call the Division of Records and 
Reporting at (850) 413-6770 at least 48 hours prior to hearing. Any person who is hearing or speech 
impaired should contact the Florida Public Service Commission by using the Florida Relay Service, 
which can be reached at 1-800-955-8771(TDD). Any person who decides to appeal the final agency 
action taken on this application will need a record of the proceedings related to it and therefore, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of such proceedings is made. 
LEGAL AUTHORITY: Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative 
Code. 
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Docket No. 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Tallahassee, Florida 

Application of 

Florida Power & Light Company 

For Authority to Issue and Sell Securities 

Pursuant to Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, 

And Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative Code 

Address communications in connection with this Application to: 

Paul I. Cutler Dennis P. Coyle William G. Walker, 111 
Assistant Treasurer and Assistant General Counsel and Secretary Vice President, Rewlatow Affairs 

Secretary 
Florida Power & Light Company 

700 Universe Eioulevard 
P.O. Box 14000 

Juno Beach, Florida 33408 
Telephone (561) 694-6204 

Florida Power & Light Company 
700 Universe Boulevard 

P.O. Box 14000 
Juno Beach, Florida 33408 
Telephone (561) 694-4644 

Florida Power & Lbht  Company 
215 S. Monroe Street, Suite 810 

Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Telephone (850) 224-7517 

The  date of this Application is  September  29, 2000 
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APPLICATION OF 
FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 

FOR AUTHORITY TO ISSUE AND SELL SECURITIES 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 366.04, FLORIDA STATUTES, 
AND CHAPTER 25-8. FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 

A. ADDlicability. 

This Application is filed in accordance with Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 25-8, 

Florida Administrative Code 

B. Contents of ADDliCatiOn 

1. Name and PrinciDal Business Office Address. 

Florida Power & Light Company (FPL) 
700 Universe Boulevard 
P.O. Box 14000 
Juno Beach. Florida 33408 

2. State and Date IncorDorated. 

* State of Florida - December 28, 1925 
-Also qualified to do business in the State of Georgia 

Persons Authorized to Receive Notices and Communications. 3. 

Paul I. CuUer Dennis P. Coyle William G. Walker, 111 
Assistant Treasurer and ksistant Seaetary Vice President. Regulatory Affairs 
Florida Power & Light Company Florida Power & Light Company 
700 Universe Boulevard 215 S. Monroe Street, Suite 810 
P.O. Box 14000 P.O. Box 14000 Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Juno Beach. Florida 33408 Telephone (850) 224-7517 
Telephone (561) 694-6204 

General Counsel and Secretary 
Florida Power 8 Light Company 
700 Universe Boulevard 

Juno Beach. Florida 33408 
Telephone (561) 694-4644 

4. 

4(a)(b)(c) Information responsive to description, amount authorized and amount outstanding: These 

CaDital Stock and Funded Debt. 

items are contained in Exhibit C "Statement of Capital Stock and Debt - June 30, 2000." 

4(d) The amount held as reacquired securities: At June 30, 2000, FPL held 120,000 shares of its 

6.84% Preferred Stock, Series Q, $100 par value; 500,000 shares of its 8.625% Preferred Stock, Series R. 

$100 par value; 600,000 shares of its 7.28% Preferred Stock, Series F, $100 par value; 400,000 shares of 

its 7.40% Preferred Stock, Series G, $100 par value; and 5,000,000 shares of its $2.00 No Par Preferred 
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Stock, Series A, as reacquired securities resulting from the redemption or reacquisition without cancellation 

of such shares. The Restated Articles of Incorporation of FPL, as amended, prohibit the reissuance of 

shares of Preferred Stock after their redemption. 

4(e) The amount pledged by applicant: The pollution control, solid waste disposal, and industrial 

development first mortgage bonds, in aggregate principal amount of $126,970,000 as of June 30, 2000. 

have been pledged as security for the payment of principal and interest on private activity bonds issued by 

political subdivisions of the State of Florida on behalf of FPL. 

As of June 30, 2000, FPL is the obligor on $627,735,000 aggregate principal amount of 

outstanding unsecured variable rate pollution control, solid waste disposal, and industrial development 

bonds issued by certain political subdivisions of the State of Florida which presently pay interest at a variable 

rate. The proceeds from the issuance of $607,785,000 aggregate principal amount of these variable rate 

bonds were used to redeem an equal amount of fixed rate pollution control, solid waste disposal, and 

industrial development bonds, and FPL's first mortgage bonds pledged as security for the redeemed fixed 

rate bonds were released. FPL has the option to cause the interest on the variable rate bonds to be paid 

at a fixed rate. If FPL exercises this option, as security for the payment of principal and interest on, and 

other payments with respect to, such fixed rate bonds, FPL will be required to pledge an equal aggregate 

principal amount of its first mortgage bonds or other forms of credit enhancement. 

4(f) 

Group, Inc. 

4(g) The amount held in any fund: None. 

5. PrODOSed Transactions. 

The amount owned by affiliated corporations: All of the common stock of FPL is owned by FPL 

FPL seeks permission to issue and sell andlor exchange any 

combination of the long-term debt and equity securities described below andlor to assume liabilities or 

obligations as guarantor, endorser or surety in an aggregate amount not to exceed $2.5 billion during 

calendar year 2001. FPL also seeks permission to enter into forward refunding or forward swap contracts 

during calendar year 2001. In conjunction with these forward contracts, FPL seeks permission to issue and 
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sell up to $5.4 million of securities through December 31, 2002, which FPL would commit to deliver under 

these forward contracts. In addition, FPL seeks permission to issue and sell short-term securities during the 

calendar years 2001 and 2002 in an amount or amounts such that the aggregate principal amount of short- 

term securities outstanding at the time of any such sale will not exceed 25% of FPL's gross revenues during 

the preceding twelve months of operation. 

The long-term debt securities may include first mortgage bonds, medium-term notes, debentures, 

convertible or exchangeable debentures, notes, convertible or exchangeable notes, or other straight debt or 

hybrid debt securities, whether secured or unsecured, with maturities ranging from one to one-hundred years. 

FPL may enter into options, rights, interest rate swaps or other derivative instruments. FPL may also enter 

into installment purchase and security agreements, loan agreements, or other arrangements with political 

subdivisions of the States of Florida or Georgia or pledge debt securities or issue guarantees in connection 

with such political subdivisions' issuance, for the ultimate benefit of FPL, of pollution control revenue bonds, 

solid waste disposal revenue bonds, industrial development revenue bonds, demand notes or other "private 

activity bonds" with maturities ranging from one to forty years, bond anticipation notes or commercial paper. 

Such obligations may or may not bear interest exempt from federal tax. 

The equity securities may include common stock, preferred stock, subordinated preferred stock 

(also known as "preference stock") , convertible preferred or preference stock, or warrants, options or rights 

to acquire such securities, or other equity securities, with such par values, terms and conditions and relative 

rights and preferences as deemed appropriate by FPL and as are permitted by its Restated Articles of 

Incorporation, as amended and as they may be amended from time to time. 

FPL may also enter into preferred securities financings, whereby FPL would establish and make 

an equity investment in a special purpose limited partnership or other entity. FPL. or a wholly-owned 

subsidiary of FPL, would act as the general partner or managing member of the entity. The entity would offer 

preferred securities to the public and lend the proceeds to FPL. FPL would issue debt securities to the entity 

equal to the aggregate of its equity investment and the amount of preferred securities borrowed. FPL may 

also guarantee, among other things, the distributions to be paid by the affiliated entity to the preferred 

securities holders. 
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The exchange of FPL's securities may be by way of an exchange of a security of FPL for another 

security or securities of FPL or of one of its subsidiaries or affiliates, or the exchange of a security of FPL or 

of one of its subsidiaries or affiliates for the security or securities of another entity. 

The manner of issuance and sale andlor exchange of securities will be dependent upon the type 

of security being offered, the type of transaction in which the securities are being issued and sold and/or 

exchanged and market conditions at the time of the issuance and sale andlor exchange. 

The short-term securities will have maturities of not more than twelve months and may be secured 

or unsecured. The Securities and Exchange Commission has heretofore indicated through a no action letter 

that FPL may issue and sell commercial paper without compliance with the registration requirements of the 

Securities Act of 1933, as amended, subject to certain conditions. including that FPL may have commercial 

paper borrowings outstanding up to an amount not to exceed 25% of FPL's gross revenues during the 

preceding twelve months of operation. For the twelve months ended June 30, 2000, 25% of FPL's gross 

revenues was $1.5 billion. 

The interest rate that FPL could pay on debt securities will vary depending on the type of debt 

instruments and the terms thereof, including specifically the length of maturity, as well as market conditions. 

On September 27,2000 a new issue of 30-year first mortgage bonds of FPL would have carried a yield to 

maturity of about 8.20%. The dividend rate for preferred or preference stock is similarly affected by the 

terms of the offering. On September 27, 2000 a new issue of tax deductible preferred stock of FPL would 

have carried a dividend yield of about 8.40%. 

In addition, FPL may from time to time enter into nuclear fuel leases, issue instruments of 

guaranty, collateralize debt and other obligations, issue other securities, and arrange for the issuance of 

letters of credit and guaranties, in any such case to be issued (i) by or on behalf of one or more of its 

subsidiaries or affiliates for the benefit of FPL's utility operations, (ii) by non-affiliates (including employees) 

in connection with FPL's utility operations, (iii) by FPL or by or on behalf of one or more of its subsidiaries 

or affiliates in connection with FPL customers' installations of energy efficiency measures, andlor (iv) in 

connection with other financings by FPL or on its behalf. To the extent that FPL enters into fuel leases, 

issues instruments of guaranty, collateralizes debt or other obligations, issues other securities or arranges 
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for the issuance of letters of credit or guaranties by FPL or by or on behalf of one or more of it5 subsidiaries, 

affiliates or non-affiliates to benefit its utility operations, FPL will clearly demonstrate such benefits. 

FPL will file a consummation report with the Florida Public Service Commission (the Commission) 

in compliance with Rule 25-8.009, Florida Administrative Code, within 90 days after the end of any fiscal 

year in which it issues securities. 

6. PurDoses of Issues. The net proceeds to be received from the issuance and sale and/or 

exchange of the additional long-term debt and equity securities (with the exception of the proceeds of the 

issuance and sale of any pollution control revenue bonds, solid waste disposal revenue bonds, industrial 

development revenue bonds, demand notes or other "private activity bonds" or similar securities which will 

be used for specific purposes) will be added to FPL's general funds and will be used to provide additional 

electric facilities; to reacquire, by redemption, purchase, exchange or otherwise. any of its outstanding debt 

securities or equity securities; to repay all or a portion of any maturing long-term debt obligations; to satisfy 

FPL's obligations under the nuclear fuel leases; to repay all or a portion of short-term bank borrowings and 

commercial paper outstanding at the time of such transactions; and/or for other corporate purposes. Excess 

proceeds, if any, will be temporarily invested in short-term instruments pending their application to the 

foregoing purposes. During the period 2001-2002 none of FPL's long-term debt will mature. 

FPL maintains a continuous construction program, principally for electric generation, transmission 

and distribution facilities. FPL estimates that construction expenditures under its 2001-2002 construction 

program will approximate $1.8 billion (see Exhibit 6). There is no Allowance for Funds Used During 

Construction (AFUDC) assumed in the construction expenditures forecast for 2001-2002. 

Under future market conditions, the interest rate on new issue long-term debt or the dividend rate 

on new issue preferred or preference stock of FPL may be such that it becomes economically attractive to 

reacquire a portion or all of certain of its long-term debt securities or equity securities, providing an 

opportunity for FPL to reduce interest or dividend expense even after accounting for such other 

considerations as the (i) reacquisition premium, (ii) other associated reacquisition expenses and (iii) related 

income tax effects. This reduction would be beneficial to the ratepayers and, with proper regulatory 
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treatment, would not be detrimental to FPL's shareholder. Other important considerations in making such 

a decision would include an assessment of anticipated future interest and dividend rates and FPL's ability 

to raise enough new capital to finance its construction program while concurrently pursuing any refinancing 

opportunities. 

The forward refunding contracts would be for the purpose of refunding up to $5.4 million of 

pollution control revenue bonds which were issued on FPL's behalf and which become callable in May 2002. 

These 6.7% pollution control revenue bonds due May 2027 are collateralized by FPL First Mortgage Bonds 

which are more fully described in Exhibit C under the category of First Mortgage Bonds - Pollution Control, 

Solid Waste Disposal, and Industrial Development. Under federal tax law, pollution control revenue bonds 

cannot be refunded with tax-exempt bonds issued more than 90 days prior to the redemption or retirement 

of the outstanding issue. However, through a forward refunding contract, FPL could lock in prevailing 

tax-exempt fixed rates for refunding pollution control revenue bonds which would be issued 90 days prior 

to the first call date of the outstanding issue. Alternatively, FPL could enter into a forward swap contract, 

to become effective on the first call date of the outstanding issue, to lock in prevailing tax-exempt fixed rates. 

Under future market conditions, it may be economical to enter into forward refunding or forward swap 

contracts, and any anticipated savings generated by such forward transactions would be spread over the 

combined life of the outstanding bonds and the refunding bonds starting with the execution of the foiward 

contract. 

FPL's nuclear fuel leases obligate FPL to purchase portions of the nuclear fuel from the non- 

affiliated lessor company (the Fuel Company) at the net investment value of such fuel, if required to enable 

the Fuel Company to pay maturing notes or other borrowings. Also, upon the occurrence of certain events 

which constitute a default by FPL under such fuel leases or give rise to termination of such fuel leases, FPL 

may be required to purchase all of the Fuel Company's interest in such leased nuclear fuel at a purchase 

price equal to (i) the net investment value of such fuel, plus (ii) such additional amounts as are sufficient to 

enable the Fuel Company to retire all of its debt obligations and any other charges or fees under the 

appropriate financing agreements which correspond to such fuel leases and to which the Fuel Company is 

a party. As of June 30,2000. the net investment value of the nuclear fuel outstanding under both fuel leases 
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was approximately $164 million, and FPL estimates that if it had been required to repurchase all of the 

outstanding nuclear fuel on such date, the cumulative lease termination payment would have been 

approximately $142 million. 

From time to time, FPL or FPL subsidiaries or affiliates may promote the installation of energy 

efficiency measures by contracting with customers to guarantee the anticipated energy savings. To facilitate 

FPL's customers' installations of energy efficiency measures, FPL may issue instruments of guaranty, 

collateralize debt or other obligations, issue other securities, or arrange for the issuance of letters of credit 

or guaranties to promote energy efficiency savings contracted for by FPL or FPL subsidiaries or affiliates 

with FPL customers. 

The short-term securities are to provide funds temporarily to finance portions of FPL's construction 

program and capital commitments and for other corporate purposes. Significant parts of FPL's construction 

program may temporarily be financed through the sale of short-term securities from time to time. Also, 

during the 2001-2002 period, FPL may need short-term financing capabilities for seasonal fuel requirements, 

for contingency financing such as fuel adjustment underrecoveries or storm restoration costs, and for the 

temporary funding of maturing or called long-term debt securities. 

7. Facts SuDDortina L e a a h .  Necessitv or ADDroDriateness. In addition to the reasons shown under 

"Purposes of Issues". the proposed issues are consistent with the proper performance by FPL of service as 

a public utility, will enable and permit FPL to perform that service, and are necessary and appropriate for 

such purpose and other corporate purposes. 

8. Name and Address of Counsel Passina upon the Leaalitv of the ProDosed Issues: 

Steel Hector 8 Davis LLP 
1900 Phillips Point West 
777 South Flagler Drive 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401-6198 
Attention: Jeffrey I. Mullens, P.A. 

9. Other State or Federal Reaulatow Body. If required, a Registration Statement with respect to 

each public sale of securities hereunder subject to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, will be filed with 

the Securities and Exchange Commission, Judiciary Plaza, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. 

In addition, certain state securities or "blue sky" laws may require the filing of consents to service of process 

or other documents with applicable state securities commissions. 
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IO. Control or Ownershim There is no measure of control or ownership exercised by or over FPL 

by any other public utility. As of the date hereof, FPL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of FPL Group, Inc.. a 

holding company which is exempt from regulation under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935. as 

amended, except for that section which regulates the acquisition of securities of public utility companies. 

11. Exhibits, 

Exhibit Number 

* A(6) Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,1999 and Form 10-Q 
for the three months ended June 30,2000. 

2001 and 2002 Sources and Uses of Funds Forecast and Construction Budget for Gross 
Property Additions. 

Statement of Capital Stock and Debt as of June 30,2000. 

B 

C 

* As permitted by Rule 25-8.003(1)(a)(6). Florida Administrative Code, FPL is satisfying the requirements 
for Schedules A( l )  through A(5) by submitting its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 
December 31,1999 and Form 10-Qfor the three months ended June 30,2000 in conjunction with this 
Application. 
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SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 366.04, Florida Statutes and Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative 
Code, Florida Power B Light Company has caused its duly authorized officer to execute this Application on 
this 27" day of September, 2000. 

Florida Power 8 Light Company 

By: 

Assistant Treasurer and Assistant Secretaty 
700 Universe Boulevard 

P.O. Box 14000 
Juno Beach, Florida 33408 

ATTORNEYS FOR APPLICANT: 

Steel Hector & Davis LLP 

By: 
Charles A.Muyton 

Suite661 
215 South Monroe Street 

Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
(850) 222-2300 



EXHIBIT A (6) 

.n 

The Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,1999 
and Form 10-Q for the three months ended June 30,2000 will be included when 

the Application is filed. 



I 
c 

i 

h 

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D. C. 20549 

FORM IO-Q 

m QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANTTO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) 
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

Forthe quarterfy period ended June 30, 2000 

OR 

[ J TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) 
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

Exact name o f  Registrants as specif ied 
i n  r h e i r  char ters ,  address of p r i n c i p a l  

comni s s i  on executive off7ces and Ident7R ca t ion  
Redst ran ts  releDhone number N Y ~  b er F i l e  Number 

IUS Employer 

1-8841 

1-3545 

FPL GROUP, INC. 592449419 

540247775 FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 
700 Universe Boulevard 

Juno Beach, Florida 33408 
(561) 694-4000 

State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: Florida 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrants (1) have filed all r e p *  required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(q of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the 
precWing 12 mnms and (2) have been subjectto such filing requirements forthe past 90 days. Yes No- 

APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE ISSUERS: 

me number of sharer outstanding of each Class of FPL Gmup. Inc. common stock. as of the latest practicable date: Common Stock. $.Ol par value, Outstanding at 
JUly31. 2000: 177,752.216shareS. 

As of JUIY 31. 2wo. there were issued and outstanding 1,000 shares of Florida Power 8 Light Company's wmmon stock, Without par value, all of which were held. 
beneficially and of record. by FPL Group. Inc. 

This combined Form 10-Q represents separate filings by FPL Group, Inc. and Florida Power & Light Company. Information 
contained herein relating to an individual registrant is tiled by that registrant on its own behalf. Florida Power & Light Company 
makes no representations as to the information relating to FPL Group, Inc.'s other operations. 



SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT UNDER THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995 

In connection with the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (Reform Act). FPL Group, 
Inc. (FPL Group) and Florida Power & Light Company (FPL) (collectively. the Company) are hereby filing cautionary 
statements identifying important factors that could cause the Company's actual results to differ materially from those projected 
in forward-looking statements (as such term is defined in the Reform Act) made by or on behalf of the Company in this 
combined Form IO-Q. in presentations, in response to questions or otherwise. Any statements that express, or involve 
discussions as to expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, assumptions or future events or performance (oflen. but not always, 
through the use of words or phrases such as will likely result, are expected to, will continue. is anticipated, estimated, 
projection, outlook) are not statements of historical facts and may be forward-looking. Forward-looking statements involve 
estimates, assumptions and uncertainties. Accordingly. any such statements are qualified in their entirety by reference to, 
and are accompanied by, the following important factors that could cause the Company's actual results to differ materially 
from those contained in forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of the Company. 

Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is made, and the Company undertakes no 
obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances afler the date on which such statement 
is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible for 
management to predict all of such factors, nor can it assess the impact of each such factor on the business or the extent to 
which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward- 
looking statement. 

Some important factors that could cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from those discussed in the forward- 
looking statements include changes in laws or regulations, changing governmental policies and regulatory actions, including 
those of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), the Florida Public Sewice Commission (FPSC). the Public 
Utility Regulatoly Policies Act of 1978, as amended (PURPA), the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended 
and the U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, with respect to allowed rates of return including but not limited to return on 
common equity and equity ratio limits, industry and rate structure, operation of nuclear power facilities, acquisition, disposal, 
depreciation and amortization of assets and facilities, operation and construction of plant facilities, recovery of fuel and 
purchased power costs, decommissioning costs. and present or prospective wholesale and retail competition (including but 
not limited to retail wheeling and transmission costs). 

The business and profitability of the Company are also influenced by economic and geographic factors including political and 
economic risks, changes in and compliance with environmental and safety laws and policies, weather conditions (including 
natural disasters such as hurricanes), population growth rates and demographic patterns, competition for retail and wholesale 
customers, availability, pricing and transportation of fuel and other energy commodities. market demand for energy from 
plants or facilities, changes in tax rates or policies or in rates of inflation or in accounting standards, unanticipated delays or 
changes in costs for capital projects. unanticipated changes in operating expenses and capital expenditures, capital market 
conditions, competition for new energy development opportunities and legal and administrative proceedings (whether civil, 
such as environmental, or criminal) and settlements. 

All such factors are difficult to predict, contain uncertainties which may materially affect actual results, and are beyond the 
control of the Company. 
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PART I -FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Item I. Financial Statements 

FPL GROUP, INC. 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

(millions, except per share amounts) 
(unaudited) 

OPERATING REVENUES ............................................... 

OPERUTING EXPENSES: 
F W ~ .  purchased power and interchange .......................... 
other  operat ions and maintenance. ............................... 
Deprec iat ion and amor t i za t ion  .................................. 
rmpairment loss on Maine assets ._ .......................... 
Taxes o ther  than income taxes .............................. 

Tota l  operat ing expenses .................................. 

OPERATING INCOME ................................................. 

OTHER INCOME (DEDUCTIONS): 

I n t e r e s t  charges ............................................... 
pre fer red  s tock dividends - FPL ................................ 
Gain on sale of Adelphia Comunicat ions corporat ion s tock  ...... 
other - net  .................................................... 

Tota l  o ther  income (deductions) - n e t  ........................ 
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES ....................................... 

................................................ 
NET INCOME ...................................... 

Earnings per  share o f  cornon stock (basic and assuming d i l u t i o n ) . .  
Dividends per  share o f  common stock .............................. 
Average number o f  common shares outs tanding ...................... 

Three Months Ended 
>"ne 30. 

zoo0 

11.670 

605 
308 
266 

144 
Ja$ 

3 

(64) 
( 4) 

26 
- 

305 

101 

L L M  

I 1.20 
$0.54 

170 

11.614 

588 
327 
244 
176 
144 
1.479 

135 

( 5 8 )  
(4) 

32 
3) 

- 

105 

28 

L = a  

$0.45 
$0.52 

171 

s i x  Months Ended 
3une 30. zooolqpe 

1.146 1,095 
593 601 
525 523 

176 
Z s l 3  z . s s s m  
- 3 4 3  

484 420 

- - . E 9 2  

L s s L l a s  

$ 1.91 I 1.67 
$1.08 I 1.04 

170 172 

This report should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 9 through 13 
herein and the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in the combined Annual Report on Form 15K for the fiscal 
year ended December 31,1999 (1999 Form 1O.K) for FPL Group and FPL. 
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FPL GROUP. INC . 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(millions) 
(unaudited) 

PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT: 
E l e c t r i c  u t i l i t y  p l a n t  i n  serv ice and other  proper ty  . 

inc lud ing  nuclear f u e l  and const ruct ion work i n  progress ....................... 
Less accumulated deprec iat ion and amort izat ion ................................... 

Tota l  proper ty .  p l a n t  and equipment - net  ...................................... 
CURRENT ASSETS: 

Cash and cash equiva lents  ........................................................ 
Customer receivables . ne t  o f  allowances of 16 and I7 . respect ive ly  ............... 
Mater ia ls .  suppl ies and f o s s i l  f u e l  inventory  - at average Cost .................. 
Deferred clause expenses ......................................................... 
o the r  ............................................................................ 

To ta l  cu r ren t  assets ........................................................... 

OTHER ASSETS: 
specia l  use funds o f  FPL ......................................................... 
o the r  investments ................................................................ 
o the r  ............................................................................ 

To ta l  o ther  assets ............................................................. 
TOTAL ASSETS ....................................................................... 

CAPITALIaTIDN: 
c o m n  stock ..................................................................... 
Addi t ional  pa id - i n  c a p i t a l  ........................................................ 
Retained earnings ................................................................. 
Accumulated other  comprehensive l o s s  .............................................. 

To ta l  common shareholders’ equ i t y  ............................................... 
Preferred stock o f  FPL w i thou t  s ink ing  fund requirements ......................... 
Long-term debt ................................................................... 

To ta l  c a p i t a l i z a t i o n  ........................................................... 
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 

Debt due w i t h i n  one year ......................................................... 
Deferred clause revenues ................................. ..................... 
Accrued i n t e r e s t  . taxes and other  ................................................ 

To ta l  current  l i a b i l i t i e s  ...................................... 

ACCOYntS payable ................................................................. 

OTHER LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CREDITS: 
Accumulated deferred income taxes ................................................ 
unamortized regu la to ry  and investment t a x  c r e d i t s  ................................ 

To ta l  o ther  l i a b i l i t i e s  and deferred c r e d i t s  ................................... 
........................................................ 

COMUIThlENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

TOTAL CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILXIES ............................................... 

lune 30 zoo0 

120.220 
( 1 0 . 7 6 4 )  
-..$!&s 

234 
578 
320 
259 

219 
-.Uu 

1. 449 
782 

899 
_tbLe 

1l4-195 

$ 2  
2. 891 
2.606 

5, 499 
226 

m 
9.204 

. - 

823 
547 
74 

984 a 

1. 176 
289 

-I.&?%? 
2.564 

214-196 

December 31. 
1999 

119.554 
(10.290) 
3 

361 
482 
343 
54 

133 
-L?.L3 

1. 352 
611 

841 
-LBc.l3 

zL1441 

1 2  
2. 904 
2. 465 
(1) 

5.370 
226 

-2A28 
L L Q B  

464 
407 
116 

883 
1.870 

1.079 
310 

1.108 
3 

This reporl should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 9 through 13 
herein and the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in the 1999 Form 10-Kfor FPL Group and FPL . 
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FPL GROUP. INC. 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(millions) 
(unaudited) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES ................... 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Cap i ta l  expenditures of FPL ....... ............................................... 
Independent power investments ....................................................... 
other - net ................ ....................................... .......... 

Net cash used i n  i n v e s t i n g  a c t i v i t i e s  ........................................... 

CASH FLOWS F R O l  FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Issuance of long-term debt .......................................................... 
Retirement of long-term debt ........................................................ 
increase i n  commercial paper .................................................... 
Repurchase of commn stock ........ ............................................... 
Dividends on c o m n  stock ........................................................... 

.................................... N e t  cash provided by f inanc ing  a c t i v i t i e s  

N e t  increase (decrease) i n  cash and cash equivalents .................................. 
cash and cash equivalenrs a t  beginning o f  per iod  ....... ............................ 
Cash and cash equivalents a t  end o f  per iod  ............................................ 

Supplemental d isclosures o f  cash f low in fo rmat ion :  
cash pa id  f o r  i n t e r e s t  (net o f  m u m  cap i ta l i zed)  .................................. 
cash pa id  f o r  income taxes .......................................................... 

Supplemental schedule of noncash inves t i ng  and f inancing a c t i v i t i e s :  
Addi t ions t o  c a p i t a l  lease ob l iga t ions  .............................................. 

s i x  Months Ended 
lune 30. 

_zppe -m.L 
u sL.Q&l 

145 621 
(149) (354) 
363 899 
(34) (84) 
2) -gJ..a 
142 904 

(127) 408 

I 135 I 117 
I 35 I 104 

I 22 I 28 

This report should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 9 through 13 
herein and the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in the 1999 Form 10-K for FPL Group and FPL. 
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FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

(millions) 
(unaudited) 

Three Months Ended 
3une 30. rn 

OPERATING REVENUES ................................................. 11.511 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Fue l .  purchased power and interchange ............................ 570 548 
other  operat ions and maintenance ................. 284 
Depreciat ion and amort izat ion .................................... 254 234 
Income taxes  ..................................................... 101 95 
Taxes o t h e r  than income taxes .................................... 140 143 

T o t a l  operat ing expenses ..................... ............... 1.315 

OPERATING INCOME 218 19L ................................................... 

OTHER INCOME (DEDUCTIONS): 
..................................... (43) 

ions  - net  ................................... 3) 3 
2 other  - n e t  .............................................. 

NET INCOME .................................................. 176 167 

PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS .......................................... - 4 4 

NET INCOME AVAILABLE TO FPL GROUP .................................. u. 

, 

s i x  Months Ended 
lune 30. 

1999 

m s u e ! 9  

1.071 1,033 
487 534 
501 509 
161 151 

2 8 2 2 8 5  
z . s o z ~  
3 6 9 2  

This report should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 9 through 13 
herein and the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in the 1999 Form 10-K for FPL Group and FPL. 
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FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
CONDENSEDCONSOUDATEDBALANCESHEETS 

(millions) 
(unaudited) 

ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT: 
Plant i n  service,  i n c l u d i n g  nuclear fuel  and cons t ruc t ion  work i n  progress ....... 
Less accumulated depreciacion and amort izat ion ................................... 

E l e c t r i c  u t i l i t y  p l a n t  - ne t  ................................................... 
CURRENT ASSETS: 

cash and cash equivalents ........................................................ 
customer receivables.  ne t  of allowances o f  $6 and 17. respecr ive ly  ............... 
Mater ia ls.  suppl ies and f o s s i l  f u e l  inventory  - a t  average cost .................. 
Deferred clause expenses ......................................................... 
other ............................................................................ 

To ta l  cur ren t  assets ........................................................... 

OTHER ASSETS: 
Special use funds ................................................................ 
Other ............................................................................ 

To ta l  other assets ................................. ..... ........ 
TOTAL ASSETS ....................................................................... 

CAPITALTUITION : 
c o m n  shareholder’s e q u i t y  ...................................................... 
Preferred s tock  w i thout  s ink ing  fund requiremenrs ................................ 
Long-term debt ................................................................... 

T o t a l  c a p i t a l i z a t i o n  ........................................................... 
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 

Debt due w i t h i n  one year ......................................................... 
Accounts payable ................................................................. 
Deferred clause revenues ........................................................ 
Accrued i n t e r e s t ,  taxes and other ................................................ 

Tota l  cur ren t  l i a b i l i t i e s  ...................................................... 
OTHER LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CREDITS: 

Accumulated deferred income taxes ................................................ 
unamortized regu la to ry  and investment tax  c r e d i t s  ................................ 
other ............................................................................ 

Tota l  orher l i a b i l i t i e s  and deferred c r e d i t s  ................................... 
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

TOTAL C4PITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES ............................................... 

3une 30. December 31. 
2000 1999 

518,576 $18.162 
(10.618) fx!Jw 
a a 

143 
510 
279 
259 

194 

1,449 
455 
-x?&? 

1l1342 

54,853 
226 

_Lp8e 

468 
521 
74 

888 
3 

898 
289 

950 a 

433 
299 
54 

2 
893 

1,352 
)85 
1.717 

Il(L6as 

I 4.793 
226 
a 
7.098 

219 
379 
116 

719 
A&i3 

802 
310 

965 
2.077 

This report should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 9 through 13 
herein and the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in the 1999 Form IO-K for FPL Group and FPL. 
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FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(millions) 
(unaudited) 

Six  Months Ended 
June 30.  

ZODO 1999 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPEWTING ACTIVITIES ............................................. 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

c a p i t a l  expenditures ................................................................ 
other  - ne t  . ................................................................. 

Net cash used i n  i n v e s t i n g  a c t i v i t i e s  ........................................... 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Issuance o f  long-term deb% ...................................... ................. 
Retirement of long-term debt ........................................................ 
Increase i n  conmercial paper ........................................................ 
Dividends ........... ............................................................. 
c a p i t a l  c o n t r i b u t i o n  from FPL Group ................................................. 

Net cash provided by (used i n )  f inancing a c t i v i t i e s  ............................... 
N e t  increase i n  cash and cash equivalents ............................................. 

cash and cash equivalents aK beginning o f  per iod  ...................................... 
cash and cash equivalents a t  end of per iod  .............................................. 
supplemental d isclosures of cash f l o w  informat ion:  
cash p a i d  f o r  i n t e r e s t  .............................................................. 
cash pa id  (received) f o r  income taxes ............................................... 

Supplemental schedule of noncash inves t i ng  and f inanc ing  a c t i v i t i e s :  
Addi t ions t o  c a p i t a l  lease o b l i g a t i o n s  .............................................. 
Transfer Of ne t  assets t o  FPL FiberNet, LLC ......................................... 

s 89 S 96 
I (27) I 84 

I 22 I 28 
I 100 s -  

This report should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 9 through 13 
herein and the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in the 1999 Form lQKfor FPL Group and FPL. 
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FPL GROUP, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(unaudited) 

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the 1999 Form 10-K for FPL 
Group and FPL. In the opinion of FPL Group and FPL management. all adjuslments (WnSistIng of normal recumng accruals) 
considered necessary for fair financial statement presentation have been made. Certain amounts included in the prior yeal's 
consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform 10 the current yeats presentation. The results of operations 
for an interim period may not give a true indication of resuits for the year 

I. Capitalization 

FPL Group Common Stock - During the three and six months ended June 30,2000, FPL Group repurchased 381 ,ooO shares and 
750.400 shares of common stock. respectively. under ils share repurchase program. A total of approximately 4.6 million shares 
have been repurchased under the share repurchase program that began in April 1997. 

Long-Term Debt - In April 2000. FPL sold approximately $96 million principal amount of vanablerate pollution control revenue 
refunding bonds maturing in July 2022. The proceeds were used in July 2000 to redeem approximately $96 million of pollubon 
control revenue refunding bonds, consisting of $76 million bearing interest at 7.3% and maturing in 2020 and $20 million with 
variable rate interest maturing in 2024. 

In June 2000, FPL sold approximately $49 million prinupal amount of variablerate solid waste disposal revenue refunding bonds 
maturing in 2025. A portion of the proceeds was used to redeem, in June 2000. solid waste disposal revenue bonds totalling $16 
million bearing interest at 7.15% and matunng in 2023. and $7 million bearing interest at 6.7% and maturing in 2027. The 
remaining proceeds will be used to redeem solid waste disposal revenue bonds in August and September 2000. of which $10 
million bear interest at 7 5% and mature in 2020 and $16 million are variable rate and mature in 2027. 

Long-Term Incentive Plan - Performance shares and options granted to date under FPL Group's long-term incentive plan resulted 
in assumed incremental shares of common stock outstanding for purposes of computing both basic and diluted earnings per 
share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2WO and 1999. These incremental shares were not material in the periods 
presented and did not cause diluted earnings per share to differ from basic earnings per share 

Other - Comprehensive income of FPL Group, totaling $204 million and $76 million for the three months ended June 30. 2000 
and 1999 and $325 million and $285 million for the six months ended June 30,2000 and 1999, respedwely, includes net income. 
changes in unrealiied gains and losses on secu*es and foreign a n e n q  translation adjustments. Accumulated other 
comprehensive income is separately displayed in the condensed consolidated balance sheets of FPL Group. 

2. Commitments and Contingencies 

Commitments - FPL has made commitments in connection with a portion of its projected capital expendlures. Caprtal 
expenditures for the construction or acquisition of additional facilities and equipment to meet customer demand are estimated to 
be approximately $3.1 billion for 2wO through 2002. Included in this threeyear forecast are capital expenditures for 2000 of 
approximately $1.3 billion, of which $629 million had been spent through June 30. 2000. As of June 30, 2000. FPL Energy, LLC 
(FPL Energy), has made commitments in connecbon with the development and expansion of independent power projects totaling 
approximately $79 million. FPL Group and its subsidiaries. other than FPL, have guaranteed approximately $370 million of 
purchased power agreement obligations. debt service payments and other payments subject to Certain contingencies. 

Insurance - Liability for accidents at nuclear power plants is governed by the Price-Anderson Act. which limits the liability of 
nuclear reactor owners to the amount of the insurance available from private sources and under an industry retrospective 
payment plan. In accordance with this Act, FPL maintains $200 million of private liability insurance, which is the maximum 
obtainable, and participates in a secondary financial protection system under which it is subject to retrospective assessments 
of up to $363 million per incident at any nuclear utility reactor in the United States, payable at a rate not to exceed $43 million 
per incident per year 

FPL particlpates in nuclear insurance mutual companies that provide $2.75 billion of limited insurance coverage for properly 
damage. decontamination and premature decommissioning risks at its nuclear plants. The proceeds from such insurance, 
however, must first be used for reactor stabilization and site decontamination before they can be used for plant repair. FPL 
also participates in an insurance program that provides limited coverage for replacement power costs if a nuclear plant is out 
of service because of an accident. In the event of an accident at one of FPL's or another participating insureds nuclear 
plants. FPL could be assessed up to $38 million in retrospective premiums. 
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FPL GROUP, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

(unaudited) 

In the event of a catastrophic loss at one of FPL's nuclear plants, the amount of insurance available may not be adequate to 
cover property damage and other expenses incurred. Uninsured losses, to the extent not recovered through rates, would be 
borne by FPL and could have a material adverse effect on FPL Group's and FPL's financial condition. 

FPL self-insures the majority of its transmission and distribution (TSD) property due to the high cost and limited coverage 
available from third-party insurers. As approved by the FPSC, FPL maintains a funded storm and property insurance reserve, 
which totaled approximately 5216 million at June 30, 2000. for uninsured property storm damage or assessments under the 
nuclear insurance program. Recovery from customers of any losses in excess of the storm and property insurance reserve 
will require the approval of the FPSC. FPL's available lines of credit indude $300 million to provide additional liquidity in the 
event of a T&D property loss. 

Contfacts - FPL Group has entered into a $3.7 billion long-ten agreement with General Electric Company for the supply of 66 
gas turbines from 2000 through 2004 and parts, repais and on-site services through 201 1. The turbines are intended to support 
expansion at FPL and FPL Energy, and the related commitments for a portion of the 66 gas turbines are included in 
Commitments above. 

FPL has entered into long-term purchased power and fuel contracts. Take-or-pay purchased power contracts with the 
Jacksonville Electric Authority (JEA) and with subsidiaries of The Southern Company (Southern Companies) provide 
approximately 1,300 megawatts (mw) of power through mid-2010 and 383 mw thereaffer through 2021. FPL also has various 
firm pay-for-performance contracts to purchase approximately 900 mw from certain cogenerators and small power producers 
(qualifying facilities) with expiration dates ranging from 2002 through 2026. The purchased power contracts provide for 
capacity and energy payments. Energy payments are based on the actual power taken under these contracts. Capacity 
payments for the pay-for-performance contracts are subject to the qualifying facilities meeting certain contract conditions. 
FPL has long-term contracts for the transportation and supply of natural gas, coal and oil with various expiration dates 
through 2021. FPL Energy has long-term contracts for the transportation and storage of natural gas with expiration dates 
ranging from 2005 through 2017, and a contract for the supply of natural gas that expires in mid-2002. 

The required capacity and minimum payments under these contracts for the remainder of 2000 through 2004 are estimated to 
be as follows: 

2M)2 . 2003 am 
LQQQ ( m i m n s )  - 

FPL: 
capaci ty payments: 

Minimum aynents, a t  pro jected pr ices:  

3EA and southern companies .......................................... S l l O  1210 1210 I200 5200 
Qua l i f y i ng  f a c i l i t i e s  (a) ........................................... 1170 1340 1355 $365 5375 

coal  ................................................................ 1 25 1 45 1 4 5  1 20 1 10 
o i l  ................................................................. 1145 I195 I 10 1 -  I -  

Natura? gas, includ?ng KranspoIKation ............................... 1390 I555 I555 ISM) 5555 

Natura? ;as. inc lud ing t ransparrat ion and storage ..................... $ 1 0  I 20 S 20 1 1 s  I 15 
FPL m e r  y 

(a) 

Charges under these contracts were as follows: 

Excludes capacity payments associated with two wntractr that are in dispute. The capacity payments would no longer be required pursuant to a proposed 
settlement. which is subject to regulatory approval. See Lifigation. 

Three Months Ended June 30. s i x  Months Ended lune 30. 
2000 Charqes 1999 Charoes 2000 Charaes 1999 charqes 

Enerqy/ 
CaOacity - Energy/ Energy/ 

CaDaCitY ~ u e l  

FPL: 
)EA and southeyn,C?mpanies SSl(a) 141(b )  549(a) I 31(b) 1102Ca) 1 72(b) SlOl(a) I 55(b) 

$186(b) NatUrz 'gaS, Inc lud ing  .. I - 1130Cb) S -  I l l l C b )  I -  I212(b) 1 - 
coal  ....................... I - S 1 X b )  I -  S l l (b)  I -  1 23(b) I - I 23(b) 

$ 40(b) o i l  ........................ I - I 89(b) I -  S 29(b) I -  SllO(b) 1 - 

Qual, I n g  f a ~ l l l t l ? s  ...... S8O(C) $ 28Cb) S76(c) 5 28(b) 1159Cc) S 59(b) SlSl(c1 I49Cb)  

t ransporrat ion 

FPL Ener y 
Natura7 ,as t r anspor ta t i on  I - $ 4  5 -  

and storage 
I 4  1 -  s a  s -  1 8  

(a) 
(b) 
(c) 

Rewvered through base rates and the capacity mst rewvely Clause (capadty clause). 
Rewvered through the fuel and purchased power Cost rewvery clause (fuel claute). 
Rewvered through the capacity ciause. 
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FPL GROUP, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

(unaudited) 

Litigation - In 1997, FPL filed a complaint against the owners of two qualifying facilities (plant owners) seeking an order 
declaring that FPL's obligations under the power purchase agreements with the qualifying facilities were rendered of no force 
and effect because the power plants failed to accomplish commercial operation before January 1. 1997, as required by the 
agreements. The plant owners disputed this claim. In 1997, the plant owners filed for bankruptcy under Chapter XI of the 
US. Bankruptcy Code and entered into an agreement with the holders of more than 70% of the bonds that partially financed 
the construction of the plants. This agreement gives the holders of a majority of the principal amount of the bonds (the 
majority bondholders) the right to control, fund and manage any litigation against FPL and the right to Settle with FPL on any 
terms to which the majority bondholders agree, subject to approval by the bankruptcy court. In 1998, the plant owners 
(through the attorneys for the majority bondholders) filed an answer denying the allegations in FPCs complaint and asserting 
counterclaims for approximately $2 billion, consisting of all capacity and energy payments that could have been earned over 
the 30-year term of the power purchase agreements and three times their actual damages for alleged violations of Florida 
antitrust laws by FPL. FPL Group and FPL Group Capital Inc (FPL Group Capital), plus attorneys' fees. Recent disclosures 
by the plant owners state that they now seek $322.5 million in damages, plus prejudgement interest. In 1998. the trial court 
dismissed all of the plant owners' antitrust claims. 

In July 2000, FPL. the majority bondholders, and the trustee of the indenture under which the bonds were issued entered into 
a conditional settlement agreement and release (settlement). Under the terms of the settlement, the trustee would be paid 
$222.5 million plus the amount of the security deposits, to be distributed as directed by the bankruptcy court. The settlement 
is conditioned upon (i) the approval of the bankruptcy court and (ii) the approval of the FPSC determining that the settlement 
is an appropriate buyout of the power purchase agreements and authorizing FPL to recover the settlement amount through 
the capacity clause and fuel clause. FPL estimates the net present value of the savings to its customers from the settlement 
versus the payments that would have been due under the power purchase agreements to be in excess of $350 million. 

A contract with Cedar Bay Generating Company, L.P. (Cedar Bay), a qualifying facility, provides FPL with the right to dispatch 
the Cedar Bay facility "in any manner it deems appropriate." Despite this contractual right, Cedar Bay initiated an action in 
1997 in the circuit court challenging, among other things, the manner in which the facility had been dispatched by FPL. 
Although the court granted summary judgment to FPL with regard to Cedar Bay's daim that FPL's dispatch decisions violated 
the express terms of the contract. it permitted a jury to hear Cedar Bay's claim that such dispatch decisions violated an 
implied duty of good faith and fair dealing. The jury awarded Cedar Bay approximately $13 million on this claim. Thereafter, 
the court entered a declaration that FPL was. in the future, to dispatch the Cedar Bay facility in accordance with certain 
specified parameters. FPL has appealed both the jury award and the court's declaration. If the jury award is upheld on 
appeal, FPL expects to recover this amount through the capacity clause. 

In 1999, after FPL filed its notice of appeal in the Cedar Bay action, a lender, on behalf of itself and a group of other Cedar 
Bay lenders, filed an action against FPL in the circuit court alleging breach of contract, breach of an implied duty of good faith 
and fair dealing, fraud, tortious interference with contract and several other claims regarding the manner in which FPL has 
dispatched the Cedar Bay facility. It seeks unspecified damages and other relief. FPL has moved to dismiss all counts of this 
complaint. 

In 1999, the Attorney General of the United States, on behalf of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) brought an 
action against Georgia Power Company and other subsidiaries of The Southern Company for injunctive relief and the 
assessment of civil penalties for certain violations of the Clean Air Act. Among other things, the EPA alleges Georgia Power 
Company constructed and is continuing to operate Scherer Unit No. 4, in which FPL owns a 76% interest, without obtaining 
proper permitting, and without complying with performance and technology standards as required by the Clean Air Act. The 
suit seeks injunctive relief requiring the installation of such technology and civil penalties of up to $25,000 per day for each 
violation from an unspecified date afler August 7, 1977 through January 30, 1997. and $27,500 per day for each violation 
thereafter. Georgia Power Company has filed an answer to the complaint asserting that it has complied with all requirements 
of the Clean Air Act, denying the plaintiis allegations of liability. denying that the plaintiff is entitled to any of the relief that it 
seeks and raising various other defenses. 

In June 2000, Southem California Edison Company (SCE) filed with the FERC a Petition for Declaratory Order (petition) asking 
the FERC to apply a November 1999 federal circuit court of appeals' decision to all qualifying small power production facilities. 
inciuding two solar facilities operated by partnerships indirectly w e d  in part by FPL Energy. The federal circuit court of appeals' 
decision invalidated the FERC's socalled essential fixed assets standard, which permitted secondary uses of fossil fuels by 
qualifying mai l  power production fa es beyond those expressly set forth in PURPA. The petition requests that FERC declare 
that qualifying small power production faciliiies may not continue to use fossil fuel under the essential fixed assets standard and 
that they may be required to make refunds with respect to past usage. The partnerships intend to file a Motion to Intervene and 
Protest before the FERC, vigorously objecting to the position taken by SCE in its petiiion. The partnerships have always 
operated the solar facilities in accordance with orders issued by the FERC. Such orders were neither challenged nor appealed at 
the time they were granted, and it is the position ofthe partnerships that the orders remain in effect. 
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FPL GROUP, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

(unaudited) 

FPL believe that they have meritorious defenses to all the above litigation and are vigorously defending i e  
suits. Accordingly, the liabilities, if any, arising from the proceedings are not anticipafed to have a maferial adverse effes on 
their financial statements. 

3. Segment Information 

FPL Group's reportable segments indude FPL, a regulated utility, and FPL Energy, an unregulated energy generating subsidiafy. 
Corporate and Other represents other business adivdies. other segments that are not separately reportable and eliminating 
entries. FPL Group's segment information is as follows: 

Three Months Ended lune 30. 

+ions) 

2000 1999 
FPL c o r w r a t e  FPL Corporate 

FPL EnePQV 6 M h e r  T a1 FPL EnerQV 6 other  

Operating revenues ...._ 1 1,533 1 114 1 23 11 .670  $ 1 , 5 1 1  $ 93 $ 10 1 1 , 6 1 4  
Net income _ _ _ _ _ _ . . _ _ _ . _  1 172 $ 28 1 4 1 204 I 163 1 (86)(a) I - 1 77 

s i x  Months Ended lune 30. 
2000 1999 

FPL corporate FPL corporate 
FPL EnerQV FPL EnerqV(a) & Other(=) To ta l  

Orher %lions) 

Operating revenues ...._ I 2.871 1 222 $ 45 I 3,138 I 2.869 1 134 1 23 I 3,026 
Net income _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . _ . . . .  1 278 1 42 $ 5  325 1 268 1 (77)(a) 1 95(b) $ 286 

lune 30. 2 000 December 31. 1999 
FPL corporate FPL corporate 

FPL(C) EnerQV nerav & ocher ' ocher'd +?&io+ E 

Total  assets _ _ _ _ .  _ _ _ _ . .  111,247 12,471 1478 114.196 110,608 12,212 1621 $13,441 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

4. Summarized Financial Information of FPL Group Capital 

FPL Group Capital provides funding for and holds ownership interest in FPL Group's operating subsidiaries other than FPL. 
FPL Group Capital's debentures are guaranteed by FPL Group and included in FPL Group's condensed consolidated balance 
sheets. Summarized financial information of FPL Group Capital is as follows: 

Three Months Ended s i x  m m h s  Ended 
lune 30. 

+i I 1 io* 

Indudes elk7  of $1 M million after-tax imFalmerd bss. See Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finandal Condin and Results of Opmtions - Re~ults of 
Operations - FPL Energy. 
Includes $96 million after-tax galn M me 5ak of an inVemnent in Adelpha Comniaf iOns Capwation (Adelphia) m n  stodc See MaMgement's D i m i o n  
and Anatysis of Financial Cond~on and Res& of Operabons - Resub o( O m s  - CwpOrate and Oher. 
Includes effect of $100 millm net asset kanskr in January 2Mx) frun FPLtn FPL FibwNet. LLC. 

operating revenues .... 1138 $103 
operating expenses . . . . 1109 1269 (a) 
Net income ............ 1 38 1(81)(a) 

1268 1157 
1214 1321(a) 

58 I 31(aI(b) 

lune 30, December 31, 

(mm 11i+ 
2000 

currenc assets .._...... I 567 I 640 
Noncurrent assecs __.... $3,008 $2,627 
current  l i a b i l i t i e s  _ _ _ _  1 535 I 414 
Noncurrent l i a b i l i t i e s . .  11.851 $1,840 

(a) 

lbl 

Includes effect of $176 million ($104 million aftw-tzx) impairment loss. See Managemnt's Diwssicn and AnaVsis of Financia Condfion and Resulk of 
Operations - Resub of OperatiDns - FPL E n m .  
Indudes $96 million after-tax gain on the sale of an investment in Adelphia mmmn stock. See Management's Discussion and Anaiysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations - Results of Operations. Corporate and Other 

Management has not presented separate financial statements and other disclosures concerning FPL Group Capital because 
management has determined that such information is not material to holders of the FPL Group Capital debentures. 

. 
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FP~GROUP, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER LIGHT COMPANY 
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (concluded) 

(unaudited) 

5. Subsequent Event 

On July 30, 2000, FPL Group and Entergy Corporation (Entergy) entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (agreement). 
Based on the number of common shares currently outstanding, FPL Group shareholders will own 57 percent of the common 
equity of the combined company, and Entergy shareholders will own 43 percent. The new company's board of directors will 
initially consist of 15 members, eight from FPL Group and seven from Entergy. Corporate headquarters of the merged 
company will be located in Juno Beach, Florida, while the utility group will be headquartered in New Orleans, Louisiana. The 
agreement has been unanimously approved by FPL Group's and Entergy's Board of Directors. The merger is conditioned, 
among other things, upon the approvals of the shareholders of both companies and is subject to approval by various 
regulatory bodies. The companies' objective is to complete the transaction within 15 months. 
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements contained herein 
and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conddion and Results of Operations appearing in the 1999 Form 10-K 
for FPL Group and FPL. The resubs of operations for an interim period may not give a true indication of results for the year. In 
the following discussion, all comparisons are with the corresponding items in the prior year. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

FPL Group's earnings for the three and six months ended June 30, 2000 improved over the same periods last year. The 
improvement, excluding the effects of nonrecurring transactions in 1999. was primarily the result of growth at FPL and FPL 
Energy, as well as positive contributions from the newly formed subsidiary, FPL FiberNet. Nonrecurring transactions in the 
second quarter of 1999 included the impairment loss related to the Maine assets, which, on a year-to-date basis, more than 
offset the first quarter 1999 gain on the sale of Adelphia stock. 

FPL - FPL's net income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2000 was higher than the same periods last year 
despite the rate reduction that went into effect in mid-April 1999. The improvement in the second quarter was due to higher 
sales and lower other operations and maintenance (08M) expense partly offset by the effect of the rate reduction agreement 
and higher special depreciation expense. FPL's revenues from retail base operations for the three months ended June 30, 
2000 were $850 million, up from $838 million in 1999. This improvement was due to increased usage per retail customer of 
2.9% primarily due to weather and a 2.5% increase in the number of customer accounts, partly offset by an increase in the 
accrual for revenue refund associated with the rate reduction agreement. During the second quarter 2000, FPL accrued 
approximately $37 million associated with refunds to retail customers, $34 million of which relates to the second twelvemonth 
period under the rate agreement. No such amount was recorded in the second quarter of 1999. In June 2000, FPL refunded 
approximately $23 million, including interest, to retail customers for the first twelve-month period under the rate agreement, 
essentially all of which was accrued for in 1999. The rate agreement also allows for special depreciation of up to $100 
million, in each year of the threeyear agreement period to be applied to nuclear andlor fossil generating assets. For the 
three months ended June 30, 2000, FPL recorded special depreciation of approximately $36 million compared to $20 million 
for the same period in 1999. Second quarter earnings also reflect successful cost control efforts, as well as the timing of 
expenditures. 

Net income for the six months ended June 30, 2000 benefited from higher sales, lower O&M expense and lower special 
depreciation expense partly offset by the rate reduction agreement. FPL's revenues from retail base operations for the six 
months ended June 30.2000 were $1,579 million compared to $1.598 million in 1999. Increased usage per retail customer of 
3.4% and an increase in the number of customer accounts of 2.4% was more than offset by the reduction in rates combined 
with the revenue refund accrual. Special depreciation expense recorded for the six months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 
was $65 million and $82 million, respectively. Continued cost control efforts and timing of expenditures also contributed to 
lower 0 8 M  expense on a year-to-date basis. 

FPL Energy- FPL Energy's net income for the three and six months ended June 30,2000 benefited from increased revenues 
generated by the Maine assets as a result of warmer weather and higher prices in the Northeast during May 2000. FPL 
Energy's net income for the three and six months ended June 30, 1999, includes the effect of a $176 million ($104 million 
afler-tax) impairment loss recorded in the second quarter of 1999. 

Corporate and Other - For the three months ended June 30, 2000, net income for the corporate and other segment was 
essentially flat. Net income for the six months ended June 30, 1999 reflects a $149 million ($96 million after-tax) gain 
recorded by FPL Group Capital on the sale of an investment in Adelphia common stock in the first quarter of 1999. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

For financing activity during the six months ended June 30, 2000, see Note 1 - Long-Term Debt. During the three and six 
months ended June 30.2000. FPL Group repurchased 381.000 and 750,400 shares of common stock. respectively. 

For information concerning capital commitments, see Note 2 - Commitments. For information concerning the announced 
merger of FPL Group and Entergy, see Note 5. 

14 



PART II -OTHER INFORMATION 

Item I. Legal Proceedings 

Reference is made to Item 3. Legal Proceedings in the 1999 Form 10-K for FPL Group and FPL. 

With regard to a contract dispute between FPL and two qualifying facilities, in July 2000, FPL, the majority bondholders, and 
the trustee of the indenture under which the bonds were issued entered into a settlement. Under the terms of the settlement, 
the trustee would be paid $222.5 million plus the amount of the security deposits, to be distributed as directed by the 
bankruptcy court. The settlement is conditioned upon (i) the approval of the bankruptcy court and (ii) the approval of the 
FPSC determining that the settlement is an appropriate buyout of the power purchase agreements and authorizing FPL to 
recover the settlement amount through the capacity clause and fuel clause. FPL estimates the net present value of the 
savings to its customers from the settlement versus the payments that would have been due under the power purchase 
agreements to be in excess of $350 million. 

In June 2000, Southem California Edison Company (SCE) filed with the FERC a Petition for Declaratory Order (petition) asking 
the FERC to apply the November 1999 decision of the US. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit in Soothern 
California Edison Co. v. FERC, to all qualifying small power production facilities, including the SEGS Vlll and SEGS IX facilities 
owned by Luz Solar Partners Ltd., Vlll and Luz Solar Partners Ltd.. iX (collectively. the partnerships), indirectly owned in part by 
FPL Energy. The federal circuit court of appeals' decision invalidated the FERC's so-called essential fixed assets standard, 
which permitted secondary uses of fossil fuels by qualifying small power production facilities beyond those expressly set forth in 
PURPA. The petition requests that FERC declare that qualifying small power production facilities may not continue to use fossil 
fuel under the essential fixed assets standard and that they may be required to make refunds with respect to past usage. The 
partnerships intend to file a Motion to Intervene and Protest before the FERC, vigorously objecting to the position taken by SCE in 
its petition. The partnerships have always operated the SEGS Vlll and SEGS IX facilities in accordance with orders issued by the 
FERC. Such orders were neither challenged nor appealed at the time they were granted, and it is the position of the partnerships 
that the orders remain in effect. 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

FPL Group: 

(a) The Annual Meeting of FPL Group's shareholders was held on May 15, 20M). Of the 176,166,118 shares of common 
stock outstanding on the record date of March 6, 2000, a total of 149,201,826 shares were represented in person or by 

The following directors were elected effective May 15.2000: 

proxy. 

(b) 
votes cast 

Against O r  
For withheld 

n.  Jesse n r n e l l e  ................. 
Sherry s. Barrat ................. 
Robert M .  s e a l l ,  TI .............. 
3mes L .  Broadhead ............... ~~~ ~~ ~ ~ ~~~~ ~~ ~ 

3 .  Hyatt  B T W  ................... 
Armando M. codina ................ 
Marshall M. c r i s e r  ............... 
Wil lard  0. DOver ................. 
Alexander W. Dreyfoos. l r .  ....... 
Paul 3 .  Evanson .................. 
Drew L&S ....................... 
Frederic v. Malek ................ 
Paul R. Tregurtha ................ 

............... ............... ............... ............... ............... ............... 

146.294.886 
146,413,964 
146,480,450 
133,839.726 
146,071,324 
128,961,380 
146,343,848 
146,435,696 
146 471,033 
146: 354,389 
146,294.494 
146.251.565 
146,335.914 

2,906.942 
2.787.864 
2 721.378 
15 : 362,102 
3,130,504 
20,240,448 
2,857,980 
2,766,132 
2,730,795 
2.847,439 
2,907,334 
2,950,263 
2,865,914 

(c) 

FPL: 

(a) 

The vote to ratify the appointment of Deloitte 8 Touche LLP as independent auditors for 2000 was 147,228,614 for, 
972,189 against and 1,000,625 abstaining. 

The following FPL directors were elected effective May 15, Zoo0 by the written consent of FPL Group, as the sole 
common shareholder of FPL. in lieu of an annual meeting of shareholders: 

James L. Broadhead 
Dennis P. Coyle 
Paul J. Evanson 
Lawrence J. Kelleher 
Armando J. Olivera 
Thomas F. Plunkett 
Antonio Rodriguez 
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Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K 

(a) Exhibits 

E x h i b i t  
N Z L k  

10(a) 

lo@)  
12(a) 
12(b) 
27 

Descr imion 

Employment A reement between FPL Group and Amando I .  O l i v e r a ,  

Employment Agreement between FPL Group and Antonio Rodriguez, 

computat!on o f  Rat!o o f  Earnings t o  Fixed Charges 
computation of Ratios 
Financial  Data Schedule 

dated as o? lune 12, 2000 

dated,as o f  June 12 ,  2000 

FPL 
E m u p -  

X 

x 

X 
x X 

(b) Reports on Form 8-K 

A Current Report on Form 8-K was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 31,2000 by FPL Group reporting 
one event under Item 5. Other Events and filing exhibits under Item 7. Exhibits. 

SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrants have duly caused this report to be signed on 
their behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

FPL GROUP, INC. 
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

(Registrants) 

Date: August 2,2000 
K. MICHAEL DAVIS 

K. Michael Davis 
Controller and Chief Accountina Officer of FPL Grouo. Inc. ~. . 

Vice President, Accounting, Controller and 
Chief Accounting Officer of Florida Power 8 Light Company 

(Principal Accounting Officer of the Registrants) 
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EXHIBIT 12(a) 

FPL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES 

s i x  Months Ended 
June 30. 2000 

( m i  l l ~ o n s )  

Earnings, as defined: 
N e t  income . ....................................... 
income taxes ............................................................................ 
Fixed charges included i n  the determination o f  net  income. as below ..................... 
D is t r i bu ted  income o f  independent power investments ...................................... 
L ~ S S :  Equity i n  earnings o f  independent power investments ............................... 

Total  earnings. as defined ............................................................ 
Fixed charges, as defined: 

I n te res t  charges ........................................................................ 
Rental i n t e r e s t  f ac to r  .................................................................. 
Fixed charges included i n  nuclear fue l  cost ............................................. 
Fixed charges included i n  the determination o f  net  income ............................... 
cap i ta l i zed  i n t e r e s t  .................................................................... 

Total  f i x e d  charges. as defined ......................................... 
Ratio o f  earnings t o  f i xed  charges ................ ..................................... 

I 204 
101 
71 
33 

3 

1 6 4  
3 



W I 
f 

EXHIBIT 12(b) 

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 
COMPUTATION OF RATIOS 

s i x  Months Ended 
lune 30. 2000 

(mi 11 ions) 

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES 

Earnings. as defined: 
Net income .............................. I 285 

Fixed charges, as below ................................................................. 2 

Tota l  earnings, as defined ............................................................ LuLl 

............................................. 
income taxes ............................................................................ 157 

Fixed charges. as defined: 
~ n t e r e s t  charges ...................................................................... I 82 
 ental i n t e r e s t  fac to r  .................................................................. 2 
Fixed charges inc luded i n  nuc lear  f u e l  Cost  ............. ............................. - 

Total  f i xed  charges, as defined .. ............................................. LAB 

4-a2 

4 

Rat io  o f  earnings t o  f i x e d  charges ........................................................ 

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DNIDENDS 

Earnings, as defined: 
Net.income .............................................................................. 
income taxes ............................................................................ 
Fixed charges. as below ................................................................. 

~ o t a l  earnings, as defined ............................................................ 

Fixed charges. as defined: 
i n t e r e s t  charges ........................................................................ 
Rental i n t e r e s t  factor .................................................................. 
Fixed charges inc luded i n  nuc lear  f u e l  Cost ............................................. 

Tota l  f i x e d  charges, as def ined ....................................................... 
~ o n - t a x  deduct ib le  p r e f e r r e d  s tock dividends .............................................. 
Rat io  o f  income before income taxes t o  net income ........... ...................... 
Preferred stock dividends before income taxes ...................................... 
combined f i xed  charges and preferred srock dividends ...................................... 

I 285 
157 

88 - 

L5.3 

I 82 
2 

P 

2 

7 
1.55 

-...I2 

L99 

Rat io  of earnings t o  combined f i x e d  charger and preferred srock dividends ................. A24 
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DEFINITIONS 

Acronyms and defined terms used in the text include the following: 

capacity clause 

charter 

c o a l i t i o n  
conservation clause 

CMP 

DOE 

EMF 

environmental clause 
FDEP 

FERC 

FIPUG 

FGT 

FMPA 

FPL 

FPL Energy 
FPL FiberNet 
FPL Group 
FPL Group c a p i t a l  
FPSC 

fue l  clause 
Holding Company Act 
IBEW 

J EA 

kv 
kwh 
Management's oiscussion 

mortgage 

mw 
Note - 
NRC 

Nuclear waste Po l i cy  Act 
W expenses 

Publ ic Counsel 
PURPA 

qual i fy ing f a c i l i t i e s  

Reform A c t  

ROE 

RTOS 

SJRPP 

Meaning 

capaci ty cost  recovery clause 
centra l  Maine Power company 
Restated A r t i c l e s  of Incorporat ion,  as amended, o f  FPL Group o r  FPL. as 
the case may be 
The Coa l i t i on  f o r  Equitable Rates 
Energy conservation Cost recovery clause 
U.S. Department o f  Energy 
E l e c t r i c  and magnetic f i e l d s  
Environmental compliance cost recovery clause 
F lo r i da  Department o f  Environmental Protect ion 
Federal Energy Regulatory commission 
The F lo r i da  I n d u s t r i a l  Power users Group 
F lo r i da  Gas Transmission company 
F lo r i da  Municipal Power Agency 
F lo r i da  Power & L igh t  company 
FPL Energy, LLC (and i t s  predecessor FPL Energy, Inc.) 
FPL FiberNet, LLC 

FPL Group, m c .  
FPL Group c a p i t a l  I n c  
F lor ida Publ ic service Comnission 
Fuel and purchased power cost recovery clause 
Publ ic u t i l i t y  Holding company Act o f  1935, as amended 
In ternat ional  Brotherhood of E l e c t r i c a l  workers 
Jacksonvi 11 e E l e c t r i c  Author i ty  
K i  1 ovol t 
Kilowatt-hour 
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis o f  Financial  condi t ion 
and Results o f  operations 
FPL's Mortgage and Deed of Trust  dated as o f  January 1, 1944, as 
supplemented and amended 
Megawatt (s) 
Note - t o  consolidated Financial  Statements 
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory commission 
Nuclear waste Pol icv  Act o f  1982 
other operations and maintenance expenses i n  the consolidated 
statements o f  Income 
s t a t e  o f  F lo r i da  o f f i c e  o f  Publ ic Counsel 
Publ ic u t i l i t y  Regulatory Po l i c ies  Act o f  1978, as amended 
N o n - u t i l i t y  power production f a c i l i t i e s  meeting the requirements of a 
qual i fy ing f a c i l i t y  under the PURPA 

Pr ivate Secur i t ies  L i t i g a t i o n  Reform Act o f  1995 
Return on comon equi ty 
Regional Transmission Organizations 
s t .  Johns River Power Park 
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SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT UNDER THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995 

In connection with the safe harbor provisions of the Reform Act, FPL Group and FPL (collectively. the Company) are hereby 
filing cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause the Company's actual results to differ materially 
from those projected in forward-looking statements (as such term is defined in the Reform Act) made by or on behalf of the 
Company which are made in this combined Form 10-K. in presentations, in response to questions or otherwise. Any. 
statements that express, or involve discussions as to expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives. assumptions or future events or 
performance (often, but not always, through the use of words or phrases such as will likely result, are expected to, will 
continue, is anticipated, estimated, projection, outlook) are not statements of historical facts and may be forward-looking. 
Forward-looking statements involve estimates, assumptions and uncertainties. Accordingly, any such statements are 
qualified in their entirety by reference to. and are accompanied by, the following important factors that could cause the 
Company's actual results to differ materially from those contained in forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of the 
Company. 

Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is made, and the Company undertakes no 
obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which such statement 
is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible for 
management to predict all of such factors, nor can it assess the impact of each such factor on the business or the extent to 
which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward- ~ 

' looking statement. 

Some important factors that could cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from those discussed in the forward- 
looking statements include changes in laws or regulations. changing governmental policies and regulatory acfions. including 
those of the FERC, the FPSC, the PURPA, the Holding Company Act and the NRC, with respect to allowed rates of return 
including but not limited to ROE and equity ratio limits, industry and rate structure, operation of nuclear power facilities, 
acquisition, disposal, depreciation and amortization of assets and facilities, operation and construction of plant facilities, 
recovery of fuel and purchased power costs, decommissioning costs. and present or prospective wholesale and retail 
competition (including but not limited to retail wheeling and transmission costs). 

The business and profitability of the Company are also influenced by economic and geographic factors including political and 
economic risks, changes in and compliance with environmental and safety laws and policies, weather conditions (including 
natural disasters such as hurricanes). population growth rates and demographic patterns, competition for retail and wholesale 
customers, availability. pricing and transpoctation of fuel and other energy commodifies, market demand for energy from 
plants or facilities, changes in tax rates or policies or in rates of inflation or in accounting standards, unanticipated delays or 
changes in costs for capital projects, unanticipated changes in operating expenses and capital expenditures, capital market 
conditions. competition for new energy development opportunities and legal and administrative proceedings (whether civil, 
such as environmental, or criminal) and settlements. 

All such factors are difficult to predict, contain uncertainties which may materially affect actual results, and are beyond the 
control of the Company. 

3 



P 

'' ranuaha~ pal~gun u: aKueq3 la" aql 6u+m~3,u: '.la410 
LerJisnpur 
Le p,a!JIuo, 

iewapksaa 

............................................ 
902 2z2'z L6T 6E2'2 06T 1)22'2 
P6E'E* 082'E* LZE'EI 

............................................ 

........................................... 

SNOllVki3dO ldd 



FPL's last full rate proceeding was in 1984. In 1990, FPL's base rates were reduced following a change in federal income tax 
rates. In 1999, the FPSC approved a three-year agreement among FPL. Public Counsel, FlPUG and Coalition regarding FPL's 
retail base rates, authorized regulatory ROE, capital structure and other matters. The agreement. which became effective April 
15. 1999, provides for a $350 million reduction in annual revenues from retail base operations allocated to all custo~ers on a 
cents-per-kilowait-hour basis. Additionally. the agreement sets forth a revenue sharing mechanism for each of the twelvemonth 
periods covered by the agreement, whereby revenues from retail base operations in excess of a stated threshold will be shared 
on the basis of two-thirds refunded to retail customers and onethird retained by FPL. Revenues from retail base operations in 
excess of a second threshold will be refunded 100% to retail customers. 

The thresholds are as follows: 

Threshold t o  refund 66 2/3% to customers ..... $3,400 13,450 $3,500 
Threshold t o  refund 100% to customers . .  13.556 13,606 13,656 

Offsetting the annual revenue reduction will be lower special depreciation. The agreement allows for special depreciation of up to 
$100 million. at FPL's discretion, in each year of the three-year agreement period to be applied to nudear andlor fossil generating 
assets. Under this new depreciation program, FPL recorded approximately $70 million of special depredation in 1999. The new 
depreciation program replaced a revenuebased special amoilization program whereby special amortization in the amount of $63 
million, $378 million and $199 million was recorded in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 

In addition, the agreement lowered FPL's authorized regulatoly ROE range to 10% - 12% from 11% - 13%. During the term of 
the agreement, the achieved ROE may from time to time be outside the authorized range, and the revenue sharing mechanism 
described above is specified to be the appropriate and exclusive mechanism to address that circumstance. For purposes of 
calculating ROE, the agreement establishes a cap on FPL's adjusted equity ratio of 55.83%. The adjusted equity ratio reflects a 
discounted amount for off-balance sheet obligations under certain long-term purchased power contracts. Finally, included in the 
agreement are provisions which limit depreciation rates, and accruals for nuclear decommissioning and fossil dismantlement 
costs, to currently approved levels and limit amounts recoverable under the environmental clause during the term of the 
agreement. 

The agreement states that Public Counsel. FlPUG and Coalition will neither seek nor support any additional base rate 
reductions during the three-year term of the agreement unless such reduction is initiated by FPL. Further, FPL agreed to not 
petition for any base rate increases that would take effect during the term of the agreement. 

Fuel costs totaled $1.7 billion in 1999 and are recovered through levelized charges per kwh established pursuant to the fuel 
clause. These charges are calculated annually based on estimated fuel costs and estimated customer usage for the 
following year, plus or minus a true-up adjustment to reflect the variance of actual costs and usage from the estimates used in 
sening the fuel adjustment charges for prior periods. 

Capacity payments to other utilities and generating companies for purchased power are recovered through the capacity 
clause and base rates. In 1999, $440 million was recovered through the capacity clause. Costs associated with 
implementing energy conservation programs totaled $83 million in 1999 and are recovered through the conservation clause. 
Costs of complying with federal, state and local environmental regulations enacted after April 1993 totaled $16 million in 1999 
and are recovered through the environmental clause to the extent not included in base rates. The new rate agreement limits 
recovery under this clause to $12.8 million in 2000 and $6.4 million in 2001. with no further amounts recoverable during the 
remaining term of the agreement. 

The FPSC has the authority to disallow recovely of costs that it considers excessive or imprudently incurred. Such costs may 
include O&M expenses, the cost of replacing power lost when fossil and nuclear units are unavailable and costs associated 
with the construction or acquisition of new facilities. 

competition. The electric utility industry is facing increasing competitive pressure. FPL currently faces competition from 
other suppliers of electrical energy to wholesale customers and from alternative energy sources and self-generation for other 
customer groups, primarily industrial customers. In 1999, operating revenues from wholesale and industrial customers 
combined represented approximately 4% of FPL's total operating revenues. A number of potential merchant plants have 
been announced to date in Florida. However. only two submissions to seek a determination of need totaling approximately 
1,000 mw have been presented to the FPSC. In March 1999. the FPSC approved one of the petitions for a power plant to be 
constructed within FPL's service territory. FPL, along with other Florida utilities. has appealed the decision to the Florida 
Supreme Court. 

Almost half of the states. other than Florida, have enacted legislation or have state commissions that issued orders designed 
to deregulate the production and sale of electricity. By allowing customers to choose their electricity supplier, deregulation is 
expected to result in a shift from cost-based rates to market-based rates for energy production and other services provided to 
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retail customers. Similar initiatives are also being pursued on the federal level. Although the legislation and initiatives vary 
substantially, common areas of focus include when market-based pricing will be available for wholesale and retail customers, 
what existing prudently incurred costs in excess of the market-based price will be recoverable and whether generation assets 
should be separated from transmission, distribution and other assets. It is generally believed transmission and distribution 
activities would remain regulated. Since there is no deregulation proposal currently under consideration in Florida. FPL is 
unable to predict the impact of a change to a more competitive environment or when such a change might occur. 

In the event the basis of regulation for some or all of FPL's business changes from cost-based regulation, existing regulatory 
assets and liabilities would be written off unless regulators specify an alternative means of recovery or refund. Further, other 
aspects of the business, such as generation assets and long-term power purchase commitments, would need to be reviewed 
to assess their recoverability in a changed regulatory environment. See Management's Discussion - Results of Operations 
and Note 1 - Regulation. 

While legislators and state regulatory commissions will decide what role, if any, competitive forces will have on retail 
transactions, the FERC has jurisdiction over potential changes which could affect competition in wholesale transactions. In 
1993, FPL filed with the FERC a comprehensive revision of its service offerings in the wholesale market. FPL proposed 
changes to its wholesale sales tariffs for service to municipal and cooperatively-owned electric utilities and its power sharing 
(interchange) agreements with other utilities. A final decision by the FERC on this filing is pending. 

In December 1999, the FERC issued its final order on regional transmission organizations or RTOs. RTOs, under a variety of 
structures. provide for the independent operation of transmission systems for a given geographic area. The final order 
establishes guidelines for public utilities to use in considering andlor developing plans to initiate operations of RTOs. The 
order requires all public uthties to file with the FERC by October 15. 2000, a proposal for an RTO with certain minimum 
characteristics and functions to be operational by December 15, 2001, or alternatively, a description of efforts to participate in 
an RTO, any existing obstacles to RTO participation and any plans to work toward RTO participation. FPL is evaluating 
various alternatives for compliance with the order. 

System Capability and Load. FPL's resources for serving summer load as of December 31. 1999 consisted of 18,649 mw, 
of which 16,444 mw are from FPL-owned facilities (see Item 2. Properties - Generating Fac es) and 2,205 mw are obtained 
through purchased power contracts. See Note 12 - Contracts. The compounded annual growth rate of retail kwh sales and 
number of retail customers was 2.9% and 1.9%. respectively, for the three years ended December 31, 1999. It is anticipated 
that retail kwh sales will grow at a compounded annual rate of approximately 3.7% for the next three years. 

Occasionally, unusually cold temperatures during the winter months result in significant increases in electricity usage for a 
short period of time. However, customer usage and operating revenues are typically higher during the summer months 
largely due to the prevalent use of air conditioning in FPL's service territory. In 1998. FPL set four consecutive records for 
summertime peak demand, ranging from 17,156 mw to 17,897 mw. Adequate resources were available at the time of each 
peak to meet customer demand. 

In 1999, the FPSC scheduled hearings to consider appropriate reserve margin targets for peninsular Florida. The FPSC 
approved a proposal by FPL and two other Florida utilities to voluntarily adopt a 20% reserve margin target to be achieved by 
2004. FPL's reserve margin target is currently 15%. 

FPL intends to repower its two Fort Myers units and two of its three Sanford units by the end of 2002; these projects will be 
phased in beginning in 2001. FPL will also add two new gas-fired combustion turbines at its Martin site in 2001, and add new 
combustion turbines andlor gas-fired combined cycle units from 2003-09. These actions, plus other changes to FPL's 
existing units and purchased power contracts, are expected to increase FPL's net generating capability by over 4,000 mw. 

Capital Expenditures. FPL's capital expenditures totaled approximately $924 million in 1999. $617 million in 1998 and $551 
million in 1997. Capital expenditures for the 2000-02 period are expected to be $3.1 billion, including $1.3 billion in 2000. This 
estimate is subject to continuing review and adjustment, and actual capital expenditures may vary from this estimate. See 
Management's Discussion - Liquidity and Capital Resources. 

Nuclear Operations. FPL owns and operates four nuclear units, two at Turkey Point and two at St. Lucie. The operating 
licenses for Turkey Point Units Nos. 3 and 4 expire in 2012 and 2013, respectively. The operating licenses for St. Lucie Units 
Nos. 1 and 2 expire in 2016 and 2023, respectively. The nuclear units are periodically removed from service to accommodate 
normal refueling and maintenance outages, repairs and certain other modifications. A condition of the operating license for 
each unit requires an approved plan for decontamination and decommissioning. FPL's current plans provide for prompt 
dismantlement of the Turkey Point Units Nos. 3 and 4 with decommissioning activities commencing in 2012 and 2013, 
respectively. Current plans call for St. Lucie Unit No. 1 to be mothballed beginning in 2016 with decommissioning activities to 
be integrated with the prompt dismantlement of St. Lucie Unit No. 2 beginning in 2023. See estimated cost data in Note 1 - 
Decommissioning and Dismantlement of Generating Plant. FPL has informed the NRC of its intent to apply for a 20-year 
license renewal for each of its four nudear units. FPL expects to file the application with the NRC in 2000 for the Turkey 
Point units and 2002 for the St. Lucie units. 
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Fuel. FPL's generating plants use a variety of fuels. See Item 2. Properties - Generating Facilities and Note 12 - Contracts. 
The diverse fuel options, along with purchased power, enable FPL to shift between sources of generation to achieve an 
economical fuel mix. 

FPL has three contracts in place with FGT that satisfy substantially all of the anticipated needs for natural gas transportation. 
Additional agreements were executed to extend and provide incremental volumes to the Ft. Myers and Sanford plants, 
subject to approval by the FERC. The three existing contracts expire in 2010, 2015 and 2022 but can be extended at FPL's 
option. To the extent desirable, FPL can also purchase interruptible gas transportation service from FGT based on pipeline 
availability. FPL has a long-term natural gas supply contract at market rates to provide a portion of FPL's anticipated needs 
for natural gas. The remainder of FPL's gas requirements are purchased under other contracts and in the spot market. 

FPL has, through its joint ownership interest in SJRPP Units Nos. 1 and 2, long-term coal supply and transportation contracts 
for a portion of the fuel needs for those units. All of the transportation requirements and a portion of the fuel supply needs for 
Scherer Unit No. 4 are covered by a series of annual and long-term contracts. The remaining fuel requirements will be 
obtained in the spot market. FPCs oil requirements are obtained under short- and long-term contracts and in the spot market. 

FPL leases nuclear fuel for all four of its nuclear units. Currently, FPL is storing spent fuel on site and plans to provide 
adequate storage capacity for all of its spent nuclear fuel, pending its removal by the DOE. See Note 1 -Nudear Fuel. 
Under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act. the DOE was required to construct permanent disposal facilities and take title to and 
provide transportation and disposal for spent nuclear fuel by January 31, 1998 for a specified fee based on current generation 
from nuclear power plants. Through December 1999, FPL has paid approximately $401 million in such fees to the DOES 
Nuclear Waste Fund. The DO€ did not meet its statutoly obligation for disposal of spent nuclear fuel under the Nuclear 
Waste Policy Act. In 1997, a court ruled, in response to petitions filed by utilities, state governments and utility commissions, 
that the DOE could not assert a claim that its delay was unavoidable in any defense against lawsuits by utilities seeking 
money damages arising out of the DOEs failure to perform its obligations. In 1998. FPL filed a lawsuit against the DOE 
seeking in excess of $300 million in damages caused by the DOEs failure to dispose of spent nuclear fuel from FPL's nuclear 
power plants. The matter is pending. 

Energy Marketing and Trading. FPL's Energy Marketing 8 Trading Division buys and sells wholesale energy commodities, 
such as natural gas, oil and electric power. The division procures natural gas and oil for FPL's and FPL Energy's use in 
power generation and sells excess electric power. Substantially all of the results of FPL activities are passed through to 
customers in the fuel or capacity clauses. FPL Energy's results of these activities are recognized in income by FPL Energy. 
The level of activity is expected to grow as FPL and FPL Energy seek to manage the risk associated with fluctuating 
commodity priies and increase the value of their power generation assets. 

Electric and Magnetic Fields. In recent years, public, scientific and regulatoly attention has been focused on possible 
adverse health effects of EMF. These fields are created whenever electricity flows through a power line or an appliance. 
Several epidemiological (i.e., statistical) studies 'have suggested a linkage between EMF and certain types of cancer. 
including leukemia and brain cancer; other studies have been inconclusive, contradicted earlier studies or have shown no 
such linkage. Neither these epidemiological studies nor clinical studies have produced any conclusive evidence that EMF 
does or does not cause adverse health effects. In 1998. a working group of the National Institute of Environmental Health 
Sciences issued a report classifying EMF as a possible human carcinogen. 

FPL is in compliance with the FDEP regulations regarding EMF levels within and at the edge of the rights of way for 
transmission lines. Future changes in the FDEP regulations could require additional capital expenditures by FPL for such 
things as increasing the right of way corridors or relocating or reconfiguring transmission facilities. It is not presently known 
whether any such expenditures will be required. 

Employees. FPL had 9,783 employees at December 31. 1999. Approximately 35% of the employees are represented by the 
IBEW under a collective bargaining agreement with FPL expiring on October 31, 2000. 

~ 

: 

FPL ENERGY OPERATIONS 

FPL Energy. FPL Energy, a wholly-owned subsidialy of FPL Group Capital, was formed in 1998 to aggregate FPL Group's 
existing unregulated energy-related operations. Effective September 30, 1999, FPL Energy, Inc. was converted from a 
corporation to a limited liability company, and the name was changed to FPL Energy, LLC. 

FPL Energy's participation in the domestic energy market has evolved in recent years from non-controlling equity investments to 
a more active role that includes ownership, development. construction. management and operation of many projects. In 1999. 
FPL Energy established regional offices in Pennsylvania and Texas and plans to open several more regional offices in 2000. 
FPL Energy is actively involved in managing more than 80% of its projects, which represents approximately 95% of the net 
generating capacity in which FPL Energy has an ownership interest. This active role is expected to continue as opportunities in 
the unregulated generation market are pursued. As of December 31, 1999, FPL Energy had ownership interests in operating 

~ 
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independent power projects with a net generating capacity of 3,004 mw. These projects' fuel sources are 40% gas, 24% oil, 15% 
wind, 12% hydro and 9% other. Diversity in project locations reduces seasonal volatility on a portfolio basis. The projects are 
located in the following regions: 

Northeast . . . . _ _ . . . _ _ _ . . . . . _ . _ .  
Mid-Atlantic . _ _ . . _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . . _ _ . _  

% o f  camcity 
48% 
2 7% 

...................... 18% 
4% 

Colombia. South m e r i c a  3% 

Currently, approximately 30% of FPL Energy's net generating capacity has qualifying facility status under PURPA. Qualifying 
may be generated from hydropower, wind, solar, geothermal. fossil fuels, biomass or waste-product 
es pay for qualifying facility electricity on the basis of each utility's avoided cost of power. Qualifying facility 

status exempts the projects from the application of the Holding Company Act. many provisions of the Federal Power Act, and 
state laws and regulations respecting rates and financial or organizational regulation of electric utilities. FPL Energy also has 
ownership interest in operating independent power projects that have received exempt wholesale generator status as defined 
in the Holding Company Act. These projects represent approximately 70% of FPL Energy's net generating capacity. Exempt 
wholesale generators own or operate a facility exclusively to sell electric energy at wholesale. They are barred from selling 
electricity directly to retail customers. While projects with qualifying facility and exempt wholesale generator status are 
exempt from various restrictions, each project must still comply with other federal, state and local laws, including those 
regarding siting, construction. operation, licensing and pollution abatement. 

In 1999, FPL Energy completed the purchase of CMPs non-nuclear generating assets, primarily fossil and hydro power 
plants, for $866 million. The purchase price was based on an agreement, subject to regulatory approvals, reached with CMP 
in January 1998. In October 1998. the FERC struck down transmission rules that had been in effect in New England since 
the 1970s. The FERC rulings regarding transmission, as well as the announcement of new entrants into the market and 
changes in fuel prices since January 1998, resulted in FPL Energy recording a $176 million pre-tax impairment loss related to 
the fossil assets. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and the results of operating 
the Maine assets have been included in FPL Group's consolidated financial statements since the acquisition date. See 
Note 9. 

FPL Energy's capital expenditures and investments totaled approximately $1.5 billion, $521 million and $291 million in 1999, 
1998 and 1997, respectively. FPL Energy is currently constructing a 1,000 mw combined-cycle natural gas-fired plant in Texas, 
of which FPL Energy owns 99%. This plant is expected to become operational in Zoo0 and has 70% of the capacity under one- 
to five-year contracts. As of December 31, 1999, FPL Energy had remaining commitments of $71 million for the development of 
this plant. In addition, FPL Energy has announced plans to build five plants that would add approximately 2,100 mw to its 
generating capacity by 2003. See Management's Discussion - Liquidity and Capital Resources. 

Deregulation of the electric utility market presents both opportunities and risks for FPL Energy. Opportunities exist for the 
selective acquisition of generation assets that are being divested under deregulation plans and for the construction and 
operation of efficient plants that can sell power in competitive markets. Substantially all of the energy produced in 1999 by 
FPL Energy's independent power projects was sold through power sales agreements with utilities that expire in 2000-24. As 
competitive wholesale markets become more accessible to other generators, obtaining power sales agreements will become 
a progressively more competitive process. FPL Energy expects that as its existing power sales agreements expire, more of 
the energy produced will be sold through shorter-term contracts and into competitive wholesale markets. 

Competitive wholesale markets in the United States continue to evolve and vary by geographic region. Revenues from 
electricity sales in these markets will vary based on the prices obtainable for energy, capacity and other ancillary services. 
Some of the factors affecting success in these markets include the ability to operate generating assets efficiently, the price 
and supply of fuel, transmission constraints, competition from new sources of generation, demand growth and exposure to 
legal and regulatory changes. 

FPL Energy had 825 employees at December 31, 1999. Approximately 18% of the employees are represented by the IBEW 
under a collective bargaining agreement with FPL Energy expiring on February 28. 2003. 

OTHER FPL GROUP OPERATIONS 

FPL FiberNet. FPL FiberNet was formed in January 2000 to enhance the value of FPL Group's fiber-optic network assets 
that were originally built to support FPL operations. Accordingly, FPL's existing 1,600 mile fiber-optic lines were transferred to 
FPL FiberNet in January 2000. FPL FiberNet will sell wholesale fiber-optic network capacity to FPL and other new and 
existing customers, primarily telephone, cable television, internet and other telecommunications companies. The existing 
network interconnects cities in Florida from Miami to Jacksonville on the east coast. Lake City in the north, and Tampa to 
Naples on the west coast. FPL FiberNet plans to invest approximately $225 million over the next three years to expand the 
existing network within major cities throughout Florida. See Note 13. 
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Name &le 
lanes L. Broadhead 64 

Dennis P .  coyle 61 

K. Michael Davis 53 

Paul 3 .  EvanSOn sa 
Lewis nay. 111 44 

Lawrence 1. Kel leher  52 

Robert L. MCGrath 46 

Armand0 I. o l i v e r a  50 
Thomas F. P lunket t  60 
Antonio Rodriguez 57 
Michael w. Yackira 48 

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANTS (a)(b) 

E f f e c t i v e  Date Pos i t ion  

Chairman o f  t h e  Board and ch ief  Executive o f f i c e r  o f  FPL GPOUP _ . _ _  
chairman o f  t h e  Board and ch ief  Executive o f f i c e r  o f  FPL .......... 

......... ......... ................... .......... 
Treasurer o f  FPL .................... .................... 
President, Nuclear D i v i s i o n  of FPL .............. senior  v i c e  President. Power Systems 

President o f  FPL Energy. LLC .................. 

May a. 1990 
3anuary 15, 1990 
June 1, 1991 
m 1 y  1. 1991 
May 13, 1991 

3 U l Y  1, 1991 
January 9. 1995 
AUgUSt 2, 1999 
August 2, 1999 
Ma 13. 1991 

January 11. 2000 
January 11. 2000 
1 " l Y  1 1999 
March i. 1996 
3u1y 1. 1999 
3anuary 15, 1998 

J Y  1, 1991 

(a) 

(b) 

Executive offices are elected annually by. and SeNe at the pleasure of. their respective boards of directors. Except as noted below. each officer has held his 
present position for five years or more and his employment history is wntinuous. 
The business experience of me executive Offices is as follows: Mr. Hay was senior vice president and chief financial officer of us Fwdsewice. a food 
Service distributor. from 1991 to 1997. From 1997 to 1999 he was executive vlce president and chief financial officer of US FMdseNice. Mr. McGrath was 
assistant treasurer of FPL Group and FPL hom February 1998 to January 2000. Prior to that. MI. McGraIh was vice president and chief financial officer of ESI 
Energy, InC. Mr. Oiivera was vice president. distribution of FPL from February 1997 to July 1999. Prior to mat, Mr. Olivera was vice president, power delivery 
of FPL. Mr. Plunken was site vice president at Turkey Point. Mr. ROdtiguez was vice president, power dellvew of FPL from February 1997 to July 1999. Prior 
to mat Mr. Rodriguez was vice president, operations Of FPL's power generation division. Mr. Yackira was vice president, finance and chief financial officer of 
FPL Group and Senior vice president-finance and chief financial officer of FPL from January 1995 to January 1998. 

Item 2. Properties 

FPL Group and its subsidiaries maintain properties which are adequate for their operations. At December31, 1999, the 
electric generating, transmission, distribution and general facilities of FPL represent 45%. 13%, 35% and 7%, respectively, of 
FPL's gross investment in electric utility plant in service. 

Generating Facilities. As of December 31, 1999, FPL Group had the following generating facilities: 

Faci l i w  
FPL: 
STEM TURBINES 

CaDe canaveral ............. 
c u t l e r  .............................. 

Mar t in  ........................ 
......... 

........... 

COMBINED-CYCLE 
Lauderdale .......................... 
Mar t in  .............................. 
Putnam .............................. 
For t  Myers .......................... 
Lauderdale .......................... 
Por t  Everglades ..................... 
Turkey Point  ........................ 

COMBUSTION TURBINES 

DIESEL UNITS 

TOTAL ............................. 
FPL Energy: 

Cerro Gordo ......................... 
DOZwell ............................. 
Maine ............................... 
Maine ............................... 
Maine ............................... 
Marcus Hook 50 ...................... 
southwest Mesa ...................... 
Vansycle ............................ 
Investments i n  J o i n t  Ventures ....... 

TOTAL .............................. 

Cocoa. FL 

For t  M et's. FL 
Miami. FL 

P a r r i s i ,  FL 
Ind imtown.  FL 
Por t  Everglades. FL 
R i v i e r a  Beach, FL 
3acksonvi l le. FL 
Hutchinson Is land.  FI 
Lake mnroe.  FL 
Monroe county, GA 
F l o r i d a  C i t y .  FL 

Dania, FL 

Palatka. FL 
Ind imtown,  FL 

For t  Myers. FL 
oania. FL 
P o r t  Everglades. FL 

F l o r i d a  c i t y ,  FL 

Clearlake. I A  
Ashland, VA 
various - ME 
var ious - ME 

Marcus Hook. PA 

He l ix ,  OR 
var ious 

F t .  F a i r f i e l d .  ME 

MCCamey. TX 

NO. o f  m 

2 
2 
2 
2 
2 
4 
2 
2 
2 
3 
1 
2 
2 

2 
2 
2 

12 
24 
12 

5 

54 
4 
7 

92 
1 
1 

107 
38 

N/M 

Net 
CaDabi l l t v  (mv)(a) 

o i l / c a s  
Gas 
o i  1 
o i  1 
oi l /Gas 
Oil/Gas 
o i  l /cas 
coal/Petroleum coke 
Nuclear 
oi l /Gas 
coal  
oi l /Gas 
Nuclear 

Gas/Oil 
Gas 
Gas/oi l  

o i  1 
O i  1 /Gas 
o i l / t a s  

o i  1 

wind 
Gas 
O i  1 
Hydro 
Wastewood 
Gas 
wind 
wind 
var ious 

(a) 
(b) 
(c) 
(d) 

Represents FPL's net warm wealher peaking capabilihl and FPL Energy's net ownership interest in plant capaciv. 
Represents FPL'S 20% Ownership interest in each of SJRPP Units NOS. 1 and 2, which are jdnuy owned with me JEA 
Excludes Orlando Utilities Commission's and me FMPAs wmbined share of approximately 15% of St. Lude Unit No. 2. 
Represnts FPL's appmximately 76% ownership Of Scherer Unit No. 4. which isjointiy owned with lhe JEA 

a04 
215 
543 

1,625 
1,631 
1,242 
573 
254cb) 

1,553(c) 
934 
658(d) 
810 

1,386 

860 
950 

636 
840 
420 

498 

d 
42 
665 
713 
373 
31 
50 
75 
25 

N/M - Not meaningful 
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Transmission and Distribution. As of December 31, 1999, FPL owned and operated 487 substations and the following 
electric transmission and distribution lines: 

Nominal v o l t w e  
Overhead Lines Trench and submarine 

Cable M i l a  pole M i l e s  

500 kv ............................................................ 1.107(a) 
.......................... 2.246 31 

138 kv .................................. 1.433 49 

.................. 166 14 
L ~ S S  than 69 kv ........................................... 39.858 21.353 

4L48n LL44z 

670 

........................... 

(a)  Includes appmxcmately 75 mlles owned loinlly Wllh the JEA 

Character of Ownership. Substantially all of FPL's properties are subject to the lien of FPL's mortgage, which secures most 
debt securities issued by FPL. The principal properties of FPL Group are held by FPL in fee and are free from other 
encumbrances. subject to minor exceptions, none of which is of such a nature as to substantially impair the usefulness to 
FPL of such properties. Some of FPCs electric lines are located on land not owned in fee but are covered by necessary 
consents of governmental authorities or rights obtained from owners of private property. 

Item 3. Legal Proceedings 

In 1991, FPL entered into 30-year power purchase agreements with two qualifying facilities (as defined by PURPA) located in 
Palm Beach County, Florida. The power plants. which have a total generating capacity of 125 mw. were intended to sell 
capacity and energy to FPLand to provide steam to sugar processors. The plants were to be fueled by bagasse (sugar cane 
waste) and wood waste. Construction of the plants was funded, in part, through the sale of $288.5 million of solid waste 
industrial development revenue bonds (the bonds). The plants are owned by Okeelanta Power Limited Partnership 
(Okeelanta); Osceola Power Limited Partnership (Osceola); Flo-Energy Corp.; Glades Power Partnership; Gator Generating 
Company, Limited Partnership; and Lake Power Leasing Partnership (collectively, the partnerships). 

In January 1997, FPL filed a complaint against Okeelanta and Osceola in the Circuit Court for Palm Beach County, Florida, 
seeking an order declaring that FPL's obligations under the power purchase agreements were rendered of no force and effect 
because the power plants failed to accomplish commercial operation before January 1. 1997, as required by the agreements. 
In November 1997, the complaint was amended to include the Partnerships. 

The partnerships filed for bankruptcy under Chapter XI of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in May 1997. In November 1997, the 
partnerships entered into an agreement with the holders of more than 70% of the bonds. This agreement gives the holders of 
a majority of the principal amount of the bonds (the majority bondholders) the right to control, fund and manage any iitigation 
against FPL and the right to settle with FPL on any terms such majority bondholders approve, provided that certain 
agreements with sugar processors are not affected and certain other conditions are met. 

In January 1998, the partnerships (through the attorneys for the majority bondholders) filed an answer denying the allegations 
in FPL's complaint and asserting a counterclaim for approximately $2 billion of actual damages, consisting of all capacity 
payments that could have been made over the 30-year term of the power purchase agreements plus some security deposits. 
The partnerships also seek three times their actual damages for alleged violations of Florida antitrust laws by FPL. FPL 
Group and FPL Group Capital, plus attorneys' fees. In October 1998, the trial court dismissed all of the partnerships' antitrust 
claims against FPL. FPL Group and FPL Group Capital. The partnerships appealed the trial court's dismissal to the Fourth 
District Court of Appeal which affirmed the trial court's decision as to FPL Group and FPL Group Capital and dismissed as 
premature the Partnerships' appeal of the trial court's decision as to FPL. In June 1999. the partnerships' motion for summary 
judgment was denied; they have appealed. 

In July 1990, FPL entered into an amended and restated agreement (the contract) with a qualifying facility (as defined by 
PURPA) located in Duval County. Florida. Construction of the facility, which is owned by Cedar Bay Generating Company, 
L.P. (Cedar Bay), was financed in part by loans from institutional investors. including Paribas. 

The contract provides FPL with the right to dispatch the Cedar Bay facility "in any manner it deems appropriate." Despite this 
contractual right, Cedar Bay initiated an action in 1997 in the Circuit Court for Duval County, Florida, challenging, among 
other things. the manner in which the facility had been dispatched by FPL. Although the court granted summary judgment to 
FPL with regard to Cedar Bay's claim that FPL's dispatch decisions violated the express terms of the contract. it permitted a 
jury to hear Cedar Bay's claim that such dispatch decisions violated an implied duty of good faith and fair dealing. The jury 
awarded Cedar Bay approximately $13 million on this claim. Thereafter. the court entered a declaration that FPL was, in the 
future. to dispatch the Cedar Bay facility in accordance with certain specified parameters. FPL expects to recover the amount 
of this judgment through the capacity clause. 

FPL has appealed both the jury award and the court's declaration. In October 1999, afler FPL filed its notice of appeal in the 
Cedar Bay action. Paribas. on behalf of itself and a group of other Cedar Bay lenders, filed an action against FPL in the 
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Circuit Court of Duval County. The suit alleges breach of contract, breach of an implied duty of good faith and fair dealing, 
fraud, tortious interference with contract and several other claims regarding the manner in which FPL has dispatched the 
Cedar Bay facility. It seeks unspecified damages and other relief. 

FPL has moved to dismiss all counts of Paribas' complaint. If the jury award and court declaration in the Cedar Bay case is 
upheld fulty on appeal, Paribas apparently believes that, they and the other lenders have no claims against FPL (or at least 
would have no damages arising therefrom), and has therefore moved to stay its own action pending resolution of the appeal 
in the Cedar Bay action. 

In November 1999, the Attorney General of the United States, on behalf of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
brought an action in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Georgia against Georgia Power Company and other 
subsidiaries of The Southern Company for injunctive relief and the assessment of civil penalties for violations of the 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) provisions and the New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) of the Clean Air 
Act. Among other things, the EPA alleges Georgia Power Company constructed and is continuing to operate Scherer Unit 
No. 4, in which FPL owns a 76% interest. without obtaining a PSD permit, without complying with NSPS requirements, and 
without applying best available control technology for nitrogen oxides, sulfur dioxides and particulate matter as required by 
the Clean Air Act. The suit seeks injunctive relief requiring the installation of such technology and civil penalties of up to 
$25,000 per day for each violation from August 7, 1977 through January 30, 1997, and $27,000 per day for each violation 
thereafter. Georgia Power has filed an answer to the complaint asserting that it has complied with all requirements of the 
Clean Air Act, denying the plaintiffs allegations of liability, denying that the plaintiff is entitled to any of the relief that it seeks 
and raising various other defenses. 

In the event that FPL Group and FPL does not prevail in these suits, there may be a material adverse effect on their financial 
statements. However, FPL Group and FPL believe that they have meritorious defenses to the litigation and are vigorously 
defending these suits. Accordingly, the liabilities, if any. arising from these proceedings are not anticipated to have a material 
adverse effect on their financial statements. 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

None 
PART II 

Item 5. Market for the Registrants' Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters 

Common Stock Data. All of FPCs common stock is owned by FPL Group. FPL Group's common stock is traded on the New 
York Stock Exchange. The high and low sales prices for the common stock of FPL Group as reported in the consolidated 
transaction reporting system of the New York Stock Exchange for each quarter during the past two years are as follows: 

1999 1998 
Quarter H i s h  LOW LOW 

F l r 5 t  ....................................................... 561 15/16 550 1/8 565 3/16 156 1/16 
second ...................................................... 160 1/2 552 7/8 565 5/8 158 11/16 
Third ....................................................... 156 11/16 149 1/8 570 159 11/16 
Fourth ...................................................... 152 1/2 141 1/8 172 9/16 560 1/2 

Approximate Number of Stockholders. As of the close of business on January 31, 2000, there were 49,694 holders of 
record of FPL Group's common stock. 

Dividends. Quarterly dividends have been paid on common stock of FPL Group during the past two years in the following 
amounts: 

OUaPter  -Ex?& 
$0.52 10.50 
50.52 50.50 
50.52 50.50 
50.52 50.50 

The amount and timing of dividends payable on FPL Group's common stock are within the sole discretion of FPL Group's 
board of directors. The board of directors reviews the dividend rate at least annually (in February) to determine its 
appropriateness in light of FPL Group's financial position and results of operations, legislative and regulatory developments 
affecting the electric utilily industry in general and FPL in particular, competitive conditions and any other factors the board 
deems relevant. The ability of FPL Group to pay dividends on its common stock is dependent upon dividends paid to it by its 
subsidiaries, primarily FPL. There are no restrictions in effect that currently limit FPCs ability to pay dividends to FPL Group. 
See Management's Discussion - Liquidity and Capital Resources and Note 4 - Common Stock Dividend Restrictions 
regarding dividends paid by FPL to FPL Group. 

11 



i1 
L 6E 

51 51 i1 
PLE 18E 68E 
L60'E ESI'E 602'2 992's 

960'81 06P.91 LPO'EI 208'91 
Em's1 P90.91 FT9'91 L68'LI 
__~ 
Z'P rwFF 9.1 9'2 1.2 Z'E 
6.P L'P L.P P.P 
5.8s 9'8s 8'66 8'8E 

%8'0S %I.IS %9.0S %6'05 

9SL'6L 688'08 bEL'Z8 2% :68 
P60'E I T86'2 I OZP'Z I 161 Z I 
892 I 165 I 809 I 919 I 
OES'S I 986's I ZE1'9 I WE'9 I 
ISL'III IES'TTI ZLI'ITI 8PL'OlI 

95L'6L 688'08 ZP9'P8 lPO'T6 
OSIZPI- I -I 
6LT I 281 I 981 I 9P1 I 
LLE'E I PPI'E I 6P6'2 I LPE'Z S 
6SP'ZII 6T2'215 6PP'ZTI 620'211 
9L'I I P8'T I 26'1 I 00'2 f 
91'E I EE'E I L5'E I 58'E I 
E55 I 6LS I 819 I P99 S 
265'5 I LE0'9 I 69E'9 I 199'9 I 

E 
91 
SOP 
ZEE'E 
LSO'LT 
S19'LI 

%rrom 
r 0.E 
S'P 
E'OP 

%Z'OS 

L90'88 
SLO'Z I 
809'011 
9LS I 
LS0'9 I 

WP'26 
-I 
LSI I 
8LP'E I 
TPP'EII 
80'2 f 
LO'P I 
L69 I 
8EP'9 I 

......................... 

................. 

............................ ................... 

......... 

............................... 

............ 

.  MI) sales AbJau3 ............... sagi~nles 1ua~~n3 6uLpn~xa 

6urpnl>xa 'aseal ieirde2 Japun i& 40 suorle6rlqo ............ saia~~niew aua~~n3 6urpn~xa 'iqap u~ai-buo, 
............................................ C,aCFP ,el", -----~ k---- 
................ )(3ois uouuo3 p a~eqs ,ad pied rpuap!nra 

(P))(3015 UWu103 40 aJeqS ,ad S6tlbUJe3 
amox: am 

:(slunowe adeqs 4ad lda3xa 'suo!LLbw) 

................... .............................................. ...................................... sanuana~ 6u~le~ado 

dWU3 ld3 30 VlVO (13133135 



1999, provides for a $350 million reduction in annual revenues from retail base operations allocated to all customers on a 
cents-per-kilowatt-hour basis. Additionally. the agreement sets forth a revenue sharing mechanism for each of the twelve- 
month periods covered by the agreement, whereby revenues from retail base operations in excess of a stated threshold will 
be shared on the basis of two-thirds refunded to retail customers and one-third retained by FPL. Revenues from retail base 
operations in excess of a second threshold will be refunded 100% to retail customers. 

The thresholds are as follows: 

Twelve Months Ended 
A D r i l  14, 

zoo0 ZOO2 

Threshold t o  refund 66 2/3% t o  customers .... . 13.400 53,450 13.500 
Threshold to refund 100% t o  cwtomers  . . . ._. . .  13.556 13,606 $3.656 

Offsetting the annual revenue reduction will be lower special depreciation. The agreement allows for special depreciation of up to 
$100 million, at FPL's discretion, in each year of the three-year agreement period to be applied to nuclear andlor fossil generating 
assets. Under this new depreciation program. FPL recorded approximately $70 million of special depreciation in 1999. The new 
depreciation program replaced a revenue-based special amortization program whereby special amortization in the amount of $63 
million, $378 million and $199 million was recorded in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 

In addition, the agreement lowered FPL's authorized regulatory ROE range to 10% - 12%. During the term of the agreement, 
the achieved ROE may from time to time be outside the authorized range, and the revenue sharing mechanism described 
above is specified to be the appropriate and exclusive mechanism to address that circumstance. FPL reported an ROE of 
12.1%, 12.6% and 12.3% in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. See Note 1 -Revenues and Rates. 

The decline in revenues from retail base operations during 1999 was to a large extent due to the negative impact of the 
agreement that reduced retail base revenues by approximately $300 million. A 2.8% decline in usage per retail customer 
mainly due to milder weather conditions than the prior year was almost entirely offset by an inaease in the number of 
customer accounts. The number of customer accounts grew 2% to approximately 3.8 million in 1999. 

The increase in retail base revenues in 1998 from 1997 reflects a 4.8% increase in usage per retail customer from warmer 
weather combined with a 1.8% increase in the number of customer accounts. 

FPL's O&M expenses in 1999 benefited from continued cost control efforts. This was partially offset by higher overhaul costs 
at fossil plants. O&M expenses increased in 1996 as a result of additional costs associated with improving the service 
reliability of FPL's distribution system, partially offset by lower nuclear maintenance costs and conservation clause expenses. 
Conservation clause expenses are essentially a pass-through and do not affect net income. 

Lower interest charges in 1999 and 1998 reflect lower average debt balances and the full amortization in 1998 of deferred 
costs associated with reacquired debt. 

The electric utility industry is facing increasing competitive pressure. FPL currently faces competition from other suppliers of 
electrical energy to wholesale customers and from alternative energy sources and self-generation for other customer groups, 
primarily industrial customers. In 1999, operating revenues from wholesale and industrial customers combined represented 
approximately 4% of FPL's total operating revenues. A number of potential merchant plants have been announced to date in 
Florida. However, only two submissions to seek a determination of need totaling approximately 1,000 mw have been 
presented to the FPSC. In March 1999, the FPSC approved one of the petitions for a power plant to be constructed within 
FPL's service territory. FPL. along with other Florida utilities, has appealed the decision to the Florida Supreme Court. Since 
there is no deregulation proposal currently under consideration in Florida, FPL is unable to predict the impact of a change to a 
more competitive environment or when such a change might occur. See Note 1 - Regulation. 

FPL Energy - FPL Energy's 1999 and 1998 operating results benefited from a 60% and 51% increase, respectively, in the 
generating capacity of FPL Energy's power plant portfolio. Operating results also benefited from improved results of a gas- 
fired power plant in the Mid-Atlantic region, mainly due to the financial restructuring of the project, renegotiation of fuel and 
power sales contracts. lower non-fuel OBM expenses and improved plant availability. The improvement in FPL Energy's 
1999 operating results were partly offset by higher administrative expenses to accommodate future growth. The generating 
capacity growth since 1997 is primarily the result of the acquisition of the Maine assets (1.1 17 mw). natural gas projects (300 
mw) in the Northeast region and several wind projects (291 mw) in the Central and West regions. 

In 1999, FPL Energy's operating results include the effect of a $176 million ($104 million after-tax) impairment loss. See 
Note 9. FPL Energy's 1998 operating results reflect the cost of terminating an interest rate swap agreement, partly offset by 
the receipt of a settlement relating to a contract dispute. 

Deregulation of the electric utility market presents both opportunities and risks for FPL Energy. Opportunities exist for the 
selective acquisition of generation assets that are being divested under deregulation plans and for the construction and 
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operation of efficient plants that can sell power in competitive markets. Substantially all of the energy produced in 1999 by 
FPL Energy's independent power projects was sold through power sales agreements with utilities that expire in 2000-24. As 
competitive wholesale markets become more accessible to other generators, obtaining power sales agreements will become 
a progressively more competitive process. FPL Energy expects that as its existing power sales agreements expire, more of 
the energy produced will be sold through shorter-term contracts and into competitive wholesale markets. 

Competitive wholesale markets in the United States continue to evolve and vary by geographic region. Revenues from 
electricity sales in these markets will vary based on the prices obtainable for energy, capacity and other ancillary services. 
Some of the factors affecting success in these markets include the ability to operate generating assets efficiently, the price 
and supply of fuel, transmission constraints, competition from new sources of generation, demand growth and exposure to 
legal and regulatory changes. 

Corporate and Other - In 1999, net income for the corporate and other segment reflects a $149 million ($96 million after-tax) 
gain on the sale of an investment in Adelphia Communications Corporation common stock, a $108 million ($66 million after- 
tax) gain recorded by FPL Group Capital on the redemption of its one-third equity interest in a cable limited partnership, costs 
associated with closing a retail marketing business and the favorable resolution of a prior year state tax matter. In 1998, net 
income for the corporate and other segment reflects a loss from the sale of Turner Foods Corporation's assets, the cost of 
terminating an agreement designed to fix interest rates and adjustments relating to prior years' tax matters, including the 
resolution of an audit issue with the Internal Revenue Service. 

Year 2000 - FPL Group did not experience any significant year 2000-related problems. The total cost of addressing year 
2000 issues was approximately $37 million. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

FPL Group's capital requirements consist of expenditures to meet increased electricity usage and customer growth of FPL 
and investment opportunities at FPL Energy. In 1999. FPL Group's capital expenditures reflect FPL Energy's investment in 
generating assets in Maine and the cost of constructing a natural gas power plant in Texas, as well as FPL's power plant 
expansion activities. As of December 31, 1999, FPL Energy has made commitments totaling approximately $72 million, 
primarily in connection with the development of an independent power project. Capital expenditures of FPL for the 2000-02 
period are expected to be approximately $3.1 billion, including $1.3 billion in 2000. FPL Group Capital and its subsidiaries 
have guaranteed approximately $680 million of purchased power agreement obligations, debt service payments and other 
payments subject to certain contingencies. See Note 12 - Commitments. 

Debt maturities of FPL Group's subsidiaries will require cash outflows of approximately $595 million ($420 million for FPL) 
through 2004, including $125 million for FPL in 2000. It is anticipated that cash requirements for capital expenditures, 
energy-related investments and debt maturities in 2000 will be satisfied with internally generated funds and debt issuances. 
Any internally generated funds not required for capital expenditures and current maturities may be used to reduce outstanding 
debt or repurchase common stock, or for investment. Any temporary cash needs will be met by short-term bank borrowings. 
In 1999 FPL Group Capital redeemed $125 million in debentures, which resulted in a loss on reacquired debt of 
approximately $8 million and issued $1.4 billion in debentures. primarily to finance FPL Energy's generating capacity growth. 
In 1999, FPL had $230 million in first mortgage bonds mature and issued $225 million in first mortgage bonds, primarily to 
redeem $216 million first mortgage bonds with a 2% higher interest rate. Bank lines of credit currently available to FPL Group 
and its subsidiaries aggregate $2.4 billion ($880 million for FPL). 

During 1999. FPL Group repurchased 2.2 million shares of common stock under the 10 million share repurchase program. 
As of December 31, 1999, FPL Group is authorized to repurchase an additional 6.2 million shares under this program. 

FPL self-insures for damage to certain transmission and distribution properties and maintains a funded storm reserve to 
reduce the financial impact of storm losses. The balance of the storm fund reserve at December 31. 1999 and 1998 was 
$216 million and $259 million, respectively. During 1999, storm fund reserves were reduced to rewver the costs associated 
with three storms. Bank lines of credit of $300 million, included in the $880 million above, are also available if needed to 
provide cash for storm restoration costs. The FPSC has indicated that it would consider future storm losses in excess of the 
funded reserve for possible recovev from customers. 

FPL's charter and mortgage contain provisions which, under certain conditions. restrict the payment of dividends and the 
issuance of additional unsecured debt, first mortgage bonds and preferred stock. Given FPL's current financial condition and 
level of earnings, expected financing activities and dividends are not affected by these limitations. 
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New Accounting Rule 

In June 1998, the Financkl Accounting Standards Board issued Financial Accounting Standards No. (FAS) 133. "Acmunling for 
Derivative lnstwmenls and Hedging Activities." The statement establishes accounting and reporting standards requiring that 
every derivative instrument (including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts) be recorded in the balance 
sheet as either an asset or liability measured at its fair value. The statement requires that changes in the derivative's fair Value 
be recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. FPL Group and FPL are currently 
assessing the effect, if any, on their financial statements of implementing FAS 133. FPL Group and FPL will be required to adopt 
FAS 133 beginning in 2001. 

Market Risk Sensitivity 

Substantially all financial instruments and positions held by FPL Group and FPL described below are held for purposes other 
than trading. 

lnterest rate risk - The special use funds of FPL include restricted funds set aside to cover the cost of storm damage and for 
the decommissioning of FPL's nuclear power plants. A portion of these funds is invested in fixed income debt securities 
camed at their market value of approximately $847 million and $650 million at December 31, 1999 and 1998. respectively. 
Adjustments to market value result in a corresponding adjustment to the related liability accounts based on current regulatory 
treatment. Because the funds set aside for storm damage could be needed at any time, the related investments are generally 
more liquid and. therefore, are less sensitive to changes in interest rates. The nuclear decommissioning funds, in contrast, 
are generally invested in longer-term securities, as decommissioning activities are not expected to begin until at least 2012. 
At December 31, 1999 and 1998. other investments of FPL Group include $291 million and $72 million. respectively, of 
investments that are carried at estimated fair value or cost. which approximates fair value. 

The following are estimates of the fair value of FPL's and FPL Group's long-term debt: 

1999 1998 
carrying F a i r  carrying Fa7 r 

( n i l l i  onn) 
value &&!2 la& 

Long-tem debt of FPL (a) . . _ _ _ . . . . _ _ . . _ . _ . .  $2,204 S2,123(b) 12.421 IZ.SOS(b) 
Long-term debt o f  FPL G W U ~  (a) . . . . . .__ . . . .  13.503 13,518(b) 12,706 I2.797(b) 

(a) Includes current rnatutities. 
(b) Based on quoted market prices for these or similar issues 

Market risk associated with all of these securities is estimated as the potential gain in fair value of net liabilities resulting from 
a hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates and amounts to $97 million and $68 million for FPL Group and $39 million and 
$60 million for FPL at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 

Equity price risk - Included in the special use funds of FPL are marketable equity securities carried at their market value of 
approximately $573 million and $556 million at December 31, 1999 and 1998. respectively. A hypothetical 10% decrease in 
the prices quoted by stock exchanges would result in a $56 million reduction in fair value and corresponding adjustment to 
the related liability accounts based on current regulatory treatment at both December 31, 1999 and 1998. 

Other risks - Under current cost-based regulation. FPL's cost of fuel is recovered through the fuel clause, with no effect on 
earnings. FPL's Energy Marketing 8 Trading Division buys and sells wholesale energy commodities. such as natural gas, oil 
and electric power. The division procures natural gas and oil for FPL's and FPL Energy's use in power generation and sells 
excess electric power. Substantially all of the result of the FPL activities are passed through to customers in the fuel or 
capacity clauses. FPL Energy's results of these activities are recognized in income by FPL Energy. The level of activity is 
expected to grow as FPL and FPL Energy seek to manage the risk associated with fluctuating commodity prices and increase 
the value of their power generation assets. At December 31, 1999, there were no material open positions in these activities. 

Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

See Management's Discussion - Market Risk Sensitivity 

~ 
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

FPL GROUP, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY: 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of FPL Group, Inc. and of Florida Power & Light Company, listed in 
the accompanying index at Item 14(a)l of this Annual Report (Form 10-K) to the Securities and Exchange Commission for the 
year ended December 31, 1999. These financial statements are the responsibility of the respective company's management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management. as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of FPL 
Group, Inc. and Florida Power & Light Company at December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the results of their operations and their 
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December31. 1999 in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

DELOIXE 8 TOUCHE LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 

Miami, Florida 
February 11,2000 
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OPERATING REVENUES . 

FPL GROUP, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

(millions, except per share amounts) 

Years Ended December 31. 
1999= 1997 

.......................... 16.438 
OPEMTING EXPENSES: 

Fuel ,  purchased power and interchange _ . .  ......... 2.365 2,244 2,255 ............................ o the r  operat ions and maintenance 1,322 1.284 1,231 
Deprec iat ion and amort izat ion . .  1,040 1.284 1,061 
Impairment l oss  on Maine asset3 176 
Taxes o the r  than income taxes ............................................ ssS;x 

To ta l  operat ing expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ............ 5.518-m 
OPERATING INCOME ................................................................... 920 1.252 .228 
OTHER INCOME ~ D F D I I r T T " t k C ~ ~  . ~ . ~ ~~ ~ _~.~.. . ........................... .............. ............ .............. (222) (322) (291) I n t e r e s t  charges 

Preferred s tock dividends - FPL (15) (15) (19) D i v e s t i t u r e  of cable investments ........................ .... 257 
Other - net  80 ....... ........................................ 

To ta l  o the r  incom - ne t  ......... ............ 
.................................... INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 1,020 943 922 

3 279 304 INCOME TAXES ............................................ 
............... NET INCOME L A . z L & a w  

................... 14.07 $3.85 13.57 Earnings per  share of common stock (basic and assuming d i l u t i o n )  
12.08 $2.00 11.92 Dividends per  share of common stock 

Average number of common shares outstanding . 171 173 173 
......... 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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FPL GROUP, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(millions) 

December 31. 1999- 1998 
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT: 

~ l e c t r i c  u t i l i t y  p l a n t , i n  serv ice  and . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $18.474 $17.592 146 
~ u c l e a r  f u e l  under c a p i t a l  lease - net 923 214 

157 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .............. 

aQ&?!2) LLi92) cons t ruc t ion  work i n  progress ........ 
L ~ S S  accumulated de r e c i a t i o n  and amor 9.264 8.555 To ta l  proper ty .  p?ant and equipment ............ 

361 187 
482 559 

CUStOner receivables.  n 343 282 
............ 54 82 ......... 156 ................. ................. 133- 
3 1.266 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
...................... cash and cash equivalen 

Mater ia ls .  supplies and ............... . . . . . . . . . . .  
............... . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ................... 

. . . .  1,352 1,206 
391 611 

spec ia l  use funds 
other investments 8 4 1 -  611 

.................. ................. OTHER ASSETS: 

............ o ther  2.804 2.208 To ta l  o ther  asset5 . 
.................. .................... Ilt441- TOTAL ASSETS ......... ... ........ 

CAPITALIZATION: ................................................................ I 5,370 I 5,126 

mna-term debt . ............................................................................ - 3.478 "-. 5.247 
226 226 common shareholders' e q u i t  

preferred s tock  of FPL w i t  ou t  s?nk ing  fund requirements ................................... 
I . 0 7 3  

- 
To ta l  c a p i t a l i z a t i o n  ..................................................................... Y . U 1 4  

......... 339 110 
359 125 

407 338 
284 282 
182 191 
116 89 

417-  272 ................ 1.870 1.641 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
shor t - te rm debt,  
a r r e n t  natur l t les  
ACCOUIICS payable,.. 
 customer^' deposl ts 

. . . . . . . .  

.................... 
...................... 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

1.079 1,255 
148 ft6 3nr 

OTHER LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CREDITS: 
Accumulated deferred income taxes ... 
Deferred regu la to ry  c r e d i t  - income t 
unamortized investment tax c r e d i t s  .. 216 259 storm and proper ty  insurance reserve  

2,689 Other 

LO* L"> . . . . . . . . . .  .................... 
... __ 892 822 .................. 

2.497 .... ......... TDta l i t i e s  and deferre 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

TOTAL CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES .............. llLaz9 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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FPL GROUP, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(millions) 

Years Ended December 31, 
1999 ~~ 1998 1997 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Net income ....................... 
Adjustments t o  reconc i le  n e t  incom 

Depreciat ion and amor t i za t ion  
Decrease i n  de fer red  income t a  
o t h e r  - n e t  ........................................................... 

Net cash p r o v i  opera t ing  a c t i v i t i e s  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
capital expenditures o f  FPL ..................................... 

............. 

other - net.... ............................................. 
Net cash used es ....................... 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Issuance of long-term debt .... .............. 
Retirement of long-term debt . ............................................. 
Increase (decrease) in shor - ............ 
Repurchase of common stock 
Dividends on common s tock  

Net cash provided by (used i n )  f inanc ing  a c t i v i t i e s  ................ 
Net increase (decrease) i n  cash and cash equiva .......... 
cash and cash equivalents a t  en% of year ................................ cash and cash equivalents a t  be i n n i n g  o f  year .......... 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION: 
cash paid f o r  i n t e r e s t  ........................................................... 

Debt assumed f a r  p roper ty  additions 

cash paid f o r  income taxes ....................................................... 
Add i t ions  t o  c a p i t a l  lease ob l iga t ions  ........................................... SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING AN0 FINANCING ACTIVTrIES: 

.............................................. 

I 697 

1.040 
(1;:) 

~ 1.563 

(861) 
(1.540) 

132 
198 

1.609 
(;si) 
(116) 
3) 
783 

& 
I 221 
I 573 

I 86 
I -  

I 664 I 618 

1,284 1,061 
(237) (30) 
32 2) m1.59 7  

343 42 
(727) (717) 
(24) 113 
(62) (48) 

133 (iI4;) 
dr3 
I 308 I 287 
I 463 I 434 

I 34 I 81 
I - I 420 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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FPL GROUP, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

(millions) 

Accumulated 
common stack a Addi t ional  o ther  C o r n "  

aggregit? pa id - In  unearned comprehensive Retained Shareholders' 
shares par value c a v i t a l  COnIDensatlon rncone (LOSS) Earninas Eaui tv  

Balances, December 3 1 ,  1996 . . . .  183 12 13.345 I(272) I -  $1,518 

. (33% 
Repurchase of common stock _ . .  (1) (48) 

618 Net income ................... - 

Dividends on  onion stock - 
Earned compensation under ESOP - 
o ther  comvrehensive income - 

. 
.... n 

1 
6 ... 

other  ......................... 
~a lanc?s .  December 3 1 ,  1997 . . . . .  

Net income ................... 
Repurchase of common stock . . .  
Dividends on cornon stock . . . .  
Earned compensation under ESOP 
o ther  comprehensive income ... 
other  ........................ 

8alances. oecember 31. 1998 .... 

other  

338) 
( 6 2 )  

13 

(116) 

12 
. 

12 

(252) 

14 

2) 

- 
1 

- 
1 

~ 

1.804 
664 

(345) 

~ 

2.123 
697 

~ 

(355 )  

salances. December 31, 1999 . . . .  119(b) rZ Lt148 U) U) u &LAB 

(a) 
(b) 

$0.01 par value. authorized - 300,000.000 shares: outstanding 178.554.735 and 180,712,435 at December 31, 1999 and 1998. respecuvely. 
Outstanding and unallocaled shares held by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan Trust Iotaled 8 million. 9 million and 9 million at December 31. 1999. 1998 
and 1997. respectively. 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

(millions) 

Year Ended December 31. 
dm1997 

OPERATING REVENUES ........................................................... 
OPERATING EXPENSES: 

Fue l ,  purchased power and interchange ........................................... 
other  opera t i  

income faxes 

T o t a l  operat ing expenses 

OPERATING INCOME ......... 
OTHER INCOME (DEDUCTIONS): 

I n t e r e s t  charges 
other - net  ................... .............. 

Tota l  o ther  deductions - n e t  .............. 
NET INCOME ........................................................................ 
PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS ...... .................... 
NET INCOME AVAILABLE TO FPL GROU 

16.057 

2,232 
1,158 
989 
327 
605 zm 

746 

(162) 

IIm) 
591 

15 
L_5L6 

16.366 

2,175 
1.163 
1,249 
356 
596 I533 

827 

(196) 

IKzEi) 
631 

15 
s=aLi 

m 

2.196 
1,132 
1,034 
329 
592 

849 

(227) 
5 

627 

3) 

19 
L=!m 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(millions) 

December 31. 
1999- 1998 

ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT: . . .  117,556 $17.159 
(10.184) (9.317) 

Plan t  i n  serv ice 
7,372 7.842 L ~ S S  accumulated deprec iat ion 
157 146 

............. . . . . .  449 159 Nuclear f u e l  under c a p i t a l  
E l e c t r i c  U t i l i t y  plant ................ 7,978 8.147 cons t ruc t i on  work i n  progr  

............................ ........................ ........................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .......................... .................... Net 

~ ~ 

.......................... 

152 
433 521 

. . . . . . . . .  299 239 
82 . . . . . . . . . . . . .  54 

............. 107- 122 
893 1.116 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
cash and cash equivalents . . . . .  
Customer receivables. ne t  o f  a1 
Mater ia ls .  supplies and f o s s i l  

o the r  
Deferred clause expenses ....................... 

......................... ............................... To ta l  cu r ren t  assets . . . . . .  

specia l  use funds 1,352 1,206 
o the r  279 

OTHER ASSETS: ........................................................................ 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

To ta l  o t h e r  assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
TOlAL ASSETS ............................ ............................. ilQ.mBZl(Lz48 

........................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I 4,793 I 4.803 CAPITALIZATION: 
226 226 

2,079 2,191 ......... 7.098 7,220 

common shareholder 's  equ i t y  
Preferred s tack w i thou t  s,nking fund requiremen 
Long-term debt 

................. 

......... . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  To ta l  t a p i  t a l i  za t i on  . . . . . . . . . .  

94 
11: 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
comnercial paper .......................... ........... ........... 
cu r ren t  m a t u n t i e s  o f  long-term debt 
Accounts payable 
customers deposits 
Accrued i n t e r e s t  and 
Deferred clause revenues 
o the r  

. . . . . . . . . . .  ........... . . . . . .  
379 J L l  

.................. 284 282 
137 198 
116 89 

231 ....................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2 9 8 -  
1,433 1.351 

.................................... ....................... ............................... 
......... 
......... .... 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .......................... To ta l  cu r ren t  l i a b i l i t i e s  

OTHER LIABILITIES AND OEFERRED CREDITS: 
Accumulated deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ......................... 
Deferred regulatory  c r e d i t  - income taxes ........................... 
unamortized investment t a x  c r e d i t s  . . . . . . . .  ................................... 
Storm and proper ty  insurance reserve  
Other ............................... 

To ta l  o ther  l i a b i l i t i e s  and deferred c r e d i t s  .... ..................... 
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

TOTAL CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES . . . . . . . . . . .  ................................ 

802 
126 
184 
216 

749 
2.077 

887 
148 
205 
259 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(millions) 

CASH FLWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Net income ........................................ 
Adiustments to reconci le  n e t  income to net cash 

..... 
provided .by ,operat ing a c f i v i t i e s  : 

Depreciat ion and amort izat ion ........................................... 
Decrease i n  deferred income taxes and re la ted  regulatory  c r e d i t  .......... 
other  - net  ............................................................. 

Net cash provided by operat ing a c t i v i t i e s  ................................. 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

ca i t a 1  expenditures ........................................................ 
N e t  cash used i n  i nves t i ng  a c t i v i t i e s  ..................................... ot&r - net ................................................................. 

a s t i  FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTMTIES: 
Issuance of long-term debt ...... 
Retirement of long-term debt .... 
Increase (decrease) i n  commercial paper ....... ........................ 
c a p i t a l  cont r ibut ions f rom FPL G ~ O U P ,  I~C. _ _ _  ......... 
Dividends .................................................................... 

Net  cash used i n  f inanc ing a c t i v i t i e s  ............................... 
Net increase (decrease) i n  cash and cash equivalents ................... 
cash and cash equivalents a t  be i nn ing  o f  year ......... 
Cash and cash equivalents a t  ehj of year ....................................... 
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLW INFORMATION: 

cash paid for  i n t e r e s t  ............................................... 
Cash paid f o r  income taxes . _ . _  .... . . . . . . . . . . .  

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Addi t ions t o  c a p i t a l  lease ob l i ga t i ons  ....................................... 

Years Ended December 31. 
1999= 29% 

I 591 I 631 I 627 

989 1,249 1,034 
(105) (202) (98) 

24 40 -1 
1 . 4 9 9 - M  

I 171 I 181 I 216 
I 503 I 510 I 575 

I 86 I 34 I 81 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 

(millions) 

Balances. December 31. 1996 _ . . _ _ _ . . _ . _ . . . . _ _ _ . . . . . _ .  
contributions from FPL croup. xnc. _ _ _ . _ . _ _ . . _  
N e t  income a v a i l a b l e  t o  FP 
Dividends t o  FPL Group. I n  
Other  . . _ _ _ _ _ _ . . _ . . . . . . _ _ _  
Net income a v a i l a b l e  t o  FP 

Balances. December 31, 1997 

Balances, December 31.  1998 _ . . . . _ _ _ . . . _ . . . _ _ _ . . . _ _ _ .  

Balances, December 31, 1999 

Net,income a v a i l a b l e  t o  FPL Group. IK. 
Divrdends t o  FPL Group. I n  

COrnO” 
5LQCLm 

11.373 

~ 

1.373 

~ 

1,373 

$zzz5 
(a) Common stock. no par value, 1,000 Shares aUthOrKed issued and outstanding. 

Addit ional 
Paid-In C a n i t a l  

$2,424 
140 

1 
2,566 

~ 

2,566 

z5S 

Retained 
Earninsr 

$871 

common 
shareholder’s 

EgUi tY  

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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FPL GROUP, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER B LIGHT COMPANY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended December 31,1999,1998 and 1997 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies 

Basis of Presentation - FPL Group, Inc.'s (FPL Group) operations are conducted primarily through Florida Power 8 Light 
Company (FPL) and FPL Energy, LLC (FPL Energy), formerly FPL Energy. Inc. FPL, a rate-regulated public utility, supplies 
electric service to approximately 3.8 million customers throughout most of the east and lower west coasts of Florida. FPL 
Energy invests in independent power projects through both controlled and consolidated entities and non-controlling 
ownership interests in joint ventures accounted for under the equity method. 

The consolidated financial statements of FPL Group and FPL include the accounts of their respective majority-owned and 
controlled subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
Certain amounts included in prior years' consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current 
year's presentation. The preparation of financial statements requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

Regulation - FPL is subject to regulation by the Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC) and the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC). Its rates are designed to recover the cost of providing electric service to its customers 
including a reasonable rate of retum on invested capital. As a result of this cost-based regulation, FPL follows the accounting 
practices set forth in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. (FAS) 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types 
of Regulation." FAS 71 indicates that regulators can create assets and impose liabilities that would not be recorded by 
unregulated entities. Regulatory assets and liabilities represent probable future revenues that will be recovered from or 
refunded to customers through the ratemaking process. The continued applicability of FAS 71 is assessed at each reporting 
period. 

In the event that FPL's generating operations are no longer subject to the provisions of FAS 71, portions of the existing 
regulatory assets and liabilities that relate to generation would be written off unless regulators specify an alternative means of 
recovery or refund. The principal regulatory assets and liabilities are as follows: 

December 31, 
1999 1998 

(mm 1 l i o 5  
- 

Assets (included i n  o ther  assets): 
unamortized debt r e x  u i s i t i o n  costs ...................................................... I 1 2  1 - 
Deferred Department 07 Energy assessment .................................................. I 39 I 44 

L i a b i l i t i e s :  
............ $126 5148 Deferred regulatory c r e d i t  - income taxes 

unamortized investment tax  cred i ts  ..... 1184 1205 
Srorm and property insurance reserve (see Note 12 - Insurance) ............................. 5216 5259 

The amounts presented above exclude clause-related regulatory assets and liabilities that are recovered or refunded over 
twelve-month periods. These amounts are included in current assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. 
Further, other aspects of the business, such as generation assets and long-term power purchase commitments, would need 
to be reviewed to assess their recoverability in a changed regulatory environment. Since there is no deregulation proposal 
currently under consideration in Florida, FPL is unable to predict the impact of a change to a more competitive environment or 
when such a change might occur. 

Almost half of the states, other than Florida, have enacted legislation or have state commissions that issued orders designed 
to deregulate the production and sale of electricity. By allowing customers to choose their electricity supplier, deregulation is 
expected to result in a shift from cost-based rates to market-based rates for energy production and other services provided to 
retail customers. Similar initiatives are also being pursued on the federal level. Although the legislation and initiatives vary 
substantially, common areas of focus include when market-based pricing will be available for wholesale and retail customers, 
what existing prudently incurred costs in excess of the market-based price will be recoverable and whether generation assets 
should be separated from transmission, distribution and other assets. It is generally believed transmission and distribution 
activities would remain regulated. 

In December 1999, the FERC issued its final order on regional transmission organizations or RTOs. RTOs. under a variety of 
structures. provide for the independent operation of transmission systems for a given geographic area. The final order 
establishes guidelines for public utilities to use in considering andlor developing plans to initiate operations of RTOs. The 
order requires all public utilities to file with the FERC by October 15. 2000, a proposal for an RTO with certain minimum 
characteristics and functions to be operational by December 15. 2001, or alternatively, a description of efforts to participate in 
an RTO. any existing obstacles to RTO participation and any plans to work toward RTO participation. FPL is evaluating 
various alternatives for compliance with the order. 
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FPL GROUP, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER B LIGHT COMPANY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Revenues and Rates - FPL's retail and wholesale utility rate schedules are approved by the FPSC and the FERC. 
respectively. FPL records unbilled base revenues for the estimated amount of energy delivered to customers but not yet 
billed. Unbilled base revenues are included in customer receivables and amounted to $130 million and $152 million at 
December 31, 1999 and 1998. respectively. Substantially all of the energy produced by FPL Energy's independent power 
projects is sold through long-term power sales agreements with utilities and revenue is recorded on an as-billed basis. 

In 1999. the FPSC approved a three-year agreement among FPL. the State of Florida Oftice of Public Counsel (Public 
Counsel). The Florida Industrial Power Users Group (FIPUG) and The Coalition for Equitable Rates (Coalition) regarding 
FPL's retail base rates, authorized regulatory return on common equity (ROE), capital structure and other matters. The 
agreement, which became effective April 15, 1999. provides for a $350 million reduction in annual revenues from retail base 
operations allocated to all customers on a cents-per-kilowatt-hour basis. Additionally, the agreement sets forth a revenue 
sharing mechanism for each of the twelvemonth periods covered by the agreement, whereby revenues from retail base 
operations in excess of a stated threshold will be shared on the basis of two-thirds refunded to retail customers and one-third 
retained by FPL. Revenues from retail base operations in excess of a second threshold will be refunded 100% to retail 
customers. 

The thresholds are as follows: 

Twelve Months Ended 
A D r i l  14 .  
2001 2002 zooo ( r n r n " S )  ~ 

Threshold t o  refund 66 2/3% t o  CUstomerS ..... 13,400 1 3 , 4 5 0  S3.500 
Threshold t o  refund 100% to customers _ _ . _ . . . _  $3.556 $3,606 $3.656 

In addition, the agreement lowered FPL's authorized regulatory ROE range to 10% - 12%. During the term of the agreement, 
the achieved ROE may from time to time be outside the authorized range, and the revenue sharing mechanism described 
above is specified to be the appropriate and exclusive mechanism to address that circumstance. For purposes of calculating 
ROE, the agreement establishes a cap on FPL's adjusted equity ratio of 55.83%. The adjusted equity ratio reflects a 
discounted amount for off-balance sheet obligations under certain long-term purchased power contracts. Finally, the 
agreement established a new special depreciation program (see Electric Plant. Depreciation and Amortization) and includes 
provisions which limit depreciation rates, and accruals for nuclear decommissioning and fossil dismantlement costs. to 
currently approved levels and limit amounts recoverable under the environmental compliance cost recovery clause during the 
term of the agreement. 

The agreement states that Public Counsel, FIPUG and Coalition will neither seek nor support any additional base rate 
reductions during the three-year term of the agreement unless such reduction is initiated by FPL. Further, FPL agreed to not 
petition for any base rate increases that would take effect during the term of the agreement. 

FPL's revenues include amounts resulting from cost recovery clauses, certain revenue taxes and franchise fees. Cost 
recovery clauses, which are designed to permit full recovery of certain costs and provide a return on certain assets utilized by 
these programs. include substantially all fuel. purchased power and interchange expenses, conservation- and environmental- 
related expenses and certain revenue taxes. Revenues from cost recovery clauses are recorded when billed; FPL achieves 
matching of costs and related revenues by deferring the net under or over recovery. Any under recovered costs or over 
recovered revenues are collected from or returned to customers in subsequent periods. 

Electric Plant, Depreciation and Amortization - The cost of additions to units of utility property of FPL and FPL Energy is 
added to electric utility plant. In accordance with regulatory accounting, the cost of FPL's units of utility property retired. less 
net salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation. Maintenance and repairs of property as well as replacements and 
renewals of items determined to be less than units of utility property are charged to other operations and maintenance (O&M) 
expenses. At December 31, 1999. the generating, transmission, distribution and general facilities of FPL represented 
approximately 45%. 13%, 35% and 7%. respectively, of FPL's gross investment in electric utility plant in service. 
Substantially all electric utility plant of FPL is subject to the lien of a mortgage securing FPL's first mortgage bonds. 

Depreciation of electric property is primarily provided on a straight-line average remaining life basis. FPL includes in 
depreciation expense a provision for fossil plant dismantlement and nuclear plant decommissioning. For substantially all of 
FPL's property, depreciation and fossil fuel plant dismantlement studies are performed and filed with the FPSC at least every 
four years. In April 1999. the FPSC granted final approval of FPL's most recent depreciation studies. which were effective 
January 1, 1998. Fossil fuel plant dismantlement studies were filed in September 1998 and were effective January 1. 1999. 
The weighted annual composite depreciation rate for FPL's electric plant in service was approximately 4.3% for 1999. 4.4% 
for 1998 and 4.3% for 1997. exduding the effects of decommissioning and dismantlement. Further, these rates exclude the 
special and plant-related deferred cost amortization discussed below. 
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FPL GROUP, INC. ANQ FLORIDA POWER i3 LIGHT COMPANY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDAtED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

The agreemen! that reduced FPL's base rates (see Revenues and Rates) also allows for special depreciation of up to $100 
million, at FPL's discretion, in each year of the threwear agreement period to be applied to nudear andlor fossil generating 
assets. Under this new depreciation program, FPL recorded approximately $70 million of special depreciation in 1999. The new 
depreciation program replaced a revenue-based special amortization program whereby FPL recorded as depreciation and 
amortization expense a fixed amount of $9 million in 1999 and 530 million in 1998 and 1997 for nudear assets. FPL also 
recorded under this program variable amortization based on the actual level of retail base revenues compared to a fixed amount. 
The variable amounts recorded in 1999, 1998 and 1947 were $54 million, $348 million and $169 million, respectively. The 1998 
and 1997 variable amounts indude. as depreciation ahd amortization expense, $161 million and $169 million, respectively, for 
amortization of regulatory assets. The remaining variable amounts were applied against nudear and fossil production assets. 
Additionally, FPL completed amortization of certain plant-related deferred costs by recording $24 million and $22 million, in 1998 
and 1997, respectively. These wsts are considered recoverable costs and are monitored through the monthly reporting process 
with the FPSC. 

Nuclear Fuel - FPL leases nuclear fuel for all four of its nuclear units. Nuclear fuel lease expense was $83 million, $83 million 
and $85 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Included in this expense was an interest component of $8 million, $9 
million and $9 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Nuclear fuel lease payments and a charge for spent nuclear fuel 
disposal are charged to fuel expense on a unit of production method. These costs are recovered through the fuel and 
purchased power cost recoveq clause (fuel clause). Under certain circumstances of lease termination, FPL is required to 
purchase all nuclear fuel in whatever form at a purchase price designed to allow the lessor to recover its net investment cost 
in the fuel, which totaled $157 million at December 31, 1999. For ratemaking. these leases are classified as operating leases. 
For financial reporting. the capital lease obligation is recorded at the amount due in the event of lease termination. 

Decommissioning and Dismantlement of Generating Plant - FPL accrues nuclear decommissioning costs over the expected 
service life of each unit. Nuclear decommissioning studies are performed at least every five years and are submitted to the 
FPSC for approval. In October 1998, FPL filed updated nuclear decommissioning studies with the FPSC. These studies 
assume prompt dismantlement for the Turkey Point Units Nos. 3 and 4 with decommissioning activities commencing in 2012 
and 2013, respectively. Current plans call for St Lucie Unit No. 1 to be mothballed beginning in 2016 with decommissioning 
activities to be integrated with the prompt dismantlement of St. Lucie Unit No. 2 beginning in 2023. These studies also 
assume that FPL will be storing spent fuel on site pending removal to a U.S. Government facility. The studies, which are 
pending FPSC approval, indicate FPL's portion of the ultimate costs of decommissioning its four nuclear units. including costs 
associated with spent fuel storage, to be $7.3 billian. Dewmmissioning expense accruals included in depreciation and 
amortization expense, were $85 million in each of the years 1999, 1998 and 1997. FPL's portion of the ultimate cost of 
decommissioning its four units, expressed in 1999 dollars, is currently estimated to aggregate $1.7 billion. At December 31, 
1999 and 1998, the accumulated provision for nuclear decommissioning totaled approximately $1.4 billion and $1.2 billion, 
respectively, and is included in accumulated depreciation. See Electric Plant, Depreciation and Amortization. 

Similarly. FPL accrues the cost of dismantling its fossil fuel plants over the expected service life of each unit. Fossil 
dismantlement expense was $17 million in each of the years 1999. 1998 and 1997. and is included in depreciation and 
amortization expense. FPL's portion of the ultimate $ost to dismantle its fossil units is 5482 million. At December 31. 1999 
and 1998. the accumulated provision for fossil dismantlement totaled $232 million and $185 million, respectively, and is 
included in accumulated depreciation. The dismantlement studies filed in 1998 indicated an estimated reserve deficiency of 
$38 million, which was recovered through the special amortization program. See Electric Plant, Depreciation and 
Amortization. 

Restricted trust funds for the payment of future expenditures to decommission FPL's nuclear units are included in special use 
funds of FPL. Securities held in the decommissioning fund are carried at market value with market adjustments resulting in a 
corresponding adjustment to the accumulated provision for nuclear decommissioning. See Note 3 - Special Use Funds. 
Contributions to the funds are based on current period decommissioning expense. Additionally, fund earnings, net of taxes 
are reinvested in the funds. The tax effects of amounts not yet recognized for tax purposes are included in accumulated 
deferred income taxes. 

ACCNal for Major Maintenance Costs - Consistent with regulatory treatment, FPL's estimated nudear maintenance costs for 
each nuclear unit's next planned outage are accrued over the period from the end of the last outage to the end of the next 
planned outage. The accrual for nuclear maintenance costs at December 31, 1999 and 1998 totaled $42 million and $31 
million. respectively. Any difference between the estimated and actual costs are included in O&M expenses when known. 

FPL Energy's estimated major maintenance costs for each unit's next planned outage are accrued over the period from the 
end of the last outage to the end of the next planned outage. The accrual for FPL Energy's major maintenance costs at 
December 31, 1999 and 1998 totaled 533 million and $2 million, respectively. Any difference between the estimated and 
actual costs are included in 0&M expenses when known. 
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FPL GROUP, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Construction Activity - In accordance with an FPSC rule, FPL is not permitted to capitalize interest or a return on common 
equity during construction, except for projects that cost in excess of 1/2% of the plant in service balance and will require more 
than one year to complete. The FPSC allows construction projects below that threshold as an element of rate base. FPL 
Group's unregulated operations capitalize interest on construction projects. 

Stom and Property Insurance Reserve Fund (storm fund) - The storm fund provides coverage toward storm damage costs 
and possible retrospective premium assessments stemming from a nuclear incident under the various insurance programs 
covering FPCs nuclear generating plants. Securities held in the fund are carried at market value with market adjustments 
resulting in a corresponding adjustment to the storm and property insurance reserve. See Note 3 - Special Use Funds and 
Note 12 - Insurance. Fund earnings, net of taxes, are reinvested in the fund. The tax effects of amounts not yet recognized 
for tax purposes are included in accumulated deferred income taxes. 

Other Investments - Included in other investments in FPL Group's consolidated balance sheets is FPL Group's participation in 
leveraged leases of $154 million at both December31, 1999 and 1998. Additionally. other investments include notes 
receivable and non-controlling non-majority owned interests in partnerships and joint ventures, essentially all of which are 
accounted for under the equity method. See Note 3. 

Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents consist of short-term. highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months 
or less. 

Retirement of Long-Term Debt - The excess of FPL's reacquisition cost over the book value of long-term debt is deferred and 
amortized to expense ratably over the remaining life of the original issue, which is consistent with its treatment in the 
ratemaking process. Through this amortization and amounts recorded under the special amortization program, the remaining 
balance of this regulatory asset was fully amortized in 1998. Retirements of debt, afler the special amortization program 
terminated on April 14, 1999, resulted in additional reacquisition costs. See Regulation. FPL Group Capital Inc (FPL Group 
Capital) expenses this cost in the period incurred. 

Income Taxes - Deferred income taxes are provided on all significant temporary differences between the financial statement 
and tax bases of assets and liabilities. FPL is included in the consolidated federal income tax return filed by FPL Group. FPL 
determines its income tax provision on the "separate return method." The deferred regulatory credit - income taxes of FPL 
represents the revenue equivalent of the difference in accumulated deferred income taxes computed under FAS 109, 
"Accounting for Income Taxes." as compared to regulatory accounting rules. This amount is being amortized in accordance 
with the regulatory treatment over the estimated lives of the assets or liabilities which resulted in the initial recognition of the 
deferred tax amount. Investment tax credits (ITC) for FPL are deferred and amortized lo income over the approximate lives of 
the related property in accordance with the regulatory treatment. The special amortization program included amortization of 
regulatory assets related to income taxes of $59 million in 1997. 

Accounting for Derivative lnstmments and Hedging Activities - In June 1998. the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued 
FAS 133. "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." The statement establishes accounting and reporting 
standards requiring that every derivative instrument (including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts) be 
recorded in the balance sheet as either an asset or liability measured at its fair value. The statement requires that changes in the 
derivative's fair value be recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. FPL Group and FPL 
are currently assessing the effect, if any, on their financial statements of implementing FAS 133. FPL Group and FPL will be 
required to adopt FAS 133 beginning in 2001. 
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FPL GROUP, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

2. Employee Retirement Benefits 

FPL Group and its subsidiaries sponsor a noncontributoly defined benefit pension plan and defined benefit postretirement 
plans for health care and life insurance benefits (other benefits) for substantially all employees. The following tables provide 
a reconciliation of the changes in the plans' benefit obligations and fair value of assets over the two-year period ending 
September 30, 1999 and a statement of the funded status of both years: 

Pension Benef i t s  Other B n e f i t s  
1999 .a 1999 e J$$& 

(mill ions)- 

chan e i n  benef i t  o b l i g a t i o n :  
Obqigation a t  October 1 o f  p r i o r  year . 
serv ice cost .......................... 
I n t e r e s t  cost  ......................... 
P a r t i c i p a n t  con t r ibu t ions  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Plan amendments ....................... 
Actuar ia l  (gains) losses - net  ........ 
Acqu is i t ions  .......................... 
Benefi t  payments ...................... 

Obl iga t ion  a t  September 30 .............. 

..................... ..................... ..................... ..................... ..................... ..................... ..................... 

..................... ..................... 

11.173 
46 
71 

11.146 
45 
75 

8 
34 - rn u 

1 324 
5 
21 
1 

10 

change i n  p lan  assets: ....... F a i r  value of p lan  assets a t  October 1 of p r i o r  year 2,329 2,287 115 125 
Actual r e t u r n  on p l a n  asset5 310 184 12 7 

2 1 P a r t i c i p a n t  con t r ibu t ions  

lls 

............................... .................................. 
Benefi t  payments and expenses .............................. 2) *) .................... F a i r  value of p lan  assets at September 30 

Funded Status: .............................. (224) (230) Funded s ta tus  a t  September 30 1.377 1,156 
(89) (100) Unrecognized p r i o r  serv ice  cost - 

Prepai% (accrued) benef i t  cost  a t  FPL Group ................ __ ~ 

Prepaid (accrued) benef i t  cost  a t  FPL 

............................ ................. unrecognized t r a n s i t i o n  (asset) o b l i g a t i o n  (117) (140) 45 49 

U) &4L?A) 

................................... Unreco n i r e d  (gain) loss  -1 &I 

...................... 

The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit cost for the plans for the years ended December 31, 
1999,1998 and 1997: 

Pension Benef i t s  her  Benef i t s  
1999 1998 1997 

serv ice cost ................................. 1 46 I 45 1 38 I 6  $ 6 1 6  
I n t e r e s t  cost  71 75 76 21 21 21 

Amort izat ion of p r i o r  serv ice cost (8) ( 8 )  . - - ~  1 1 Anwrt izat ion 
Net p e r i o d i c  . I 3%; 24 23 23 
Ef fec t  o f  Maine acqu1sl t lon 2 
Effect o f  spec ia l  re t i rement  program ......... 

................................ 
............... Expected r e t u r n  on p lan  assets (156) (149) (135) (7) c p  (;I 

Amort izat ion of t r a n s i t i o n  (asset) ob l iga t ion .  (23) (23) (2:) 3 

Net p e r i o d i c  (benefi t)  cost  a t  FPL Group ..... @) -) d) -e- 
........... - 

.................. - 
ot losses (gains) . .............. (26 
(benef i t ) ,cost  .................. *j %! 

N e t  p e r i o d i c  (benef i t )  Cost a t  FPL ........... U) u) L V L V L V  

The weighted-average discount rate used in determining the benefit obligations was 6.5% and 6.0% for 1999 and 1998. 
respectively. The assumed level of increase in future compensation levels was 5.5% for all years. The expected long-term 
rate of return on plan assets was 7.75% for all years. 

Based on the current discount rates and current health care costs, the projected 2000 trend assumptions used to measure 
the expected cost of benefits covered by the plans are 6.2% and 5.6%. for persons prior to age 65 and over age 65, 
respectively. The rate is assumed to decrease over the next 3 years to the ultimate trend rate of 5% for all age groups and 
remain at that level thereafter. 

Assumed health care cost trend rates can have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A 1% 
increase or decrease in assumed health care cost trend rates would have a corresponding effect on the sewice and interest 
cost components and the accumulated obligation of other benefits of approximately $1 million and $13 million, respectively 
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3. Financial Instruments 

The carrying amounts of cash equivalents and short-term debt approximate their fair values. At December 31, 1999 and 
1998. other investments of FPL Group include 5291 million and $72 million, respectively, of investments that are carried at 
estimated fair value or cost. which approximates fair value. The following estimates of the fair value of financial instruments 
have been made using available market information and other valuation methodologies. However, the use of different market 
assumptions or methods of valuation could result in different estimated fair values. 

Deember 31. 
1999 1998 

carrying Estirnared carrying Estimated 
A ~ O U M  Fa i r  value Amount Fa, P value 

(mi l l ions)  

Long-term debt o f  FPL (a) .................................... 12,204 12 123Cb) 12 ,421 12,50S(b) 
$ 3 :  518Cb) S2,706 $2,797(b) Long-term debt o f  FPL Group (a) _ . . _ _ . . _ _ _ _ . _ . . . _ . . . . _ . . . . _ _ . .  $3.603 

(a) Includes current matutities. 
(b) Based on quoted market p e e s  for these or Similar issues. 

Special Use Funds - The special use funds consist of storm fund assets totaling 5131 million and $160 million, and 
decommissioning fund assets totaling 51.220 billion and $1.046 billion at December 31, 1999 and 1998. respectively. 
Securities held in the special use funds are carried at estimated fair value. The nuclear decommissioning fund consists of 
approximately 40% equity securities and 60% municipal, government, corporate and mortgage- and other asset-backed debt 
securities with a weighted-average maturity of approximately ten years. The storm fund primarily consists of municipal debt 
securities with a weighted-average maturity of approximately four years. The cost of securities sold is determined on the 
specific identification method. The funds had approximate realized gains of $32 million and approximate realized losses of 
$22 million in 1999, $24 million and $4 million in 1998 and 53 million and $2 million in 1997. respectively. The funds had 
unrealized gains of approximately $286 million and $210 million at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively; the unrealized 
losses at those dates were approximately $17 million and 52 million. The proceeds from the sale of securities in 1999, 1998 
and 1997 were approximately $2.7 billion, $1.2 billion and $800 million, respectively. 

4. Common Stock 

Common Stock Dividend Restrictions - FPL Group's charter does not limit the dividends that may be paid on its common 
stock. As a practical matter, the ability of FPL Group to pay dividends on its common stock is dependent upon dividends paid 
to it by its subsidiaries, primarily FPL. FPL's charter and a mortgage securing FPL's first mortgage bonds contain provisions 
that, under certain conditions, restrict the payment of dividends and other distributions to FPL Group. These restrictions do 
not currently limit FPL's ability to pay dividends to FPL Group. In 1999, 1998 and 1997, FPL paid, as dividends to FPL Group. 
its net income available to FPL Group on a one-month lag basis. 

Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) - The employee thrift plans of FPL Group include a leveraged ESOP feature. 
Shares of common stock held by the Trust for the thrift plans Vrust) are used to provide all or a portion of the employers' 
matching contributions. Dividends received on all shares, along with cash contributions from the employers, are used to pay 
principal and interest on an ESOP loan held by FPL Group Capital. Dividends on shares allocated to employee accounts and 
used by the Trust for debt service are replaced with an equivalent amount of shares of common stock at prevailing market 
prices. 

ESOP-related compensation expense of approximately $21 million in 1999 and $19 million in each of the years 1998 and 
1997 was recognized based on the fair value of shares allocated to employee accounts during the period. Interest income on 
the ESOP loan is eliminated in consolidation. ESOP-related unearned compensation included as a reduction of shareholders' 
equity at December 31, 1999 was approximately $233 million. representing I3 million unallocated shares at the original iSSUe 
price of 529 per share. The fair value of the ESOP-related unearned compensation account using the closing prim Of FPL 
Group stock as of December 31, 1999 was approximately $344 million. 
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Long-Term Incentive Plan - As of December 31, 1999, 9 million shares of common stock are reserved and available for 
awards to officers and employees of FPL Group and its subsidiaries under FPL Group's long-term incentive plan. Restricted 
stock is issued at market value at the date of grant, typically vests within four years and is subject to, among other things, 
restrictions on transferability. Performance share awards are typically payable at the end of a three- or four-year performance 
period and are subject to risk of forfeiture if the specified performance criteria is not met within the restriction period. The 
changes in share awards under the incentive plan are as follows: 

Restr ic ted Performance 
stock shares (a) omions (a) 

Balances. December 31, 1996 
Granted ............................ 
Paid/released ......... 

............... 
........... 

Granted .._ 
Forfe i ted .............. 

Balances. oecenber 31. 1999 .......... 

166.300 
711000(b) 

(17.750) 
219,550 

(22.250) 
216,800 
21O,lOO(b) 

19, SOO(b) 
. 

CWLli, 
aA&Q&! 

311,527 
212.Oll(C) 
(70,008) m!La) 
442,588 
178.518(c) 
(80.920) 

510.620 
294,662(c) 
(78.640) 
(80.027) 
&$!L&u 

. 

l,300,000(d) 

(200.000) 
LJ!BAX!(e) 

(ai 

(bl 
(FI 
ldi 

le, 

Pertormance %haref and options msu~lm in approximaley 253000 126.000 ana 132 000 assumed ncremenlal shams 01 wmmon SIDW oulslanalng lor 
p~rposes 01 mmputing dhlea eammgs per snare m 1999. 1996 ana 1997 rerpmvely These neremenlal shares d.d no1 change basc earnmgs per share 
The weighled-average grant dale lati value 01 resufned stock granted n 1999 1998 ana 1997 was $53 21 $61 89 and $55 25 respectlvey 
Tne wetghled-average grant dale lair va be 01 pertomance shares granlea m 1999. 1998 and I997 was $61 19. $59 19 and $45 63 rerpecbvery 
me weighled.average grant aale fa,, valLe of opbons granted ~n 1999 was I51 59 The exercose pnce 01 each OpbOn granted m 1999 egualea the m a m i  
pr ce 01 FPL Gmup stock on me dale 01 gram 
Exeruse p r e s  lor OPllOnS outslandmg as 01 December 3 1 .  1999 ranged from 651 16 lo $54 36 with a weghlm-average exerclse pnce of $51 59 and a 
weignled-average mmainmg wnlract~a lhle 01 8 6 yean As 01 December 31 1999 there were no exercisable opbonr 01 the optlons odlslandmg as 01 
December 31 1999 225 000 vest m 2000.475 000 8n 2001.200 000 m 2W2 ana 200.000 #n 2003 

FAS 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," encourages a fair value based method of accounting for stock-based 
compensation. FPL Group, however, uses the intrinsic value based method of accounting as permitted by the statement. 
Stock-based compensation expense was approximately $13 million, $10 million and $8 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997, 
respectively. Compensation expense for restricted stock and performance shares is the same under the fair value and the 
intrinsic value based methods. Had compensation expense for the options been determined as prescribed by the fair value 
based method, FPL Group's net income and earnings per share would have been $696 million and $4.06. respectively. 

The fair value of the options granted in 1999 were estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing 
model with a 3.81% weighted-average expected dividend yield, 17.88% weighted-average expected volatility, 5.46% 
weighted-average risk-free interest rate and a weighted-average expected term of 9.3 years. 

Other- Each share of common stock has been granted a Preferred Share Purchase Right (Right), at a price of $120, subject 
to adjustment. in the event of certain attempted business combinations. The Rights will cause substantial dilution to a person 
or group attempting to acquire FPL Group on terms not approved by FPL Group's board of directors. 
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5. Preferred Stock 

FPL Group's charter authorizes the issuance of 100 million shares of serial preferred stock, $0.01 par value. None of these 
shares is outstanding. FPL Group has reserved 3 million shares for issuance upon exercise of preferred share purchase 
rights which expire in June 2006. Preferred stock of FPL consists of the following: (a) 

December 31. 1999, 
December 31. 

+%io&F 

shares RedeFption 
outs tandi  na P r l C e  

curnulatiye. $100 par value. wi thout  s ink ing  fund requirements. 
authonzed 15,822,500 shares: 

4 112% s e n e 5  ........................................... ~. 
4 1/2% ser ies A ......................................... 
4 l / 2 %  ser ies 8 ......................................... 
4 1/2% series c ......................................... 
4.32% Series D .......................................... 
4.35% ser ies E .......................................... 
6.98% ser ies s .......................................... 
7.05% ser ies T .......................................... 
6.75% Series U .......................................... 

Total  prefer red stock of FPL .................................. 
(a) 

(b) Notcaiiabie priorlo 2003. 

FPCs charter aumorizes fhe issuance of 5 million shares of subordinated preferred 
issuances or redemptions of preferred slock in 1999, 1998 and 1997. 

100,000 
50.000 
50,000 
62,500 
50,000 
50,000 

750.000 
500.000 

I stock. no par value. 

$ 10 10 $101.00 
1101.00 5 5 
1101.00 5 5 
$103.00 6 6 
$103.50 5 5 
$102.00 5 5 
1103.49(b) 75 75 

m m  
$103.52(b) 65 50 50 
$103.37(b) 65 

None of mese sharer is outstanding. There were no 

6. Debt 

Long-term debt consists of the following: 

December 31. 

-1 1 i o n 7  
1998 

FPL: 
F i r s t  mortga e bonds: 

Maturing ti lraugh 2004 - 5 
ua tu r jng  2008 through 201 
Maturing 2023 through 202 Medium-tern notes - matur ................. 
P o l l u t i o n  con t ro l  and i n d  

P o l l u t i a n  contro l .  s o l i 1  wa 
matur in 2020 through 202 

unamortized discount - net 
Tota l  long-term debt.of  F 

L ~ S S  cu r ren t  m a t u r i t i e s  
Long-term debt of FPL, 

matur ing 2020 throu h 2 ................. 
enue bonds - 

.......... annuai' i n r e r e s t  ra te .  r ............... 

FPL GrOYD Caol ta l :  

$ 350 
650 
516 

70 

150 

483 

1 2  5 
7%) 

I 580 
641 
516 

70 

150 

483 
2) 

2 , 4 2 1  
230 
2.191 

DebentbreS.: 175 
. _ . .  1.225 125  

5 162 

.......... Maturing through 2004 - 6 7/8% 
Maturing 2006 through 2013 - 7 3/8% t o  7 

other  long-term debt - 3.4% t o  7.645% due v 
unamortized discount .... ................ 

To ta l  long-term debt.of ............. 129 L ~ S S  current ma tu r i t i es  ............... __ 
Long-term debt o f  FPL G ~ U P  Cap i ta l ,  ex 

Tota l  long-term debt ........................ 
(a) In December 1999, FPL Group Capital issued $400 million principal amount of 7 318% debentures, mauring in 2009. 

Minimum annual maturities of long-term debt for FPL Group are approximately $125 million, $170 million and $300 million for 
2000. 2003 and 2004, respectively. The amounts for FPL for the same periods are $125 million, $170 million and $125 
million, respectively. FPL Group and FPL have no amounts due in 2001 and 2002. 

Short-term debt at December 31, 1999 consists of commercial paper borrowings with a year end weighled-average interest 
rate of 5.60% for FPL Group (5.87% for FPL). Available lines of credit aggregated approximately $2.4 billion ($880 million for 
FPL) at December 31, 1999, all of which were based on firm commitments. 
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7. Income Taxes 

The components of income taxes are as follows: 

FPL G r U  FPL 

( m i l l i m y  - 
Years Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31. 
1999 m rn 1998 1997 

Federal : 
cu r ren t  ............................................. $511 1467 1308 1383 $492 $377 

ITC and other  - n e t  

cu r ren t  ............................................. 5 5  72 52 62 78 60 

........... Deferred (196) (215) (34) (88) g3 (83) 

To ta l  federal  - 3) - 2) a) - 

4) A$+) *) ................................... 
s ta te :  

Deferred Lg) *) _. 
Total  State ..................................... 52 ............... 

__ 
Income taxes charged t o  operat ions - FPL 
c red i ted  t o  o the r  income (deductions) - FPL ........... - .................................... Tota l  income taxes UU rus 
A reconciliation between the effective income tax rates and the applicable statutory rates is as follows: 

FPL GrDUD FPL 
years Ended December 31. Years Ended D ecember 31. 
1999 1998 1997 1999 1998 1997 

s ta tu to ry  federal income tax r a t e  ........................ 
Increases (reductions) r e s u l t i n g  from:. 

State income taxes - net  o f  federa l  income t a x  benef i t . .  
m r t i z a t i o n  o f  ITC .................................... 
m r t i z a t i o n  o f  deferred resulatorv  c r e d i t  - 

income taxes ............ T ...... I..................... 
Adjustments o f  p r i o r  years' t a x  matters ................ 
Preferred stock div idends - FPL ........................ 
other  - net  ............................................ 

E f f e c t i v e  income t a x  r a t e  ................................ 

35.0% 

2.4 
(2.1) 

35.0% 

3.7 
(2.5) 

(1.8) 
(6.3)(a) 
0.5 
1.0 
re696 
- 

35.0% 

3.7 
(2.4) 

(1.8) 
(2.7) 
0.7 & 
- 

35.0% 

3.8 
(2.3) 

(1.5) 
(0.1) 
0.5 
. 

35.0% 

3.7 
(2.4) 

(1.7) 
0.1 

0.9 
&.A% 

35.0% 

3.9 
(2.3) 

(1.8) 
(1.7) 

0.8 m 
(a) Includes the resolution 01 an audit issuewilh the Internal Revenue Sewice (IRS) 

The income tax effects of temporary differences giving rise to consolidated deferred income tax liabilities and assets are as 
follows: 

FPL GPOUD FPL 
December 31. December 31. 
1999- a 1 9 9 8  

(mi l l ions)  

Deferred t a x  l i a b i l i t i e s :  
................................................... $1,377 11,493 Proper ty- re la ted 11,377 11,493 

Investment-related ................................................. 373 460 
o the r  .............................................................. 312 2 168 140 

To ta l  deferred t a x  l i a b i l i t i e s  ................................... z ! E z m  1.545zcm 
. . 

Deferred t a x  assets and va lua t i on  allowance: 
Asset writedowns and c a p i t a l  l oss  carryforward ..................... 170 102 
unamortized ITC and deferred regulatory  c r e d i t  - income taxes _ _ . . _ _  119 136 119 136 
storm and decommissioning reserves ................................. 245 258 245 258 .............................................................. 352 other  472 473 379 
va lua t i on  allowance ................................................ 

Accumulated deferred income taxes .................................... Net deferred t a x  assets .......................................... 746 

The carryforward period for a capital loss from the disposition in a prior year of an FPL Group Capital subsidiary expired at 
the end of 1996. The amount of the deductible loss from this disposition was limited by IRS rules. FPL Group is challenging 
the IRS loss limitation and the IRS is disputing certain other positions taken by FPL Group. Tax benefits, if any, associated 
with these matters will be reported in future periods when resolved. 

8. Jointly-Owned Electric Utility Plant 

FPL owns approximately 85% of St. Lucie Unit No. 2, 20% of the St. Johns River Power Park units and coal terminal and 
approximately 76% of Scherer Unit No. 4. At December 31, 1999, FPCs gross investment in these units was $1.174 billion, 
$328 million and $571 million, respectively; accumulated depreciation was $710 million, $155 million and $266 million, 
respectively. 

FPL is responsible for its share of the operating costs. as well as providing its own financing. At December 31, 1999, there 
was no significant balance of construction work in progress on these facilities. See Note 12 - Litigation. 
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9. Acquisition of Maine Assets 

During the second quarter of 1999, FPL Energy completed the purchase of Central Maine Power Company's (CMP) non- 
nuclear generating assets, primarily fossil and hydro power plants, for $866 million. The purchase price was based on an 
agreement, subject to regulatory approvals, reached with CMP in January 1998. In October 1998. the FERC struck down 
transmission rules that had been in effect in New England since the 1970s. FPL Energy filed a lawsuit in November 1998 
requesting a declaratory judgment that CMP could not meet the essential terms of the purchase agreement and, as a result. 
FPL Energy should not be required to complete the transaction. FPL Energy believed these FERC rulings regarding 
transmission constituted a material adverse effect under the purchase agreement because of the significant decline in the 
value of the assets caused by the rulings. The request for declaratory judgment was denied in March 1999 and the 
acquisition was completed on April 7, 1999. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and 
the results of operating the Maine plants have been included in the consolidated financial statements since the acquisition 
dale. 

The FERC rulings regarding transmission, as well as the announcement of new entrants into the market and changes in fuel 
prices since January 1998, resulted in FPL Energy recording a $176 million pre-tax impairment loss to write-down the fossil 
assets to their fair value, which was determined based on a discounted cash flow analysis. The impairment loss reduced FPL 
Group's 1999 results of operations and earnings per share by $104 million and $0.61 per share, respectively. 

Most of the remainder of the purchase price was allocated to the hydro operations. The hydro plants and related goodwill are 
being amortized on a straight-line basis over the 40-year term of the hydro plant operating licenses. 

I O .  Divestiture of Cable Investments 

In January 1999, an FPL Group Capital subsidiary sold 3.5 million common shares of Adelphia Communications Corporation 
(Adelphia) stock and in October 1999 had its one-third ownership interest in a cable limited partnership redeemed, resulting in 
after-tax gains of approximately $96 million and $66 million. respectively. Both investments had been accounted for on the 
equity method. 

11. Settlement of Litigation 

In October 1999. FPL and the Florida Municipal Power Agency (FMPA) entered into a settlement agreement pursuant to 
which FPL agreed to pay FMPA a cash settlement; FPL agreed to reduce the demand charge on an existing power purchase 
agreement; and FPL and FMPA agreed to enter into a new power purchase agreement giving FMPA the right to purchase 
limited amounts of power in the future at a specified price. FMPA agreed to dismiss the lawsuit with prejudice, and both 
parties agreed to exchange mutual releases. The settlement reduced FPL's 1999 net income by $42 million. 

12. Commitments and Contingencies 

Commitments - FPL has made commitments in connection with a portion of its projected capital expenditures. Capital 
expenditures for the construction or acquisition of additional facilities and equipment lo meet customer demand are estimated to 
be approximately $3.1 billion for 2000 through 2002. Included in this three-year forecast are capital expenditures for 2000 of 
approximately $1.3 billion. As of December 31, 1999, FPL Energy has made commitments totaling approximately $72 million, 
primarily in connection with the development of an independent power project. FPL Group and its subsidiaries, other than FPL. 
have guaranteed approximately $680 million of purchased power agreement obligations. debt service payments and other 
payments subject to certain contingencies. 

Insurance - Liability for accidents at nuclear power plants is governed by the Price-Anderson Act, which limits the liability of 
nuclear reactor owners to the amount of the insurance available from private sources and under an industry retrospective 
payment plan. In accordance with this Act, FPL maintains $200 million of private liability insurance. which is the maximum 
obtainable. and participates in a secondary financial protection system under which it is subject to retrospective assessments 
of up to $363 million per incident at any nuclear utility reactor in the United States, payable at a rate not to exceed $43 million 
per incident per year. 

FPL participates in nuclear insurance mutual companies that provide $2.75 billion of limited insurance coverage for property 
damage, decontamination and premature decommissioning risks at its nuclear plants. The proceeds from such insurance. 
however, must first be used for reactor stabilization and site decontamination before they can be used for plant repair. FPL 
also participates in an insurance program that provides limited coverage for replacement power costs if a nuclear plant is out 
of service because of an accident. In the event of an accident at one of FPL's or another participating insured's nuclear 
plants, FPL could be assessed up to $50 million in retrospective premiums. 
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In the event of a catastrophic loss at one of FPL's nuclear plants, the amount of insurance available may not be adequate to 
cover property damage and other expenses incurred. Uninsured losses, to the extent not recovered through rates, would be 
borne by FPL and could have a material adverse effect on FPL Group's and FPL's financial condition. 

FPL self-insures the majority of its transmission and distribution (T&D) property due to the high cost and limited coverage 
available from third-party insurers. As approved by the FPSC, FPL maintains a funded storm and property insurance reserve. 
which totaled approximately $216 million at December 31. 1999, for T&D property storm damage or assessments under the 
nuclear insurance program. During 1999, storm fund reserves were reduced to recover the costs associated with three 
storms. Recovely from customers of any losses in excess of the storm and property insurance reserve will require the 
approval of the FPSC. FPL's available lines of credit include $300 million to provide additional liquidity in the event of a T&D 
property loss. 

Contracts - FPL has entered into long-term purchased power and fuel contracts. Take-or-pay purchased power contracts with 
the Jacksonville Electric Authority (JEA) and with subsidiaries of The Southern Company (Southern Companies) provide 
approximately 1,300 megawatts (mw) of power through mid-2010 and 383 mw thereafter through 2021. FPL also has various 
firm pay-for-performance contracts to purchase approximately 900 mw from certain cogenerators and small power producers 
(qualifying facilities) with expiration dates ranging from 2002 through 2026. The purchased power contracts provide for 
capacity and energy payments. Energy payments are based on the actual power taken under these contracts. Capacity 
payments for the pay-for-perfohance contracts are subject to the qualifying facilities meeting certain contract conditions. 
FPL has long-term contracts for the transportation and supply of natural gas. coal and oil with various expiration dates 
through 2021. FPL Energy has long-term contracts for the transportation and storage of natural gas with expiration dates 
ranging from 2005 through 2017, and a 24-month contract commencing in mid-2000 for the supply of natural gas. 

The required capacity and minimum payments through 2004 under these contracts are estimated to be as follows: 
zoo0 m 2003 zoo4 

(mi%%> - 

FPL: 

1210 I210 I200 1200 

1235 I255 I255 I2M) ......... 1 45 I 45 1 20 I 10  
oil  .......... 1165 I 10 1 -  1 -  

I 20 1 15 1 15 

1380 $400 1410 1425 

coal 

FPL Ener y 
Natura7 ,as, including transportation and storage ..................... 1 20 1 20 

(a) Includes approximately $42 million. $44 million. $47 million. $49 million and $50 million. respenivek, for capacity paymenh assodated wim two Contracls Mal 
are cumnUy in dispute. These capadty payments are rubjeci to Me outwme of Me related litigation. See Litigation. 

Charges under these contracts were as follows: 

1999 charaes 1998 charaes 1997 Charaes 

r s D a c i t v  Fue 
EnerqY/ 

........................................ 
oi l  ......................................... 1 - 

FPL Energy: 
Natural gas t ransportat ion and storage ...... I - 1 16 I -  I 18 I -  I 16 

(a) R ~ C O Y ~ ~ M  through base rates and me wpaaty cost recovery clause (capaclty C adse) 
Ib) Recoverw mmugh me bel ana purcharw -I mst recnvery clause 
(c, ~ e c ~ v e r e d  through tne capary clause 

Litigation - In 1997, FPL filed a complaint against the owners of two qualifying facilities (plant owners) seeking an order 
declaring that FPL's obligations under the power purchase agreements with the qualifying facilities were rendered of no force 
and effect because the power plants failed to accomplish commercial operation before January 1. 1997, as required by the 
agreements. In 1997, the plant owners filed for bankruptcy under Chapter XI of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code and entered into 
an agreement with the holders of more than 70% of the bonds that partially financed the construction of the plants. This 
agreement gives the holders of a majority of the principal amount of the bonds (the majority bondholders) the right to control. 
fund and manage any litigation against FPL and the right to settle with FPL on any terms such majority bondholders approve, 
provided that certain agreements are not affected and certain conditions are met. In 1998. the plant owners (through the 
attorneys for the majority bondholders) filed an answer denying the allegations in FPL's complaint and asserting 
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counterclaims for approximately $2 billion, consisting of all capacity payments that could have been made over the 30-year 
term of the power purchase agreements and three times their actual damages for alleged violations of Florida antitrust laws 
by FPL. FPL Group and FPL Group Capital, plus attorneys' fees. The trial court dismissed all of the partnerships' antitrust 
claims. In 1999, the partnerships' motion for summary judgment was denied; they have appealed. 

A contract with Cedar Bay Generating Company, L.P. (Cedar Bay), a qualifying facility, provides FPL with the right to dispatch 
the Cedar Bay facility "in any manner it deems appropriate." Despite this contractual right, Cedar Bay initiated an action in 
1997 in the circuit court challenging, among other things, the manner in which the facility had been dispatched by FPL. 
Although the court granted summary judgment to FPL with regard to Cedar Bay's claim that FPL's dispatch decisions violated 
the express terms of the contract, it permitted a jury to hear Cedar Bay's claim that such dispatch decisions violated an 
implied duty of good faith and fair dealing. The jury awarded Cedar Bay approximately $13 million on this claim. Thereafter, 
the court entered a declaration that FPL was, in the future, to dispatch the Cedar Bay facility in accordance with certain 
specified parameters, FPL expects to recover the amount of this judgment through the capacity clause. 

FPL has appealed both the jury award and the court's declaration. In 1999, after FPL filed its notice of appeal in the Cedar 
Bay action, a lender, on behalf of itself and a group of other Cedar Bay lenders, filed an action against FPL in the circuit court 
alleging breach of contract, breach of an implied duty of good faith and fair dealing, fraud, tortious interference with contract 
and several other claims regarding the manner in which FPL has dispatched the Cedar Bay facility. It seeks unspecified 
damages and other relief. FPL has moved lo dismiss all counts of this complaint. 

In 1999, the Attorney General of the United States, on behalf of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) brought an 
action against Georgia Power Company and other subsidiaries of The Southern Company for injunctive relief and the 
assessment of civil penalties for certain violations of the Clean Air Act. Among other things. the EPA alleges Georgia Power 
Company constructed and is continuing to operate Scherer Unit No. 4, in which FPL owns a 76% interest. without obtaining 
proper permitting, and without complying with performance and technology standards as required by the Clean Air Act. The 
suit seeks injunctive relief requiring the installation of such technology and civil penalties of up to $25.000 per day for each 
violation from August 7, 1977 through January 30, 1997, and $27,000 per day for each violation thereafter. Georgia Power 
has filed an answer to the complaint asserting that it has complied with all requirements of the Clean Air Act, denying the 
plaintiffs allegations of liability. denying that the plaintiff is entitled to any of the relief that it seeks and raising various other 
defenses. 

FPL Group and FPL believe that they have meritorious defenses to the litigation and are vigorously defending the suits. 
Accordingly, the liabilities, if any, arising from the proceedings are not anticipated to have a material adverse effect on their 
financial statements. 

13. Subsequent Event 

FPL FiberNet. LLC (FPL FiberNet) was formed in January 2000 to enhance the value of FPL Group's fiber-optic network 
assets that were originally built to support FPL operations. FPL's existing fiber-optic net assets with a net book value of 
approximately $100 million were transferred to FPL FiberNet in January 2000. FPL FiberNet will sell wholesale fiber-optic 
network capacity to FPL and other new and existing customers, primarily telephone, cable television, internet and other 
telecommunications companies. 
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14. Segment Information 

FPL Group's reportable segments include FPL. a regulated utility, and FPL Energy, an unregulated energy generating 
subsidiary. Corporate and other represents other business activities, other segments that are not separately reportable and 
eliminating entries. For all years presented approximately 98% of FPL Group's operating revenues were derived from the 
sale of electricity in the United States. As of December 31, 1999 and 1998, less than 1% of long-lived assets were located in 
foreign countries. 

FPL Group's segment information is as follows: 
1998 1997 

a) carp.  a) corp. (a) corp.  
1999 

FPL and :PL and and 
FPL EnePqY Ql!EI Total FPL % ,other 1 FPL EnerW Q L h  Total 

operat ing revenues I 6,057 I 323 1 58 I 6.438 I 6 , 3 6 6  1 234 $ 6 1  I 6,661 $6,132 I189 $ 4 8  1 6,369 
I n t e r e s t  expense ,. 1 164 I 44 $ 14 I 222 I 196 1 84 1 42 $ 322 1 227 I 49 $ 15 1 291 
Depreciat ion and 

amort izat ion . ._ .  1 989 $ 34 1 17 I 1,040 $ 1,249 1 31 I 4 $ 1.284 $1,034 $ 2 2  I 5 I 1,061 

nn 1 1 x  

Equity i n  earnings 
o f  equ i t y  method 
investees ,...... $ - I 50 1 - I 50 I - $ 39 1 - I 39 

~ncone  t a x  ex ense 
(benefit)(b? $ 324 I (42) $ 41 I 323 I 349 24 IC941 1 279 

Net incone (loss)(c) $ 576 $ (46) $167 I 697 I 616 $ 32 I 16 I 664 
s i g n i f i c a n t  noncash 

i t e m  . _ _ . . . . _ _ . .  $ 86 $ - 1 - $ 86 $ 34 I - I - 1 34 
c a p i t a l  expenditures 

and investments $ 924 11,540 1 15 $2,479 I 617 $ 313 I 16 I 946 
Tota l  assets . . _ _ _ _  $11,231 12.212 1 (2) 113.441 110,748 $1.092 1189 $12.029 
Investment i n  equ i t y  

method investees I - $ 166 I - I 166 I - I 165 I - 1 165 

$ - I 1 2  I 2  14 

321 I 5 IC221 1 304 
I 608 1 9 1 I 618 

$ 81 $420 I - I 501 

$ 551 1291 1 - 842 
111.172 $912 $365 $12.449 

1 - $ 7 4  $ 2  $ 76 

(a) In 1999 and 1998, FPL Energy's interest expense was based on an assumed capital slructure bf 50% debt for operating pmjects and 100% debt for Projects 
under wnstruaion. FPL Energy's 1998 interest expense also indudes the cost of terminating an interest rate swap agreement. FPL Energy's 1997 interest 
expense was related to its outstanding debt. which exceeded the assumed capital sl~cture. 
FPL Gmup alloCaleS inwme taxes to FPL Energy on a 'separate return method' as if it were a tax paying entity 
The following nonrecurring items affected 1999 net inwme: FPL senled litigation (see Note 11): FPL Energy rewcded an impairment loss (see Note 9): and 
Corporate and OUler divested its cable investments (see Note I O ) .  

(b) 
(c) 

15. Summarized Financial Information of FPL Group Capital 

FPL Group Capital's debentures, when outstanding, are guaranteed by FPL Group and included in FPL Group's consolidated 
balance sheets. Summarized financial information of FPL Group Capital is as follows: 

= E ? , %  
(mi l l ions)  

Operating revenues ....................... : 1380 1295 1237 Current assets . . _ _ _ _ _ _ .  1 640 $ 317 

Gain,on j i v e s t i t u r e  o f  cable investments . .  1257 I - 1 - Current l i a b i l i t i e s  _ _ _ _ .  1 414 1 310 
Net income . . . . _ . . _ _ . _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . . _ _ _ . . . . . . . . .  $138 1 68 $ 27 Noncurrent l i a b i l i t i e s  . .  $1.840 I 703 

operat in  expenses _ . _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . . . . _ _ _ . . . . . . . .  1533 1225 $186 Noncurrent assets ...... $2,627 11.445 
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16. Quarterly Data (Unaudited) 

Condensed consolidated quarterly financial information for 1999 and 1998 is as follows: 
March 3 1  (a) lune 30 a) semember 30 (a) December 3 1  (a) 

(mi lhons(  except per  share amounts) 
FPL Group: 

1.614 I 1.892 I 1,520 1999 ................ 
470 I 107(c) 
291 I 120(c) ( e )  

1.70 I 0.71(c)<e) 
0 . 5 2  I 

1,412 I 
209(d) I 

135(b) I 
operat ing revenues I 

77(b) I operat ing income I 
0.45(b) I 

Dividends per share ............... I 0.52 I 0.52 I 
High-low common stock sales p n c e s .  $61 i s / i6-50 118 I 60 1/2-52 7/8 156 11/16-49 118 I 52 1/2-41 118 

528 s 189 
1,338 s operar1ng revenues I 

287 I 93(9) 
operat7ng ,"come I 218 I 

1.66 I 0.54(9) 
Net  ,"Come I 

0.50 I 0.50 Earnings per  sharecf) I Dividends per  share ............... I 0.50 I 0.50 I 
High-low common stock sales p n c e s .  I65 3/16-56 1/16 $65 5/8-58 11/16 I 70-59 11/16 I 72 9/16-60 1/2 

.................. 208 I 

Earnings per sharecf) . ............ I 1.22Cd) I 
........................ N e t  Income 

0.52 

1.692 I 1.999 I 1,632 1998 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

.................. 
........................ 

317 I 
l o a  I 176 I ............. 0.63 I 1.02 I 

FPL: 

operat ing revenues I 150 I operat ing ,"Come I 
Net income I 
N e t  income a v a i l a b l e  t o  FPL Group.. $ 104 I 

................ 1.359 I 1.511 I 1.769 I 1.418 1999 

207 I 303 I a 6 w  
4a(c) 167 I 268 I 

163 I 264 I 45(c) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  l o a  I ........................ 

................ 1,634 I 1,878 I 1.559 
138 

a7 

1998 
1.295 I operat!ng revenues I 

159 I 
107 I Net income I 

N e t  income a v a i l a b l e  t o  FPL Group.. 103 I 

216 I 314 I 
267 I 167 I 

163 I 263 I 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  90 operat,ng ,"Come I 

........................ 

(a) 

(b) 
(c) 
(d) 
(e) 
(0 
(9) 

In the opinion of FPL ~ r w p  and FPL. all adjustments, which wnsist of normal recurring amruals necessary to present a fair statement of the amounts shown 
for such petiods. have been made. Results of operations far an interim period may not give a true indication of results for the year. 
Includes impairment loss on Maine assets. 
Includes the settlement of litigation between FPL and FMPA. 
Includes gain on the sale of an investment in Adelphia wmmon stock. 
Includes gain on the redemption of a one-third ownership interest in a cable limited partnership. 
Basic and assuming dilution m e  sum of the quartetiy amounts may not equal the total for the year due to rounding. 
Includes a loss on the sale of Turner Fmds Corporation and the cost of terminating an agreement designed to fix interest rates. pamy offset by the favorable 
resolution of an audit issue with the IRS. 
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

None 
PART 111 

Item I O .  Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrants 

FPL Group - The information required by this Item will be included in FPL Group's Proxy Statement which will be filed with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the 2000 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (FPL Group's Proxy 
Statement) and is incorporated herein by reference, or is included in Item I .  Business - Executive Officers of the Registrants. 

FPL DIRECTORS@) 

James L. Broadhead. Mr. Broadhead, 64, is chairman and chief executive officer of FPL and FPL Group. He is a director of 
Delta Air Lines, Inc., New York Life Insurance Company and The Pittston Company, and a trustee of Cornell University. Mr. 
Broadhead has been a director of FPL and FPL Group since 1989. 

Dennis P. Coyle. Mr. Coyle. 61. is general counsel and secretary of FPL and FPL Group. He is a director of Adelphia 
Communications Corporation. Mr. Coyle has been a director of FPL since 1990. 

Paul J. Evanson. Mr. Evansop, 58, is the president of FPL. He is a director of Lynch Interactive Corporation. Mr. Evanson 
has been a director of FPL since 1992 and a director of FPL Group since 1995. 

Lewis Hay, 111. Mr. Hay. 44, is senior vice president, finance and chief financial officer of FPL and vice president, finance and 
chief financial officer of FPL Group. Mr. Hay has been a director of FPL since 1999. 

Lawrence J. Kelleher. Mr. Kelleher. 52, is senior vice president, human resources of FPL and vice president, human 
resources of FPL Group. Mr. Kelleher has been a director of FPL since 1990. 

Armando J. Olivera. Mr. Olivera. 50. is senior vice president, power systems of FPL. Mr. Olivera has been a director of FPL 
since 1999. 

Thomas F. Plunkett. Mr. Plunkett, 60, is president of FPL's nuclear division. Mr. Plunkett has been a director of FPL since 
1996. 

Antonio Rodriguez. Mr. Rodriguez, 57, is senior vice president, power generation of FPL. Mr. Rodriguez has been a 
director of FPL since 1999. 

(a) Directors are elected annually and serve until their resignation. removal or until their respective successors are elected. Each directoh business experience 
during the past five years is noted emer here or in the Exewtive Officers table in Item 1. Business - Executive Officers of the Registrants. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation 

FPL Group - The information required by this Item will be included in FPL Group's Proxy Statement and is incorporated 
herein by reference, provided that the Compensation Committee Report and Performance Graph which are contained in FPL 
Group's Proxy Statement shall not be deemed to be incorporated herein by reference. 
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FPL - The following table sets forth FPL's portion of the compensation paid during the past three years to FPL's chief 
executive officer and the other four most highly-compensated persons who served as executive officers of FPL at 
December 31,1999 

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE 

~ a m e  and Pr inc iDal  Pos i t i on  rn 
lames L. Broadhead 1999 

chairman of t he  Board and 1998 
c h i e f  Executive o f f i c e r  1997 
o f  FPL and FPL Group 

Paul 1. EVaIISOII 
President of FPL 

1999 
1998 
1997 

Dennis P. Coyle 1999 
General counsel and 1998 

secretary O f  FPL 1997 
and FPL Group 

Thomas F. P lunket t  1999 
President. Nuclear 1998 

Div i s ion  o f  FPL 1997 

~ a w ~ e n c e  3 .  Kel leher  1999 
s e n i o r  v i c e  President. 1998 

Human ReSOUTCeS Of FPL 1997 

ReSOYrCeS Of FPL Group 
and v i c e  President. Human 

Long-Term 
~ n n u a l  comensat ion commnsati on 

s e c u r i t i e s  
under lv ina 

nrhc.r Number o f  I_.._. 
Annual 
conpen- 

sa1arv 80""s sat i o n  

ReStr i  c ted  
Stock 
Awardsca) 

1943,000 1895,850 I18,809 
847,875 937,125 9,809 
846.000 824.850 9,813 

628,500 616,900 8,656 
592.500 546,900 2.785 
564,300 423,200 2,646 

399.832 259.891 7,964 

353.628 198.904 3,600 
357,000 257,040 595 

340,000 219,100 10,088 
302,500 177,900 3 482 
275,000 123,200 3:482 

306,475 220,662 10,213 
267,750 194.119 3.108 
258.500 147.768 3,273 

12,412,005 

1,278,900 

964.802 

255.780 

964.802 

538,150 

o m i o n i  

250.000 
. 

150,000 

100.000 

100.000 

100.000 

Long-Term A l l  
I ncen t i ve  other  
P l a n  C0nnpe"- 
pavoutr(b) ration(c1 

11.083.272 112,658 
1.788.731 12,009 
1,402,140 11,286 

458,985 13.539 
704.304 13,746 
306.741 15.233 

236.783 10.259 
368.079 9,737 
310,021 10,653 

179.564 10,146 
103.481 10,344 
82.128 11,899 

177.346 10,661 
267.694 9.724 
222,173 11,655 

[a) At December 31, 1999, Mr. Broadhead held 146,800 shares of restricted mmmon stock wim a value of $8,284,875. Of these. 88.800 shares were awarded in 
1991 fw the purpose of financing Mr. Broadheads supplemental retirement plan and will offset lump sum benefits mal would otherwise be payable to him in 
cash upan retirement. See Retirement Plans. The remaining 50,000 shares vest in 2001. At OBcember 31. 1999, Mr. E v a n m  held 25.000 shares of 
restricted common stmk wiih a value of $1,070,313 that vesl as lo 8.250 Shares in each of the yean 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2003; Mr. Coyle held 20.000 
Shares of restricted common stock with a value of $856,250 mat vest as to 5.000 Shares in each of the years 2000, 2001. 2002 and 2003; Mr. Plunken held 
20,000 Shares of restricted wmmon s l x k  with a value of $856.250, 5.000 shares of which were granted in 1999 and vest as to 1,250 shares in each of me 
years 2000,2001,2002 and 2003: and Mr. Kelleher held 30.000 shares of resbicted common stock wilh a value Of 11,284.375.20.WO shares of which were 
granted in 1999 and vest as to 5,000 Shares in each of the yeas 2000,2001.2002 and 2003. Dividends at normal rates are paid on restricted W m m n  stock. 
Payouts are in cash [for payment of income taxes) and sharer of m m m n  stock. valued at the thing price On Me iast business day preceding payout. 
Messn. Evansan and Plunken deferred their payouts under FPL Group's Defened Compensation Plan. 
For 1999, represents employer matching mntributions Io employee thrill plans and employer mntributions for life insurance as follows: 

[b) 

[c) 

MP. Broadhead ....................... 
M r .  EVan50n ......................... 7,600 
M T .  Coyle ........................... 7.167 
M r .  Plunket t  ........................ 7,600 
M r .  Kel leher  7.167 ........................ 

L i f e  Insurance 
15.491 
5.939 
3,092 
2.546 
3,494 

Long-Term Incentive Pian Awards - In 1999, performance awards, shareholder value awards and stock option awards 
under FPL Group's Long-Term Incentive Plan were made to the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation 
Table as set forth in the following tables. 

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN AWARDS 

Estimated Future Payouts 

Name sharer u n t i l  Pavout TarWt(#> Maximum(#> 
Number O f  performance per iod under Non-stock Price-Based P lan t  

................ 1/1/99 - 12/31/02 19.687 31.499 
12.598 

19.687 
7,285 
5.842 
5,266 

7.874 lames L. nroadhead 
Paul 3. EYanSOn 7,874 1/1/99 - 12/31/02 

3,651 Thomas F. P lunket t  3.651 1/1/99 - 12/31/02 
Lawrence 3. Kel leher  .............. 3,291 1/1/99 - 12/31/02 3,291 

................... 
Dennis P.  coyle ................... 4,553 1/1/99 - 12/31/02 4.553 

................ 

Shown in the preceding table. the performance share awards are payable at the end of the four-year performance period. 
The amount of the payout is determined by multiplying the participant's target number of shares by his average level of 
attainment, expressed as a percentage, which may not exceed 160%, of his targeted awards under the Annual Incentive 
Plans for each of the years encompassed by the award period. Annual incentive compensation is based on the attainment of 
net income goals for FPL and FPL Group, which are established by the Compensation Committee of FPL Group's Board Of 
Directors (the Committee) at the beginning of the year. The amounts earned on the basis of this performance measure are 
subject to reduction based on the degree of achievement of other corporate and business unit performance measures, and in 
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the discretion of the Committee. Mr. Broadhead's annual incentive compensation for 1999 was based on the achievement of 
FPL Group's net income goals and the following performance measures for FPL (weighted 75%) and the non-utility andlor 
new businesses (weighted 25%) and upon certain qualitative factors. For FPL, the incentive performance measures were 
financial indicators (weighted 50%) and operating indicators (weighted 50%). The financial indicators were operations and 
maintenance costs. capital expenditure levels, net income, regulatory return on equity and operating cash flow. .The 
operating indicators were service reliability as measured by the frequency and duration of service interruptions and service 
unavailability, system performance as measured by availability factors for the fossil power plants, WAN0 index for nuclear 
power plants, employee safety, number of significant environmental violations, customer satisfaction survey results, load 
management installed capability and conservation programs' annual installed capacity. For the non-utility andlor new 
businesses, the performance measures were total combined return on equity; non-utility net income and return on equity; 
corporate and other net income; employee safety; number of significant environmental violations; and the development of a 
plan to meet five-year growth objectives. The qualitative factors included measures to position the Corporation for greater 
competition and initiating other actions that significantly strengthen the Corporation and enhance shareholder value. 

Estimated Future Payouts 

shares U n t i l  Pavout r a r w t c t )  uaximumfiY1 
Number o f  Performance Per iod under Nan-stock P n c e s a s e d  P l a m  

lames L. sroadhead ................ 13,423 
Paul 1. EvanSDn ................... 6.749 
Dennis P. coy le  ................... 3,415 
Thomas F. p lunke t t  ................ 2,738 
Lawrence 1. Kel leher  .............. 2.468 

1/1/99 - 12/31/01 
1/1/99 - 12/31/01 
1/1/99 - 12/31/01 
1-1-99 - 12/31/01 
1/1/99 - 12/31/01 

13,423 21,477 
6,749 10,798 
3.415 5,464 
2,738 4,381 
2.468 3.948 

Shown in the preceding table,.!he shareholder value share awards are payable at the end of the three-year performance 
period. The amount of the payout is determined by multiplying the participant's target number of shares by a factor derived by 
dividing the average annual total shareholder return of FPL Group (price appreciation of FPL Group common stock plus 
dividends) by the total shareholder return of the Dow Jones Electric Utilities Index companies over the threeyear 
performance period. This payment may not exceed 160% of targeted awards. 

op t ion  Grants i n  Last F isca l  year 

Ind i v idua l  Grants 
Number o f  Percent of 
s e c u r i t i e s  ra ta1  opt ions 
under1 y i  ng Granted t o  Exercise o r  Grant Date 

OptlOnS Employees i n  s a ~ e  p r i c e  Exp i ra t i on  
NaMW Grantedfa) F i sca l  Year per share Date Present value(b) 

......... 19.2% $51.156 2/15/06 12,247,027 
2/15/09 11,515,497 

lames L. sroadhead 250,000 
Paul 1. EVanSon ............ 150,000 11.5% $51.156 
Dennis P. coy le ............ 100,000 7.7% $51.156 2/15/09 $1.010.331 ......... 7.7% $51.156 2/15/09 $1.010.331 

2/15/09 11.010.331 
Thmas F. p lunke t t  100,000 
Lawrence I .  Kel leher  ....... 100,000 7.7% $51.156 

(a) Options granted are non-quaiified stock options. Mr. Broadheads options will be exercisable on November 28. 2001. All Other stock options will become 
exercisable 25% per year and be fully exercisable after four years AII options were granted at an exercise ptice per share of 100% of the fair market value of 
FPL Group, Inc mmmon stock on the date of grant. 
m e  values shown reflee standard application of the BlaCk-Scholes pricing model. Volatility is equal to 18.08% and yield is equal to 3.81%. The interest rate 
is qua l  to the U S  Treasuly Strip Rate on the dale of grant with a term equal to that of the option (5.19% for the 7year options expiring 2/15/05 and 5.40% fw 
the 10-year options expiring 2115108). The values do not take into account risk factors such as non-transferability or risk of forfeiture. 

(b) 

The preceding table sets forth information concerning individual grants of common stock options during fiscal year 1999 to 
the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table. Such awards are also listed in the Summary 
Compensation Table in the column entitled Number of Securities Underlying Options. 

Aggregated Opt ion Exercises i n  Last F isca l  Year and F isca l  Year-End op t i on  Values 

Number o f  secu r i t i es  va lue o f  unexercised 
under ly ing.unexercired In-Th?-uoney opt ions a t  

ODtionS a t  F l s c ~ l  Year-End F isca l  Year-End 
shares 

Acqul red on value 
Nme Exercise Realized Exercisable unexercisable Exercisable unexercisable 

0 250,000 $0 $0 
$0 $0 

lames L. Braadhead 0 $0 
0 IO 0 1so,ooo 

$0 $0 0 100,000 
$0 so 

Dennis P. coy le  0 $0 
0 100.000 

$0 $0 
Thomas F. p lunke t t  0 $0 
Lawrence 1. Kel leher  0 IO 0 100.000 

Paul 3 .  EvanSOn 

The preceding table sets forth information, with respect to the named officers. concerning the exercise of stock options during 
the fiscal year, and unexercised options held at the end of the fiscal year. The named officers did not exercise any stock 
options during 1999, and held no exercisable options at the end of the year. All of the unexercisable options shown in the 
preceding table were granted in 1999. At December 31, 1999, the fair market value of the underlying securities (based on the 
closing share price of FPL Group, Inc. Common Stock reported on the NYSE of $42.8125 per share) did not exceed the 
exercise or base price of the options, therefore the options were not in-themoney at fiscal year-end. 
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Retirement Plans - FPL Group maintains a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan and a supplemental executive 
retirement plan which covers FPL employees. The following table shows the estimated annual benefits. calculated on a 
straight-line annuity basis, payable upon retirement in 1999 at age 65 after the indicated years of service. 

E l i g i b l e  Average 
Annual Comaensation 

I 300,000 
400,000 
500,000 
600,000 
700,000 
800.000 
900,000 

1,000,000 
1 100,000 

1,300,000 
1.400.000 
1,500.000 
1,600.000 
1.700, W O  
1.800.000 
1,900,000 
2 000,000 

2,200,000 
2,300.000 
2,400.000 

1: 200.000 

2:100,000 

........................... 

................... 

........................ 

.......... 

PENSION PLAN TABLE 

Years of serv ice  ___a 10 30 40 50 

................. 

................. 

................. 

I 58.809 
78.809 
98.809 
118,809 
138,809 
158,809 
178,809 
198.809 
218.809 
238,809 
258,809 
278,809 
298.809 
318,809 
338.809 
358,809 

398.809 
418,809 

458.809 
478.809 

378,809 

438,809 

1117.606 
157.606 
197,606 
237.606 
277,606 
317,606 
357,606 
397 606 
437:606 
477,606 
517,606 
557.606 
597,606 
637 606 
677:606 
717,606 
757,606 
797 606 
8371606 
877,606 
917,606 
957,606 

I 146,414 
196,414 
246,414 
296.414 
346,414 
396.414 
446,414 
496,414 
546.414 
596 414 
646'414 
696:414 
746.414 
796.414 
846.414 
896,414 
946,414 
996.414 

1,046 414 
1,096: 414 
1.146.414 
1,196,414 

I 154,909 
207.409 
259,909 
312,409 
364.909 
417,409 
469.909 
522,409 
574,909 
627,409 
679,909 
732.409 
784,909 
837,409 
889,909 
942,409 
994,909 

1,047,409 
1,099 909 
1.152: 409 
1,204,909 
1,257,409 

1 157,297 
209,797 
262,297 
314.797 
367.297 
419.797 
472.297 
524,797 
577.297 
629,797 
682,297 
734,797 
787,297 
839,797 
892,297 
944,797 
997.297 

1,049,797 
1.102.297 
1,154.797 
1,207.297 
1,259,797 

The compensation covered by the plans includes annual salaries and bonuses of certain officers of FPL Group and annual 
salaries of officers of FPL, as shown in the respective Summary Compensation Tables, but no other amounts shown in those 
tables. The estimated credited years of service for the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table are: 
Mr. Broadhead. 11 years; Mr. Evanson. 7 years; Mr. Coyle, 10 years; Mr. Plunkett. 9 years and Mr. Kelleher. 32 years. 
Amounts shown in the table reflect deductions to partially cover employer contributions to social security. 

A supplemental retirement plan for Mr. Broadhead provides for a lump-sum retirement benefit equal to the then present value 
of a joint and survivor annuity providing annual payments to him or his surviving beneficiary equal to 61% to 70% of his 
average annual compensation for the three years prior to his retirement between age 62 (1998) and age 65 (2001). reduced 
by the then present value of the annual amount of payments to which he is entitled under all other pension and retirement 
plans of FPL Group and former employers. This benefit is further reduced by the then value of 96.800 shares of restricted 
common stock which vest in 2001. Upon a change of control of FPL Group (as defined below under Employment 
Agreements), the restrictions on the restricted stock lapse and the full retirement beneft becomes payable. Upon termination 
of Mr. Broadhead's employment agreement (also described below) without cause, the restrictions on the restricted stock 
lapse and he becomes fully vested under the supplemental retirement plan. 

A supplemental retirement plan for Mr. Coyle provides for benefits. upon retirement at age 62 (2000) or more, based on two 
times his credited years of service. A supplemental retirement plan for Mr. Evanson provides for benefits based on two times 
his credited years of service up to age 65 and one times his credited years of service thereafler. A supplemental retirement 
plan for Mr. Plunkett provides for benefits. upon retirement at age 62 or more, based on two times his credited years of 
service up to age 65 and one times his credited years of service thereafler. 

In 1998, the vesting schedule attached to 10,000 shares of restricted common stock held by C.O. Woody, then President of 
the Power Generation Division of FPL, was amended to coincide with Mr. Woody's planned retirement in June 1999. As a 
consequence of the amended vesting schedule, Mr. Woody was indebted to FPL for a period of less than two weeks in June 
1999 for $147,133 in taxes owed upon vesting of the shares. 

FPL Group sponsors a split-dollar life insurance plan for certain of FPL's and FPL Group's senior officers. Benefits under the 
split-dollar plan are provided by universal life insurance policies purchased by FPL Group. If the officer dies prior to 
retirement, the officer's beneficiaries generally receive two and one-half times the officer's annual salary at the time of death. 
If the officer dies after retirement. the officer's beneficiaries receive between 50% to 100% of the officer's final annual salary. 
Each officer is taxable on the insurance carrier's one-year term rate for his life insurance coverage. 

Employment Agreements - FPL Group has an employment agreement with Mr. Broadhead that provides for automatic one- 
year extensions after 2000 unless either party elects not to extend. The agreement provides for a minimum base salary of 
$765,900 per year, subject to inrxeases based upon corporate and individual performance and increases in cost-of-living 
indices, plus annual and long-term incentive compensation opportunities at least equal to those currently in effect. If FPL 

42 



Group terminates Mr. Broadhead's employment without cause, he is entitled to receive a lump-sum payment of two years' 
compensation. Compensation is measured by the then current base salary plus the average of the preceding two years' 
annual incentive awards. He would also be entitled to receive all amounts accrued under all performance share grants in 
progress, prorated for the year of termination and assuming achievement of the targeted award, and to full vesting of his 
benefits under his supplemental retirement plan. 

FPL Group and FPL have entered into employment agreements with certain officers, including the individuals named in the 
Summary Compensation Table, to become effective in the event of a change of control of FPL Group, which is defined as the 
acquisition of beneficial ownership of 20% of the voting power of FPL Group, certain changes in FPL Group's board of 
directors, or approval by the shareholders of the liquidation of FPL Group or of certain mergers or consolidations or of certain 
transfers of FPL Group's assets. These agreements are intended to assure FPL Group and FPL of the continued services of 
key officers. The agreements provide that each officer shall be employed by FPL Group or one of its subsidiaries in his then 
current position, with compensation and benefits at least equal to the then current base and incentive compensation and 
benefit levels, for an employment period of four and, in certain cases, five years after a change in control occurs. 

In the event that the officer's employment is terminated (except for death, disability or cause) or if the officer terminates his 
employment for good reason, as defined in the agreement, the officer is entitled to severance benefits in the form of a 
lump-sum payment equal to the compensation due for the remainder of the employment period or for two years, whichever is 
longer. Such benefits would be based on the officer's then base salary plus an annual bonus at least equal to the average 
bonus for the two years preceding the change of control. The officer is also entitled to the maximum amount payable under 
all long-term incentive compensation grants outstanding, continued coverage under all employee benefit plans, supplemental 
retirement benefits and reimbursement for any tax penalties incurred as a result of the severance payments. 

Director Compensation - All of the directors of FPL are salaried employees of FPL Group and its subsidiaries and do not 
receive any additional compensation for serving as a director. 

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management 

FPL Group - The information required by this Item will be included in FPL Group's Proxy Statement and is incorporated 
herein by reference. 

FPL - FPL Group owns 100% of FPL's common stock. FPL's directors and executive officers beneficially own shares of FPL 
Group's common stock as follows: 

Name Number o f  shares Cal 
lames L .  Broadhead .......... 243 640(b)(c) 
Dennis P .  Coyle . 63'469(b)(c) d) 
Paul I .  EvanSOn .......... 96'170(b c)$d) 
Lewis nay, 111 _ . .__ .  25:134(b<tc) 
Lawrence 1. Kelleher ....................................... 69 562(b)(c) d) 
Arrnando 1. O l i v e r a  ......... 42'676(b) c $d) 
Thomas F. Plunkett 5 5 :  261(b)$cj(d) 
Antonio Rodriguez ................. 6.171(b) 
a l l  d i rectors  and ................. 708.939Cb) (c)(d)(e) 

...................................................................... 

(a) 

(b) 

lnfwmation is as of January 31. 2000. except for executive officers' holdings under the thrift plans and the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan which are 
as of Decanter 31, 1999. Unless omenvise indwled. each person has sole voting and sole investment power. 
Includes 15.625. 3,876, 4.335. 84, 1.292, 195. 549 and 111 phantom shares for Messrs. Bmadhead. Coyle. Evanson. Hay. Kelleher. Olivera. Plunken and 
Rodriguez. respectively, and a total of 28,967 phantom shares for all directors and officers as a group. credied to a Supplemental Matching Contribution 
Amount under the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. 
Includes 146.800. 20.000. 25.033 25,000, 30,000. 10.000 and 20.000 shares of restricted stock as 10 which Messrs. Bmadhead. Coyle. Evanron, Hay. 
Kelleher. Olivera and Plunkett. respectiveiy and a total 311,800 shares of restricted stock for all directors and officers as a gmup. have voting but nol 
investment power. 
Includes options held by Messrs. Coyle. Evanw.  Kelleher, Olivera and Plunken lo purchase 25,000. 37.500. 25.000. 12,500 and 25.000 shares. respectively. 
and options to purchase B total Of 162.500 shares hX PI1 directors and Officers as a group. 
Less than 1% of FPL Group's mmmon stock ouhtanding. 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance - FPL's directors and executive officers are required to file 
initial reports of ownership and reports of changes of ownership of FPL Group common stock with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. Based upon a review of these filings and written representations from FPL directors and executive 
officers, all required filings were timely made in 1999. 



Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 

FPL Group - The information required by this Item will be included in FPL Group's Proxy Statement and is incorporated 
herein by reference. 

FPL - None 

PART IV 

Item ?4. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K 

(a) 1. Financial Statements 

Independent Auditors' Report 
FPL Group: 

Consolidated Statements of Income 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity 

FPL: 
Consolidated Statements of Income 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Consolidated Statements of Shareholder's Equity 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

2. Financial Statement Schedules - Schedules are omitted as not applicable or not required. 

3. Exhibits including those Incorporated by Reference 

16 

17 
18 
19 
20 

21 
22 
23 
24 

25-38 

oescr i  mi on 

Restated A r t i c l e s  of Incorpora t ion  of FPL Group dated December 31, 1984, 
as amevded through December 17. 1990 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  4(a) t o  Post- 
Effective Amendment NO. 5 t O  Form 5 - 8 .  F l l e  NO. 33-18669) 

Amendment t o  FPL Group's Restated A r t i c l e s  of Incorpora t ion  dated lune 27, 
1996 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3 t o  ~ o r n  10-Q fo r  the quar ter  ended lune 30. 1996. 

Restated A r t i c l e s  o f  Incorpora t ion  o f  FPL dated March 23, 1992 ( f i l e d  as 
E x h i b i t  3(i)a to   FOP^ 10-K f o r  t h e  year ended December 31, 1993. F i l e  No. 
1-3545) 

F i l e  NO. 1-8841) 

Amendment t o  FPL'S Restated A r t i c l e s  o f  Incorpora t ion  dated March 23. 1992 
( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3(i)b t o  Form 10-1: f o r  the year ended December 31. 1993, 
F l l e  NO. 1-3545) 

Amendment to FPL's Restated A r t i c l e s  of Incorpora t ion  dated May 11, 1992 
( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3(i)c t o  Form 10-K f o r  the year ended December 31. 1993, 
F i l e  NO. 1-3545) 

Amendment t o  FPL'S Restated A r t i c l e s  of Incorpora t ion  dated March 12. 1993 
( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3( i )d  t o  ~ o r m  1 0 4  f o r  the year ended December 31, 1993, 
F i l e  NO. 1-3545) 

Amendment t o  FPL's Restated A r t i c l e s  of Incorpora t ion  dated 3une 16, 1993 
( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3(i)e t o  ~ o r m  10-K f o r  the year ended December 31, 1993, 
F i l e  NO. 1-3545) 

Amendment t o  FPL's Restated A r t i c l e s  of Incorporat ion dated August 31, 1993 
( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3 ( i ) f  t o   FOP^ 10-U fo r  t h e  year ended December 31,  1993. 
F i l e  NO. 1-3545) 

Amendment t o  FPL'S Restated A r t i c l e s  o f  Incorporat ion dated November 30, 
1993 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3( i )g  t o  Form 10-K f o r  the year ended December 31. 
1993. F i l e  NO. 1 -3545)  

Bylaws o f  FPL Group dated November 1 5 ,  1993 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3 ( i i )  t o  Form 
~ O - K  fo r  t h e  year ended December 31, 1993, F i l e  No. 1-8841) 

FPL 
W F P C  

x 

x 

X 
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FPL 
G(.OUD 

Bylaws o f  FPL dated May 11, 1992 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  3 t o  form 8-K dated 
May 1. 1992, F i l e  NO. 1-3545) 

FOPm O f  n igh ts  Agreement, dated as o f  3u1 1. 1996.,between FPL Croup 
and the F i r s t  Natlona1,sank o f  Boston ( f i z e d  as E x h i b i t  4 t o  Form 8-K 
dated June 17, 1996. F l l e  NO. 1-8841) 

*4(d) 

*10(f) 

Indenture, dated as o f  June 1, 1999? between FPL,GTOUP c a p i t a l  Inc and 
The Bank of New York. as Trustee ( f l l e d  as E x h l b l t  4(a) t o  Form 8-K 
Dated 3Uly 16, 1999. F i l e  NO. 1-8841) 

Guarantee Agreement between FPL Group. 1nc. (as uarantor) and 
The sank o f  New York (as Guarantor Trustee) date% as o f  June 1, 1999 
( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  4(b) t o  Form 8-K dated Ju ly  16, 1999. F i l e  NO. 1-8841) 

FPL Group supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, amended and res ta ted  
e f f e c t i v e  A p r i l  1, 1997 

Amendments # 1 and 2 e f f e c t i v e  January 1. 1998 t o  FPL G ~ O U P  sy plernental 
Executive Retirement plan, amended and restated e f f e c t i v e  A P ~ I Y  1. 1997 

mendrnent Y 3  e f f e c t i v e  3anuary 1, 1999, t o  FPL GPOUp Supplemental 
Executive Retirement Plan. amended and restated e f fec t i ve  A p r i l  1. 1997 

FPL Group mended and Restated supplemental Executive Retirement Plan f o r  
~ a n e s  L .  Broadhead ef fect ive January 1, 1990 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  99Cd) t o  
Post-Effect,ve Amendment NO. 5 t o  Form 5-8,  F l l e  NO. 33-18669) 

supplement t o  the FPL Group Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 
as i t  appl ies t o  Paul 3 .  Evanson ef fect ive 3anuary 1. 1996 ( f i l e d  as 
E x h i b i t  10(b) t o  Form 10-K for t h e  year ended December 31. 1996. F i l e  
NO. 1-8841) 

supplement t o  t h e  FPL GPOUP supplemental Executive Retirement Plan as 
i t  ap l i e s  t o  Thomas F. P lunket t  ( f i l e d , a s  Exhibit 10(e) t o  Form 10-K 
f o r  t& year ended December 3 1 ,  1997, F i l e  No. 1-8841) 

FPL Group Long-Term I n c e n t i v e  Plan of 1985. as mended ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  
99(h) t o  Pos t -E f fec t i ve  Amendment NO. 5 t o  Form 5-8, F i l e  NO. 33-18669) 

Long-Tern Incent ive  Plan 1994 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  4(d) t o  Form 5-8. F i l e  

m n u a l  I n c e n t i v e  p lan 

FPL GPOUP. 1nc. Deferred Com ensation plan, amended.and restated e f f e c t i v e  
January 1, 1995 ( f i l e d  as ExEib i t  99 t o  Form 5 - 8 .  F i l e  No. 1-8841) 

FPL Group Executive Long Tern D i s a b i l i t y  Plan e f f e c t i v e  January 1. 1995 
( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  10( ) t o  Form 10-K fo r  the year ended December 31, 
1995. F i l e  NO. 1-88413 

NO. 33-57673) 

x 

x 

X 

X 

E& 
x 

x 
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Employment Agreement between FPL Group and lanes L. Broadhead, mended and 
restated az o f  ~ a y  10, 1999 ( f i l e d  as Exh7bit 10(a) t o  Form 10-4 f o r  t he  
quar ter  ended September 30. 1999, F l l e  NO. 1-8841) 

Employment Agreement between FPL Group and Dennis P. Coyle. amended and 
res ta ted  as o f  nay 10. 1999 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  10(b) t o  Form 10-q f a r  t he  
quar te r  ended September 30, 1999. F l l e  NO. 1-8841) 

~mp loynen t  ~greement  between FPL croup and paul 3 .  E Y ~ ~ S O ~ .  amended and 
res ta ted  as o f  nay 10. 1999 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  l O ( d  t o  Form 10-P for t he  
quar ter  ended September 30, 1999. F i l e  NO. 1-8841) 

Employment A reement between FPL Grou 
as o f  septem%er 1 3 ,  1999 ( f i l e d  as & b i t  10(d) t o  Form 10-4 f o r  t he  
q u a r t e r  ended September 30. 1999, F l l e  NO. 1-8841) 

and Lewis nay, 111. dated 

Employment Agreement between FPL Group and Lawrence 3 .  Kel leher ,  amended 
and restated as o f  May 10. 1999 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  10(e) t o  Form 10-q f o r  t h e  
quar ter  ended September 30, 1999. F i l e  NO. 1-8841) 

Employment Agreement between FPL Group and rhomas F. p lunke t t .  amended and 
restated as o f  May 10. 1999 ( f i l e d  as E x h l b i t  1O( f )  t o  Form 10-q f o r  t h e  
quar ter  ended September 30. 1999. F i l e  NO. 1-8841) 

~mployment Agreement between FPL Group and Michael w. Yackira. amended and 
restated as of nay 10. 1999 ( f i l e d  as E x h i b i t  10( ) t o  Form 10-4 f o r  t h e  
qUacter ended September 30, 1999. F l l e  NO. 1-88417 

FPL G ~ O U  , I n c .  Non-Employee Di rectors  Stock Plan dated as of March 17, 
1997 ( f i y e d  as Appendix A t o  FPL Group's 1997 PPOXY Statement. F l l e  NO. 
1-8841) 

computation of Ra t io  o f  Earnings t o  Fixed charges 

computation o f  Ratios 

subsid iar ies o f  t h e  Regis t rant  

Independent Audi tors '  consent 

F inancia l  Data Schedule 

FPL 
W F P L  

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x x 

x x 

* Incarparated herein by reference 

(b) Reports on Form 8-K - none 
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FPL GROUP, INC. SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused 
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

FPL Group, Inc. 

JAMES L. BROADHEAD 
James L. Broadhead 

Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Oflicer 

(Principal Executive Officer and Director) 

Date: February 28.2000 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. this report has been signed below by the following 
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated. 

Signature and Title as of Februaly 28.2000: 

LEWIS HAY, 111 
Lewis Hay, 111 
Vice President. Finance and Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer) 

K. MICHAEL DAVIS 
K. Michael Davis 
Controller and Chief Accounting Officer 
(Principal Accounting Officer) 

Directors: 

H. JESSE ARNELLE 
H. Jesse Arnelle 

WILLARD D. DOVER 
Willard D. Dover 

SHERRY S. BARRAT 
Sherry S. Barrat 

ALEXANDER W. DREYFOOS JR. 
Alexander W. Dreyfoos Jr. 

ROBERT M. BEALL. II 
Robert M. Beall. II 

PAUL J. EVANSON 
Paul J. Evanson 

J. HYATT BROWN DREW LEWIS 
J. Hyatt Brown Drew Lewis 

ARMAND0 M. CODINA 
Annando M. Codina 

FREDERIC V. MALEK 
Frederic V. Malek 

MARSHALL M. CRISER 
Marshall M. Criser 

PAUL R. TREGURTHA 
Paul R. Tregurtha 

B. F. Dolan 



FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused 
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

Florida Power 8 Light Company 

PAUL J. EVANSON 
Paul J. Evanson 

President and Director 

Date: February 28,2000 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following 
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated. 

Signature and Title as of February 28. 2000: 

JAMES L. BROADHEAD 
James L. Broadhead 
Chairman of the Board 
(Principal Executive Officer and Director) 

LEWIS HAY, 111 
Lewis Hav. 111 ~. ~~ ~ 

Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer and Director) 

K. MICHAEL DAVIS 
K. Michael Davis 
Vice President, Accounting, 
Controller and Chief Accounting Oflicer 
(Principal Accounting Officer) 

Directors: 

DENNIS P. COYLE 
Dennis P. Coyle 

THOMAS F. PLUNKETT 
Thomas F. Plunkett 

ANTONIO RODRIGUEZ LAWRENCE J. KELLEHER 
Lawrence J. Kelleher Antonio Rodriguez 

ARMAND0 J. OLIVERA 
Armando J. Olivera 



EXHIBIT 12(a) 

FPL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES 

Earnings. as defined: 
Net income ..... 
Income taxe ........................ 
Fixed charges. included i n  the determ 

net income, as below .............. 
Dis t r ibu ted  income o f  independent power investments .... 
w s s :  Equity i n  earnings of independent power 

investments ........................... 
Tota l  earnings. as defined ................... 

Fixed charges. a5 defined: 
In te res t  charges ................................. 
Rental i n t e r e s t  factor ............... ........ 
Fixed charges included i n  nuclear f u e l  cost  ........... 
Fixed charges. inc luded i n  the determination of ne t  
i ncme ............................ 

Capital i z ................... 

ro ta1  f i x e d  charges. as defined ................... 

Ratio o f  earnings t o  f i x e d  charges ..... 

y a p s  Ended December 31. - ~ l i o i i % D o l d %  ~ 1995 

I 697 I 664 I 618 I 579 I 553 
323 279 304 294 329 

234 
75 

335 304 283 308 
68 47 38 39 

I 222 I 322 I 291 I 267 I 291 
4 4 4 5 6 

8 -  9 9 - -  11 11 



EXHIBIT 12(b) 

FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
COMPUTATION OF RATIOS 

years Ended December 31. 
1999 LBL _19pL 1996 1995 

( M i l l i o n s  o f  ~ o l l a r s )  

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES 

Earnings. as defined: 
N e t  ,“come ........................................ I 591 I 631 I 627 
income taxes ................... 324 349 321 

....................................... 174 209 240 
Tota l  earnings. as def ined .................... u s s s u w  

I n t e r e s t  charges _ . _ _ _ .  ................. I 163 I 196 I 227 
Rental i n t e r e s t  factor  ................. 3 4 4 
Fixed charges inc luded 899 

Tota l  f i x e d  charges, ds def ined . . . . . . . . . . . .  LZA’1l119L2a 
Rat io  o f  earnings t o  f i v e  =!L?&=L!aA& 

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS 

Fixed charges. as def ined:  

Earnings, as defined: 
Net income ..... 
Income taxe  ..... 
Fixed charges. as bela 

Tota l  earnings. as def ined .................................. 
Fixed charges, as def ined:  

I n t e r e s t  charges ............................. 
Rental i n t e r e s t  f a c  or ....................... .... 
Fixed charges inc luded i n  nuclear f u e l  Cost ................... 

Tota l  f i x e d  charges. as def ined ............................. 
Non-tax deduct ib le  p re fe r red  stock dividends .................... 
Rat io  o f  income before income taxes t o  net  income ............... 
Preferred stock dividends before income taxes ................... 
Combined f i x e d  charges and pre fer red  stock dividends ............ 
Rat io  o f  earnings t o  combined f i xed  charges 

and preferred stock dividends ............................. 

I 591 I 631 I 627 
324 349 321 

174209240 

I 615 I 611 
322 342 

2 6 2 -  286 

I 615 I 611 
322 342 

2 6 2 2 8 6  



EXHIBIT 21 

SUBSIDIARIES OF FPL GROUP, INC. 

State o r  3ur isdict ion 
Ulbsidiarv o f  Incomorarion 

1. Flor ida Power & Light Company (10W-mvned) ............................................. Flor ida 

2 Bay Loan and Investment Bank (a) ....................................................... Rhode is land 

3.  Palms Insurance Company. L in i red (a) ................................................... cayman islands 

(a) 100%-ownea subsidiary of FPL Gmup Captal Inc 

EXHIBIT 23 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS CONSENT 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 33-56869 on Form S-3; Registration Statement 
No. 33-57673 on Form S-8; Post-Effective Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement No. 33-31487 on Form S-8; Post- 
Effective Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement No. 33-33215 on Form s-8; Registration Statement No. 33-11631 on 
Form S-8; Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement No. 33-39306 on Form S-3; Registration Statement 
No. 33-57470 on Form S-3; Post-Effective Amendment No. 6 to Registration Statement No. 33-18669 on Form S-8; 
Registration Statement No. 333-27079 on Form S-8; Registration Statement No. 333-30695 on Form S-8; Registration 
.Statement No. 333-30697 on Form S-8; Registration Statement No. 333-87869 on Form S-8; Registration Statement No. 333- 
87941 on Form S-3; Registration Statement No. 333-88067 on Form S-8 and Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Registration 
Statement No. 333-79305 on Form S-8 of FPL Group, Inc., of our report dated February 11, 2000 appearing in this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K of FPL Group, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 1999. 

We also consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 33-40123 on Form S-3; Post-Effective 
Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement No. 33-46076 on Form S-3 Registration Statement No. 333-53053 on Form S-3 
and Registration Statement No. 333-84005 of Florida Power & Light Company, of our report dated February 11. 2000 
appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Florida Power & Light Company for the year ended December 31,1999. 

We also consent to the incorporation by reference on Form S-3; Registration Statement No. 333-87941-01 on Form S-3 of 
FPL Group Capital Inc. of our report dated February 11, 2000 appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of FPL Group, 
Inc.. for the year ended December 31, 1999. 

~ 

DELOITTE &TOUCHE LLP 

Miami, Florida 
March 1.2000 
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FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
2001 and 2002 Sources and Uses of Funds Forecast 

(Millions of Dollars) 

Sianificant cash flow items (Note 1) 

Depreciation and amortization (Note 2) 
Deferred income taxes 
Deferred investment tax credit - net 

Total 

CaDital reauirements 

Construction expenditures (Note 3): 

Long-term debt maturities 
Total capital requirements 

$ 970 

- 0 
$ 9 7 0  

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
Construction Budget for Gross Property Additions 

(Millions of Dollars) 

Construction expenditures (Note 3): $ 970 

$ 820 

- 0 
$ 8 2 0  

$ 820 

NOTES 

1) Projected amounts do not include any effect of potential changes in retail base rates or other regulated 
activities which could cause the projections to change. 

2) Excludes nuclear plant decommissioning costs. 

3) Excludes AFUDC. All of the estimated construction expenditures are subject to continuing review and 
adjustment and actual construction expenditures may vary from these estimates due to factors such as 
changes in customers, energy sales, business and economic conditions, construction and design 
requirements, fuel supply and costs, availability of labor, supplies and materials, regulatory treatment, 
environmental and conservation requirements, and existing and proposed legislation. FPL is keeping 
its construction program as flexible as possible with the intention of accommodating those factors that 
may develop or change. 
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FLORIDA POWER 81 LIGHT COMPANY 
Statement of Capital Stock and Debt --June 30,2000 

Issue 
Date Description 

Preferred Stock without Sinking Fund Requirements: 

U11511TQ 

Authorized (1) I Outstanding 

Other: 

I Preferred 
, .  ~~~ 

tock. undesignated. no par 
Subordinated Preferred Stock. no Dar 

(1) Remaining authorized under amended Charter. 
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Series 

FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY 
Statement of Capital Stock and Debt --June 30,2000 

Issue Principal 
Date Maturity Outstanding 

First Mortgage Bonds: 

Page 2 of 3 
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A 

Issue Principal 
Series Date Maturity Outstanding 

7.30% Martin 06/90 07/01/20 $76,300,000 
7.50% St. Lucie 06/90 07/01/20 $9,835,000 
7.15% Dade 08/91 02/01/23 $1 5,000,000 
7.15% St. Lucie 08/91 02/0 1/23 $16,520,000 

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 
Statement of Capital Stock and Debt --June 30,2000 

( I )  

(') 

pariable Rate St. Lucie I 06/00 I 01/15/25 I $48,900,000 
Total I $627,735,000 

Unsecured Pollution Control, Solid Waste Disposal, and Industrial 
Development Bonds: 

(2 )  

(') The proceeds from the issuance in April 2000 of $95,700,000 principal amount of bonds were used to 
redeem, in July 2000, all $76,300,000 principal amount of bonds and all $19,400,000 principal amount 
of bonds. 

The proceeds from the issuance in June 2000 of $48,900,000 principal amount of bonds were used in 
part to redeem all $9,835,000 principal amount of bonds in August 2000 and all $15,900,000 principal 
amount of bonds in September 2000. 
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